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PART |
Item 1. Business

The following discussion contains trend informaténd other forward-looking statements that invavweumber of risks and
uncertainties. Forward-looking statements inclublet, are not limited to, statements such as thasgéenin “Overview” regarding royalty
payments from Nanya, Inotés transition to the Company’s stack process tetdmoand gross margins from the Company’s imagiafgw
supply agreement with Aptina; in “Products” regangj increased sales of DDR3 DRAM products and gramwttemand for NAND Flash
products and soli-state drives; and in “Manufacturing” regarding thteansition to smaller line-width process technaémjand Inotera’s
transition to the Company’s stack process technolobhe Company’s actual results could differ miatgr from the Company’s historical
results and those discussed in the forward-lookitagements. Factors that could cause actual regaltiffer materially include, but are not
limited to, those identified in “Item 1A. Risk Faxd.” All period references are to the Company&:él periods unless otherwise indicated.

Corporate Information

Micron Technology, Inc., and its consolidated sdiasies (hereinafter referred to collectively as tEompany”),a Delaware corporatio
was incorporated in 1978. The Company’s execuiffiees are located at 8000 South Federal Way,ddtkho 83716-9632 and its
telephone number is (208) 368-4000. Informatiooutlbhe Company is available on the internet at wwiaron.com. Copies of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly &&pon Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8gdyell as any amendments to
these reports, are available through the Compamglssite as soon as reasonably practicable aftgratteeelectronically filed with or
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commidgsien“SEC”). Materials filed by the Company witie SEC are also available at the
SEC'’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NEshiigton, D.C. 20549. Information on the operatibthe Public Reference Room is
available by calling 1-800-SEC-0330. Also avaitabh the Company’s website are its: Corporate Gmaree Guidelines, Governance
Committee Charter, Compensation Committee Chakadjit Committee Charter and Code of Business Conduod Ethics. Any amendmel
or waivers of the Company’s Code of Business Conhdnd Ethics will also be posted on the Companybsite at www.micron.com within
four business days of the amendment or waiver.igSapf these documents are available to sharelslgem request. Information contained
or referenced on the Company’s website is not paa@ted by reference and does not form a parti@fthnual Report on Form 10-K. In
January 2009, the Company’s Chief Executive Offemmtified to the New York Stock Exchange that leswot aware of any violation by the
Company of the NYSE's Corporate Governance LisStandards.

Overview

The Company is a global manufacturer and markdéteemiconductor devices, principally DRAM and NANAlash memory. In
addition, the Company manufactures CMOS image sgneducts under a wafer foundry arrangement. Gbmpany’s products are offered
in a wide variety of package and configuration opsi, architectures and performance characterisiilcsed to meet application and customer
needs. Individual devices leverage the Compargusiaced semiconductor processing technology andifaeturing expertise. The
Company aims to continually introduce new genenatiof products that offer lower costs per unit angroved performance
characteristics. The Company operates in two tepler segments, Memory and Imaging. (See “ltefirfBancial Statements and
Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated FinaBt&dements — Segment Information.”)

In 2009, 2008 and 2007, the semiconductor mematysitry experienced a severe downturn due to afignt oversupply of
products. The downturn was exacerbated by glatmi@mic conditions which adversely affected demfandemiconductor memory
products. Average selling prices per gigabit fer Company’s DRAM and NAND Flash products declib2éc and 56%, respectively, for
2009 as compared to 2008 after declining 51% afd, 8&spectively, for 2008 as compared to 2007 a&utirdng 23% and 56%, respective
for 2007 as compared to 2006. These declinesfiignily outpaced the long-term historical priciingnd. As a result of these market
conditions, the Company and other semiconductor ongmanufacturers reported substantial lossescenteperiods. In 2009, the Company
reported a net loss of $1.8 billion after reportired losses of $1.6 billion for 2008 and $320 miilfor 2007.




Memory: The Memory segment’s primary products are DRAM BIAND Flash, which are key memory components tisedbroad
array of electronic applications, including perdar@amputers, workstations, network servers, mapiienes, Flash memory cards, USB
storage devices, MP3/4 players and other consuleetr@nics products. The Company sells primaolptiginal equipment manufacturers,
distributors and retailers located around the wotitie Company is focused on improving its Memagraent’'s competitiveness by
developing new products, advancing its technolagy/r@ducing costs.

In response to adverse market conditions, the Coynipdtiated restructure plans in 2009, primarilithin the Company’s Memory
segment. In the first quarter of 2009, IM Flaspiat venture between the Company and Intel Cation (“Intel”), terminated its agreement
with the Company to obtain NAND Flash memory sugpiyn the Company’s Boise facility, reducing then@many’s NAND Flash
production by approximately 35,000 200mm wafersrpenth. The Company and Intel also agreed to susf®ling and the ramp of NAN
Flash production at IM Flash’s Singapore wafer itaiion facility. In addition, the Company phasad all remaining 200mm DRAM wafer
manufacturing operations in Boise, Idaho in theosddalf of 2009.

In 2008, the Company established a partnering geraent with Nanya Technology Corporation (“Nanyatlysuant to which the
Company and Nanya jointly develop process techryotogl designs to manufacture stack DRAM produEgch party generally bears its
own development costs. In addition, the Comparsydeployed and licensed certain intellectual prigpeiated to the manufacture of stack
DRAM products to Nanya and licensed certain intgllal property from Nanya. As a result, the Conyparto receive an aggregate of $207
million from Nanya through 2010, of which the Compaecognized license revenue of $105 million ag&d fillion in 2009 and 2008,
respectively. In addition, the Company expecteteive royalties in future periods from Nanyadates of stack DRAM products
manufactured by or for Nanya.

In the first quarter of 2009, the Company acquaeb.5% ownership interest in Inotera Memories, (fiaotera”), a publicly-traded
entity in Taiwan, from Qimonda AG (“Qimonda”) foB$8 million. In August 2009, the Compasydwnership interest in Inotera was redt
to 29.8% as a result of Inotera’s issuance of comatock in a public offering for approximately $3illion. In connection with the
acquisition of the shares in Inotera, the Compart/Manya also entered into a supply agreementinittera (the “Inotera Supply
Agreement”) pursuant to which Inotera will sellrtol and stack DRAM products to the Company and Harfhe Company has rights and
obligations to purchase up to 50% of Inotera’s wafeduction capacity. Inotera’s actual wafer prctibn will vary from time to time based
on market and other conditions. Inotera charesdompany and Nanya for a portion of the costscated with its underutilized capacity
any. Inotera’s trench production is expectedaogition to the Company’s stack process technolddye cost to the Company of wafers
purchased under the Inotera Supply Agreement iscbas a margin sharing formula among the Compaapyl and Inotera. Under such
formula, all parties’ manufacturing costs relateavafers supplied by Inotera, as well as the Comsaand Nanya'’s selling prices for the
resale of products from wafers supplied by Inotara,considered in determining costs for wafersfinotera. (See “Item 8. Financial
Statements — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesn- Supplemental Balance Sheet Information -tfEdiethod Investments — DRAM
joint ventures with Nany”)

Imaging: On July 10, 2009, the Company sold a 65% inténe&ptina Imaging Corporation (“Aptina”), previolysa wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and a significant compooéthe Company’s Imaging segment, to Riverwoagi@l and TPG Capital. In
connection with the transaction, the Company rexeapproximately $35 million in cash and retainéb% minority interest in Aptina. The
Company also retained all cash held by Aptina édubsidiaries. The Company accounts for its ieimginterest in Aptina under the
equity method. The Company’s Imaging segment noe to manufacture products for Aptina under a&wstipply agreement. The
Company anticipates that pricing under the Aptirdier supply agreement will generally result in logeoss margins than historically
realized on sales of Imaging products to end custem(See “ltem 8. Financial Statements — Not&>osolidated Financial Statements —
Supplemental Balance Sheet Information — Equityhddtinvestments - Aptina”)

Products
Memory: Sales of Memory products were 89%, 89% and 88#%efCompany'’s total net sales in 2009, 2008 af)y 2@spectively.

Dynamic Random Access MemoffDRAM”) : DRAM products are high-density, low-cost-g@t-random access memory devi
that provide high-speed data storage and retriecd®AM products were 50%, 54% and 65% of the Comfsatotal net sales in 2009, 2008
and 2007, respectively. The Company offers DRARdpIcts with a variety of performance, pricing atigdeo characteristics including high-
volume DDR2 and DDR3 products as well as spec@RAM memory products including DDR, SDRAM, MobileRAM, PSRAM and
RLDRAM.




DDR2 and DDR3: DDR2 and DDR3 are standardized, high-densityh+iglume DRAM products that are sold primarily
for use as main system memory in computers anésenDDR2 and DDR3 products offer high speed agk bandwidth at a
relatively low cost compared to other DRAM producBDR2 products were the highest volume parthén@RAM market in 2009
and were 22%, 28% and 32% of the Compargtal net sales in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respgtnDDR3 products were 7% of ta
net sales in 2009 and the Company expects tha sh[@DR3 products will increase significantly ia1D.

The Company offers DDR2 products in 256 megabitl{*M512 Mb, 1 gigabit (“Gb”) and 2 Gb densitieshe Company
offers DDR3 products in 1 Gb and 2 Gb densitieeke Tompany expects that these densities will bessacy to meet future
customer demands for a broad array of product® Qdmpany offers its DDR2 and DDR3 products in mlgtconfigurations,
speeds and package types. In connection with ¢imep@nys acquisition of Inotera in 2009, the Company autfyealso offers DDR
and DDR3 DRAM products manufactured by Inotera gisiirench DRAM technology as Inotera transitianthe Company'’s stack
DRAM technology.

Other DRAM products: The Company also offers specialty DRAM memorydoics including DDR, SDRAM, Mobile
DRAM, Pseudo-static RAM (“PSRAM”) and Reduced LatgiRAM (“RLDRAM"), which are used primarily in natorking
devices, servers, consumer electronics, commuaitagquipment and computer peripherals as welleasary upgrades to legacy
computers. Aggregate sales of these products 2dée 25% and 33% of the Company’s total net sal&dD9, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The Company offers these productieimsities ranging from 64 Mb to 1Gb.

NAND Flash memory“(NAND”) : NAND products are electrically re-writeable, remiatile semiconductor memory devices that
retain content when power is turned off. NAND saleere 39%, 35% and 23% of the Company’s totasalets in 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. NAND is ideal for mass-storage desidue to its fast erase and write times, highigerd low cost per bit relative to other
solid-state memory. The market for NAND produdis grown rapidly and the Company expects it toinaetto grow due to demand for
removable and embedded storage devices. Remaostabdgye devices such as USB and Flash memory asrdsed with applications such
as personal computers, digital still cameras, MPp8t§ers and mobile phones. Embedded NAND-basedgt devices are utilized in MP3/4
players, mobile phones, computers and other peraodaconsumer applications.

NAND and DRAM share common manufacturing processeabling the Company to leverage its product andgss technologies
and manufacturing infrastructure across these twdyzt lines. The Company’s NAND designs featusenall cell structure that allows for
higher densities for demanding applications. Then@any offers Single-Level Cell (“SLC”) productsdaMulti-Level Cell (“MLC”) NAND
products, which have two or more times the bit dgrd SLC products. In 2009, the Company offeBtdC NAND products in 1 Gb, 2 Gb, 4
Gb and 8 Gb densities. In 2009, the Company aff8r&b, 16 Gb and 32 Gb 2-bit-per-cell MLC NAND guets and began sampling 3-bit-
per-cell 32 Gb MLC NAND products. In 2009, 32 Gih®NAND products manufactured using industry-legddd nanometer (“nm”
process technology were 14% of the Company’s teakales. The Company offers high-speed NAND yeetsdthat deliver transfer speeds
up to 200 megabytes per second (MB/s) as compar4d MB/s for conventional SLC NAND. These higkpeeds are achieved by
leveraging an ONFI 2.0 specification and a foumplarchitecture with higher clock speeds.

The Company offers next-generation RealSSD™ saditkgirives for enterprise server and notebookiegtdns which offer higher
performance, reduced power consumption and enhaetedility as compared to typical hard disk dsvdJsing Micron's SLC and MLC
NAND process technology, the sc-state drives are offered in 2.5-inch and 1.8-ifwein factors, with densities up to 256 gigabyted as
embedded USB devices with densities up to 8 gigabyThe Company expects that demand for solid-gtates will increase significantly
over the next few years. The Company also offekdlN Flash in multichip packages (“MCP’s") that inporate NAND Flash with other
memory products manufactured by the Company taeieaingle package that simplifies design whilprioring performance and
functionality.




The Company’s Lexar subsidiary sells high-perforogadigital media products and other flash-baseggtproducts through retail
and original equipment manufacturing (OEM) channdlke Company’s digital media products includeadety of Flash memory cards with
a range of speeds, capacities and value-addeddeatlihe Company'’s digital media products alstushe its JumpDrive™ products, which
are high-speed, portable USB flash drives for coreuapplications that serve a variety of usesuitialg floppy disk replacement and digital
media accessories such as card readers and insge ieoftware. The Company offers Flash memomysdarall major media formats
currently used by digital cameras and other elaatrbost devices, including: CompactFlash, Menfdtigk and Secure Digital Cards. Many
of CompactFlash, Memory Stick and Memory Stick PBt@ducts sold by the Company incorporate its pateénbntroller technology. Other
products, including Secure Digital Card Flash mgneards and some JumpDrive products, incorporate plarty controllers. The Company
also resells Flash memory products that are puechfiem suppliers. The Company offers Flash mensargs in a variety of speeds and
capacities. The Company sells products underaiat™ brand and also manufactures products thatoddeunder other brand names. The
Company has an agreement with Eastman Kodak tdigittl media products under the Kodak brand name.

Imaging: The Company manufactures CMOS image sensor prothrcégptina under a wafer supply agreement entaradat the time
the Company agreed to sell a 65% interest in Apgimduly 10, 2009. Imaging sales are dependeAptina’s ability to successfully design
and market CMOS image sensor products to end cesom

Manufacturing

The Company’s manufacturing facilities are locadtethe United States, China, Italy, Japan, Pueito Bnd Singapore. The Company’s
Inotera joint venture also has a wafer fabricafamility in Taiwan. The Company’s manufacturingifdies generally operate 24 hours per
day, 7 days per week. Semiconductor manufactusiegtremely capital intensive, requiring largeastments in sophisticated facilities and
equipment. Most semiconductor equipment must placed every three to five years with increasiraglyanced equipment.

The Company'’s process for manufacturing semicormymrbducts is complex, involving a number of psecsteps, including wafer
fabrication, assembly and test. Efficient productdf semiconductor products requires utilizatibadvanced semiconductor manufacturing
techniques and effective deployment of these teglas across multiple facilities. The primary deti@ants of manufacturing cost are die
size, number of mask layers, number of fabricasi@ps and number of good die produced on each wéfdrer factors that contribute to
manufacturing costs are wafer size, cost and stgdtion of manufacturing equipment, equipmentizdiion, process complexity, cost of raw
materials, labor productivity, package type andmwlmess of the manufacturing environment. The @amy is continuously enhancing its
production processes, reducing die sizes and tiamisig to higher density products. The Companyg wansitioning its DRAM production to
50nm line-width process technology in 2009 and etgpthat most of its DRAM products will be manufaed using its 50nm line-width
process technology in the second half of 20102000, the Company manufactured the majority oNi®ND Flash memory products using
its 34nm line-width process technology. In 201@ Company expects to transition to a lower lindthvprocess technology for its
manufacture of NAND Flash memory products. In 2ad68 Company manufactured substantially all ohigh-volume Memory products on
300mm wafers. The Company manufactured some $gePiBAM and Imaging products using 200mm wafers.

Wafer fabrication occurs in a highly controllede@h environment to minimize dust and other yietd quality-limiting
contaminants. Despite stringent manufacturingrodsitdust particles, equipment errors, minute irtj@s in materials, defects in photoma
and circuit design marginalities or defects caul lmawafers being scrapped and individual circhésg nonfunctional. Success of the
Company’s manufacturing operations depends largelminimizing defects to maximize yield of high-djtiacircuits. In this regard, the
Company employs rigorous quality controls throughtbe manufacturing, screening and testing proseshe Company is able to recover
many nonstandard devices by testing and grading tbetheir highest level of functionality.

After fabrication, silicon wafers are separated imdividual die. The Company sells semiconduptaducts in both packaged and
unpackaged (i.e. “bare die”) forms. For packagedipcts, functional die are sorted, connected teraeal leads and encapsulated in plastic
packages. The Company assembles products inetyafipackages, including TSOP (thin small outlraekage), TQFP (thin quad flat
package) and FBGA (fine pitch ball grid array). r8die products address customer requirementsrfaller form factors and higher memory
densities and provide superior flexibility. Baiie groducts are used in packaging technologies as@ystems-in-a-package (SIPs) and multi-
chip packages (MCPs), which reduce the board a&ared.




The Company tests its products at various stagésimanufacturing process, performs high tempegdturnin on finished products ai
conducts numerous quality control inspections tghmut the entire production flow. In addition, Bempany uses its proprietary
AMBYX™ line of intelligent test and burn-in systertsperform simultaneous circuit tests of DRAM digring the burrin process, capturir
quality and reliability data and reducing testimge and cost.

The Company assembles a significant portion ahigsnory products into memory modules. Memory maslatansist of an array of
memory components attached to printed circuit b &HCBs”) that insert directly into computer syageor other electronic devices. The
Companys Lexar subsidiary contracts with independent foigsdand assembly and testing organizations to faature flash media produc
such as memory cards and USB devices.

The Company utilizes subcontractors to perforngaificant portion of its assembly, test and modagsembly services. Outsourcing
these services enables the Company to reducearwstsinimize its capital investment.

In recent years, the Company has produced an siaga broad portfolio of products, which enhanttes Company’s ability to allocate
resources to its most profitable products but adspeases the complexity of its manufacturing pssceAlthough the Compars/product line
generally use similar manufacturing processesCimapany’s overall cost efficiency can be affectgdrbquent conversions to new products;
the allocation of manufacturing capacity to morenptex, smaller-volume parts; and the reallocatibmanufacturing capacity across various
product lines.

NAND Flash joint ventures with Intel Corporation: The Company has formed two joint ventures witlellto manufacture NAND
Flash memory products for the exclusive benefthefpartners: IM Flash Technologies, LLC and IMgH Singapore LLP (collectively, “IM
Flash”). IM Flash manufactures NAND Flash memomyducts using NAND Flash designs developed by the@any and Intel. The parties
share the output of IM Flash generally in propartio their investment in IM Flash. The Company edma 51% interest in IM Flash at
September 3, 2009. IM Flash’s financial resultsiacluded in the consolidated financial statemehthe Company.

In the first quarter of 2009, IM Flash substanyi@bmpleted construction of a new 300mm wafer fadiidn facility structure in
Singapore. The Singapore facility has not beerfippga and in October 2008 the Company and Intededjto suspend tooling and the ramp
of NAND Flash production at the facility. (Seeéh 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dhlisies to Consolidated Financial
Statements — Consolidated Variable Interest Estiti®lAND Flash Joint Ventures with Intel.”)

TECH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“TECH"): TECH is a DRAM memory manufacturing joint ventimeSingapore among
Micron Technology, Inc., Canon Inc. and Hewlettdad Company. The Company owned an approximatei&est in TECH at
September 3, 2009. TECH's semiconductor manufexgjdacilities use the Company’s product and predeshnology. Subject to specific
terms and conditions, the Company has agreed thpse all of the products manufactured by TECH20@9, TECH accounted for
approximately 20% of the Company’s total wafer prcttbn. The shareholders’ agreement for the TEG@HE venture expires in April
2011. In the first quarter of 2010, TECH receigedotice from HP that it does not intend to extdr@TECH joint venture beyond April
2011. The Company is working with HP and Canoretich a resolution of the matter. (Sétert 8. Financial Statements and Supplemet
Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemeMisGH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd.”)

Inotera:  In the first quarter of 2009, the Company acquae’b.5% ownership interest in Inotera. In Aug¥® the Company’s
ownership interest in Inotera was reduced to 2%8% result of Inotera’s issuance of common stoekpublic offering for approximately
$310 million. In connection with the acquisitidhe Company entered into a supply agreement witeta. Inotera manufactures products
using a trench DRAM process technology and is ebgueto transition to the Company’s stack DRAM psxciechnology. Under the Inotera
supply agreement, the Company has the right tarob@®6 of Inotera’s output (approximately 50,00@80n DRAM wafers per month as of
September 3, 2009). The Company began receivémghr DRAM products from Inotera in the fourth geaf 2009. (Seeltem 8. Financie
Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to ddassd Financial Statements — Equity Method Invesitsi— DRAM Joint Ventures with
Nanya”)

Aptina Supply Agreement: On July 10, 2009, the Company sold a 65% interesiptina, previously a wholly-owned subsidiary bét
Company and a significant component of the Compmahwaging segment. Subsequent to the sale, thgp&@ontontinues to manufacture
Imaging products for Aptina under a wafer supplyeament. (See “ltem 8. Financial Statements ampgpl8mentary Data — Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements — Equity Methme$tments — Aptina.”)




MP Mask Technology Center, LLC (“MP Mask”): The Company produces photomasks for leading-addeadvanced next generation
semiconductors through MP Mask, a joint venturddhotronics, Inc. (“Photronics”). The Company &fbtronics have 50.01% and
49.99% interest, respectively, in MP Mask. The @any and Photronics also have supply arrangemeérgseim the Company purchases a
substantial majority of the reticles produced by M&sk. The financial results of MP Mask are inéddn the consolidated financial results
of the Company. (See “Item 8. Financial StatemantsSupplementary Data — Notes to Consolidatean€ial Statements — Consolidated
Variable Interest Entities — MP Mask Technology teenLLC.")

Avalilability of Raw Materials

The Company’s production processes require rawnmage¢hat meet exacting standards, including seteat are customized for, or
unique to, the Company. The Company generallynnasiple sources and sufficient availability of gilys however, only a limited number of
suppliers are capable of delivering certain rawamals that meet the Company’s standards. Vaffacters could reduce the availability of
raw materials such as silicon wafers, photomagksmicals, gases, lead frames, molding compouncdtred materials. In addition, any
transportation problems could delay the Compargceipt of raw materials. Although raw materialsrshges or transportation problems
have not interrupted the Company’s operations énpidist, shortages may occur from time to time énftiture. Also, lead times for the supply
of raw materials have been extended in the pé&shelCompany’s supply of raw materials is intetat}y or lead times are extended, results of
operations could be adversely affected.

Marketing and Customers

The Companys products are sold into computing, consumer, nddwg, telecommunications, and imaging markets prgimately 30%
of the Companys net sales for 2009 were to the computing maikelyding desktop PCs, servers, notebooks and vatigas. Sales to Inte
primarily for NAND Flash from the IM Flash joint méures, were 20% of the Company’s net sales in 20@919% of the Company’s net
sales in 2008. Sales to Hewlett-Packard Compamg W@ of the Company’s net sales in 2007.

The Company’s Memory products are offered undeMraeon, Lexar, Crucial and SpecTek brand namespaivéite labels. The
Company markets its semiconductor products prim#nilough its own direct sales force and maintaalss offices in its primary markets
around the world. The Company maintains invengdrpcations in close proximity to certain key ausers to facilitate rapid delivery of
products. The Company sells Lexar-branded NANBHrl@memory products primarily through retail chasraeid its Crucial-branded
products primarily through a web-based customeatlisales channel. The Company’s products areoffiseed through independent sales
representatives and distributors. Independens sefgesentatives obtain orders subject to finegptance by the Company and are
compensated on a commission basis. The Compangasiipments against these orders directly toubtmer. Distributors carry the
Company’s products in inventory and typically sellariety of other semiconductor products, inclgdiompetitors’ products.

The Company offers products designed to meet trersk needs of computing, server, automotive, miing, security,
commercial/industrial, consumer electronics, mddical mobile applications. Many of the Companyistomers require a thorough review
or qualification of semiconductor products, whichymake several months. As the Company furthegrdifies its product lines and reduces
the die sizes of existing products, more produetine subject to qualification which may delay weduintroduction of specific devices by
the Company.

Backlog

Because of volatile industry conditions, custormagesreluctant to enter into long-term, fixed-primmtracts. Accordingly, new order
volumes for the Company’s semiconductor productstfiate significantly. Orders are typically acegptvith acknowledgment that the terms
may be adjusted to reflect market conditions atigite of shipment. Customers can change delivdrgdiiles or cancel orders without
significant penalty. For these reasons, the Compaes not believe that its order backlog as of@aryicular date is a reliable indicator of
actual sales for any succeeding period.




Product Warranty

Because the design and manufacturing processitceaductor products is highly complex, it is pbdsithat the Company may prodt
products that do not comply with customer spedifices, contain defects or are otherwise incompatiith end uses. In accordance with
industry practice, the Company generally providémaed warranty that its products are in compdiarwith Company specifications existing
at the time of delivery. Under the Company’s gahtgrms and conditions of sale, liability for @t failures of product during a stated
warranty period is usually limited to repair or lsgement of defective items or return of, or a itreith respect to, amounts paid for such
items. Under certain circumstances, the Compaaoyiges more extensive limited warranty coverage that provided under the Company’s
general terms and conditions.

Competition

The Company faces intense competition in the semdicctor memory markets from a number of compametding Elpida Memory,
Inc.; Hynix Semiconductor Inc.; Samsung Electrortics, Ltd; SanDisk Corporation; and Toshiba Corpora Some of the Company’s
competitors are large corporations or conglomeréi@smay have greater resources to withstand dowsin the semiconductor markets in
which the Company competes, invest in technologiyaapitalize on growth opportunities. The Comparggmpetitors seek to increase
silicon capacity, improve yields, reduce die simd eninimize mask levels in their product desigrulésg in significantly increased
worldwide supply and downward pressure on prices.

Research and Development

The Company’s process technology research andamveint (“R&D”) efforts are focused primarily on adepment of successively
smaller line-width process technologies which asighed to facilitate the Company’s transition éxtrgeneration memory
products. Additional process technology R&D effddcus on the enablement of advanced computingrenridle memory architectures, the
investigation of new opportunities that leverage ¢tbmpany’s core semiconductor expertise, anddkieldpment of new manufacturing
materials. Product design and development effagsoncentrated on the Company'’s high density DBf®Bmobile products, as well as
high density and mobile NAND Flash memory (inclglMLC technology), specialty memory products andrmoey systems. The
Company’s R&D expenses were $647 million, $680ionilland $805 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, retipely.

To compete in the semiconductor memory industry,Gbompany must continue to develop technologialyanced products and
processes. The Company believes that expansiitsm sfmiconductor product offerings is necessaméeet expected market demand for
specific memory and imaging solutions. The Compmpyocess development center and largest desigpercare located at its corporate
headquarters in Boise, Idaho. The Company hasaeaeditional product design centers in othertsgia locations around the world. In
addition, the Company develops leading edge phibtaraphy mask technology at its MP Mask joint veaffacility in Boise.

R&D expenses vary primarily with the number of depenent wafers processed, the cost of advancegeguit dedicated to new
product and process development, and personnel. cBsicause of the lead times necessary to manuodats products, the Company
typically begins to process wafers before comptetibperformance and reliability testing. The Ca@mp deems development of a product
complete once the product has been thoroughlywedeand tested for performance and reliability. IR&penses can vary significantly
depending on the timing of product qualificatiothe Company and Intel share R&D process and desigis for NAND Flash equally. The
Company and Nanya also jointly develop processialclgy and designs to manufacture stack DRAM prtslwith each party bearing its
own development costs.




Geographic Information

Sales to customers outside the United States tb$8e billion for 2009 and included $1.2 billiamsales to China, $542 million in sales
to Malaysia, $470 million in sales to Europe, $44illion in sales to Taiwan, and $990 million ineslto the Asia Pacific region (excluding
China, Malaysia and Taiwan). Sales to custometsdrithe United States totaled $4.4 billion fo62@nd $4.0 billion for 2007. As of
September 3, 2009, the Company had net propegyt phd equipment of $4.7 billion in the Unitedt&a$2.1 billion in Singapore, $180
million in Italy, $112 million in Japan and $53 tioh in other countries. (See “Item 8. Financitt8ments and Supplementary Data — Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements — Geograpiitc@hation” and “ltem 1A. Risk Factors.”)

Patents and Licenses

In recent years, the Company has been recognizadeasier in volume and quality of patents issuksl of September 3, 2009, the
Company owned approximately 17,300 U.S. patent2e8@D foreign patents. In addition, the Compaay humerous U.S. and foreign
patent applications pending. The Company’s patestits terms expiring through 2028.

The Company has a number of patent and intellepnaglerty license agreements. Some of these Ecageements require the
Company to make one time or periodic payments. Jdmpany may need to obtain additional patent §esror renew existing license
agreements in the future. The Company is unahpeadict whether these license agreements canta@mel or renewed on acceptable terms.

In recent years, the Company has recovered soiitginffestment in technology through sales of ietglial property rights to joint
venture partners and other third parties. The Gomyis pursuing additional opportunities to recateivestment in intellectual property
through additional sales of intellectual propentyl gotential partnering arrangements.

Employees

As of September 3, 2009, the Company had approgigna8,200 employees, including approximately 9,80the United States, 4,50C
Singapore, 1,900 in Italy, 1,500 in Japan, 800him& and 200 in the United Kingdom. The Compamyrgployees include approximately
1,500 employees in its IM Flash joint ventures tirat located in the United States and 2,000 empkireits TECH joint venture that are
located in Singapore. Approximately 500 of the @amy’s employees in Italy are represented by labganizations that have entered into
national and local labor contracts with the Compamhiie Company’s employment levels can vary depgndin market conditions and the
level of the Company’s production, research andipcband process development. Many of the Comgasyiployees are highly skilled, and
the Company’s continued success depends in partitgability to attract and retain such employe€ke loss of key Company personnel
could have a material adverse effect on the Conipdiusiness, results of operations or financialditoon.

Environmental Compliance

Government regulations impose various environmerttatrols on raw materials and discharges, emissaon solid wastes from the
Company’s manufacturing processes. In 2009, thrafg2my’s wholly-owned wafer fabrication facilitiesrttinued to conform to the
requirements of ISO 14001 certification. To counércertification, the Company met annual requiresanenvironmental policy,
compliance, planning, management, structure argbresbility, training, communication, document aohtoperational control, emergency
preparedness and response, record keeping and emeagreview. While the Company has not experigaegy materially adverse effects
on its operations from environmental regulatiofmgnges in the regulations could necessitate additimapital expenditures, modification of
operations or other compliance actions.

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Officers of the Company are appointed annuallyfeyBoard of Directors. Directors of the Comparg/ elected annually by the
shareholders of the Company. Any directors appdibly the Board of Directors to fill vacancies ba Board serve until the next election by
the shareholders. All officers and directors semtl their successors are duly chosen or eleatedqualified, except in the case of earlier
death, resignation or removal.




As of September 3, 2009, the following executiviicefs and directors of the Company were subjetitéareporting requirements of
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 04133 amended.

Name Age Position

Mark W. Adams 45 Vice President of Worldwide Sal

Steven R. Appleto 49  Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Kipp A. Bedard 50 Vice President of Investor Relatio

D. Mark Durcar 48 President and Chief Operating Offic

Ronald C. Foste 58  Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Gfif
Roderic W. Lewis 54  Vice President of Legal Affairs, General Counseal &orporate Secreta
Patrick T. Otte 47 Vice President of Human Resourt¢

Brian J. Shield: 48 Vice President of Worldwide Wafer Fabricati
Brian M. Shirley 40  Vice President of Memor

Teruaki Aoki 67 Director

James W. Bagle 70 Director

Robert L. Bailey 52 Director

Mercedes Johnsc 55 Director

Lawrence N. Mondn 49 Director

Robert E. Swit: 63 Director

Mark W. Adamgoined the Company in June 2006. From January 20i6he joined the Company, Mr. Adams was thee€hQiperating
Officer of Lexar Media, Inc. Mr. Adams served ks Vice President of Sales and Marketing for Cvedltiabs, Inc. from December 2002 to
January 2006. From March 2000 to September 2002Aams was the Chief Executive Officer of Coresina. Mr. Adams holds a BA in
Economics from Boston College and an MBA from HatvBusiness School.

Steven R. Appletdnined the Company in February 1983 and has senvedrious capacities with the Company and its glidges. Mr.
Appleton first became an officer of the Companirgust 1989 and has served in various officer postwith the Company since that
time. From April 1991 until July 1992 and sinceWMEB94, Mr. Appleton has served on the Company’arBmf Directors. From September
1994 to June 2007, Mr. Appleton served as the bietutive Officer, President and Chairman of tlkaf8 of Directors of the Company. In
June 2007, Mr. Appleton relinquished his positisrPaesident of the Company but retained his positad Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board. Mr. Appleton is a membethef Board of Directors of National Semiconductor@ration. Mr. Appleton holds a
BA in Business Management from Boise State Unitgersi

Kipp A. Bedardoined the Company in November 1983 and has senvedrious capacities with the Company and its slid#ges. Mr.
Bedard first became an officer of the Company imil&l990 and has served in various officer pos#isimce that time. Since January 1994,
Mr. Bedard has served as Vice President of InvdRatations for the Company. Mr. Bedard holds a BBAccounting from Boise State
University.

D. Mark Durcanjoined the Company in June 1984 and has servedrinus technical positions with the Company andutssidiaries
since that time. Mr. Durcan was appointed Chieé@ping Officer in February 2006 and PresidenuimeJ2007. Mr. Durcan has been an
officer of the Company since 1996. Mr. Durcan IscddBS and MChE in Chemical Engineering from Ricéversity.

Ronald C. Fostejoined the Company in April 2008 after serving as@mber of the Board of Directors from June 200Apal
2005. From March 2005 to March 2008, he was thiefGinancial Officer for FormFactor, Inc. Mr. Res previously served in senior
financial management positions for Hewlett-Packaplied Materials, Novell and JDS Uniphase. Moster holds a BA in Economics from
Whitman College and an MBA from the University dfi€ago.

Roderic W. Lewifined the Company in August 1991 and has servedrious capacities with the Company and its sutses. Mr.
Lewis has served as Vice President of Legal Afféirsneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary singel996. Mr. Lewis holds a BA in
Economics and Asian Studies from Brigham Young @rsity and a JD from Columbia University SchooLafv.




Patrick T. Ottehas served as the Company's Vice President of HiReaources since March 2007. Mr. Otte joined Midro1987 and
has served in various positions of increasing resibdity, including Production Manager in seveséMicron’s fabrication facilities,
Operations Manager for Micron Technology lItalia.lSand, Site Director for the Company's faciliyManassas, Virginia. Mr. Otte holds a
Bachelor of Science degree from St. Paul Bible&m@lin Minneapolis, Minnesota.

Brian J. Shieldgoined the Company in November 1986 and has sdnvedrious operational positions with the Compair.. Shields
first became an officer of the Company in March2@@d has been Vice President of Wafer Fabricaiioce December 2005.

Brian M. Shirleyjoined the Company in August 1992 and has servedrious technical positions with the Company. Bhirley
became Vice President of Memory in February 2008. Shirley holds a BS in Electrical Engineeringrfr Stanford University.

Teruaki Aokihas served as President of Sony University sinad 2p05. Dr. Aoki has been associated with Sanges 1970 and has
held various executive positions, including Sefigecutive Vice President and Executive Officer ohg Corporation as well as President
and Chief Operating Officer of Sony Electronic4).&. subsidiary. Dr. Aoki holds a Ph.D. in MatéBaiences from Northwestern Univers
as well as a BS in Applied Physics from the Uniitgrsf Tokyo. He was elected as an IEEE Fello@®3 and serves as Advisory Board
Member of Kellogg School of Management of NorthweestUniversity. Dr. Aoki also serves on the boafr€itizen Holdings Co., Ltd. Dr.
Aoki is the Chairman of the Board’s Compensatiom@uttee.

James W. Bagldyecame the Executive Chairman of Lam Research @atipo (“Lam”), a supplier of semiconductor manutamng
equipment, in June 2005. From August 1997 thraligte 2005, Mr. Bagley served as the Chairman amef Ekecutive Officer of Lam. Mr.
Bagley is a member of the Board of Directors ofalgine, Inc. He has served on the Company’s Bdabdrectors since June 1997. Mr.
Bagley holds a MS and BS in Electrical Engineefiogn Mississippi State University.

Robert L. Baileyhas been Chairman of the Board of Directors of P8€&¥a (“PMC") since 2005 and also served as PMiZiairman
from February 2000 until February 2003. Mr. Bailes been a director of PMC since October 1996alsteserved as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of PMC from July 1997 uritllay 2008. PMC is a leading provider of broadbeachmunication and semiconductor
storage solutions for the next-generation Interét. Bailey holds a BS degree in Electrical Engirieg from the University of Bridgeport
and an MBA from the University of Dallas.

Mercedes Johnsomas the Senior Vice President and Chief Financfit€ of Avago Technologies Limited, a supplierafalog
interface components for communications, indusaral consumer applications, from December 2005uiguAt 2008. Prior to that, she
served as the Senior Vice President, Finance, of ftam June 2004 to January 2005 and as Lam’s Eefncial Officer from May 1997 to
May 2004. Before joining Lam, Ms. Johnson spenyéérs with Applied Materials, Inc., where she sdrin various senior financial
management positions, including Vice President\Wiodldwide Operations Controller. Ms. Johnson ha@dtegree in Accounting from the
University of Buenos Aires and currently servedtmBoard of Directors for Intersil Corporation.

Lawrence N. Mondryas the President and Chief Executive Officer oK@&ito Corporation (“CSK”), a specialty retailer afitomotive
aftermarket parts, from August 2007 to July 2088ior to his appointment at CSK, Mr. Mondry senaedthe Chief Executive Officer of
CompUSA Inc. from November 2003 to May 2006. Miomdry joined CompUSA in 1990. Mr. Mondry currenslgrves on the Board of
Directors of CSK. Mr. Mondry is the Chairman of theard’s Governance Committee and Lead Director.

Robert E. Switis currently Chairman, President and Chief Exeeu@fficer of ADC Telecommunications, Inc., (“ADC’3,supplier of
network infrastructure products and services. $vitz has been President and Chief Executive aoftl€&DC since August 2003 and
Chairman since August 2008. He has been with AiD€es1994 and prior to his current position, ser&L as Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Switz holds an MBrom the University of Bridgeport as well as gdee in Marketing/Economics from
Quinnipiac University. Mr. Switz also serves oe Board of Directors for ADC and Broadcom Corpamati Mr. Switz is the Chairman of
the Board’s Audit Committee.

There is no family relationship between any directoexecutive officer of the Company.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the factors discussed elsewheraigForm 10-K, the following are important factevlich could cause actual results or
events to differ materially from those containedny forward-looking statements made by or on Baifahe Company.

We have experienced dramatic declines in averagellggg prices for our semiconductor memory productswhich have adversely
affected our business.

For 2009, average selling prices of DRAM and NANBgh products decreased 52% and 56%, respectaglygmpared to 2008. For
2008, average selling prices of DRAM and NAND Flasbducts decreased 51% and 67%, respectivelygrapared to 2007. For 2007,
average selling prices of DRAM and NAND Flash pretdudecreased 23% and 56%, respectively, as cothag906. In some prior
periods, average selling prices for our memory potglhave been below our manufacturing costsvdfae selling prices for our memory
products remain depressed or decrease faster th@amdecrease per gigabit costs, as they redemtly;, our business, results of operatior
financial condition could be materially adverselieated.

We may be unable to generate sufficient cash floves obtain access to external financing necessary fond our operations and make
adequate capital investments.

Our cash flows from operations depend primariljttvolume of semiconductor memory sold, averatimgerices and per unit
manufacturing costs. To develop new product andgss technologies, support future growth, achigezating efficiencies and maintain
product quality, we must make significant capitaldstments in manufacturing technology, facilitesl capital equipment, research and
development, and product and process technology.ciitently estimate our capital spending to beveen $750 million and $850 million
for 2010. As of September 3, 2009, we had castegnt/alents and short-term investments totaling&8 million, of which $302 million
consisted of cash and investments of IM Flash aa@H that would generally not be available to firmoecir other operations. In the past we
have utilized external sources of financing wheedssl and access to capital markets has historizeéiy very important to us. As a result of
the severe downturn in the semiconductor memonketathe downturn in general economic conditiomsl the adverse conditions in the
credit markets, it may be difficult to obtain firdng on terms acceptable to us. We significarguced our actual capital expenditures for
2009 and planned capital expenditures for 2010adufition, we are considering further financingalatives, continuing to limit capital
expenditures and implementing further cost-cutiinitiatives. There can be no assurance that webeibble to generate sufficient cash flows
or find other sources of financing to fund our @iems; make adequate capital investments to renmanpetitive in terms of technology
development and cost efficiency; or access capitakets. Our inability to do the foregoing coul/b a material adverse effect on our
business and results of operations.

We may be unable to reduce our per gigabit manufaating costs at the rate average selling prices décé.

Our gross margins are dependent upon continuingedses in per gigabit manufacturing costs achidwedigh improvements in our
manufacturing processes, including reducing thesidie of our existing products. In future periogls, may be unable to reduce our per
gigabit manufacturing costs at sufficient levelsniprove or maintain gross margins. Factors thayrimit our ability to reduce costs
include, but are not limited to, strategic proddieersification decisions affecting product mixetimcreasing complexity of manufacturing
processes, changes in process technologies orgisathat inherently may require relatively larger sizes. Per gigabit manufacturing costs
may also be affected by the relatively smaller patihn quantities and shorter product lifecycles@ftain specialty memory products.

Consolidation of industry participants and governmaetal assistance to some of our competitors may coitiute to uncertainty in the
semiconductor market and negatively impact our abity to compete.

In recent periods manufacturing supply has sigaifity exceeded customer demand resulting in sigaifideclines in average selling
prices of DRAM and NAND Flash products and substhofperating losses by the Company and its congusti The operating losses as well
as limited access to sources of financing haveédete deterioration in the financial conditioneohumber of industry participants. Some of
our competitors may try to enhance their capagity lawer their cost structure through consolidati@onsolidation of industry competitors
could put us at a competitive disadvantage. Iritiid some governments have provided, or are denisig, significant financial assistance
for some of our competitors.
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The recent economic downturn in the worldwide econay and the semiconductor industry may harm our busiess.

The downturn in the worldwide economy, includingamtinuing downturn in the semiconductor memorystdy, had an adverse effect
on our business. Adverse economic conditions aff@esumer demand for devices that incorporatgoaducts, such as personal computers,
mobile phones, Flash memory cards and USB deviResluced demand for our products could result iricoed market oversupply and
significant decreases in our average selling pridesontinuation of current negative conditionsaarldwide credit markets would limit our
ability to obtain external financing to fund ouresptions and capital expenditures. In additionyweg experience losses on our holdings of
cash and investments due to failures of finanaistitutions and other parties. Difficult econornanditions may also result in a higher rate of
losses on our accounts receivables due to crefditilie As a result, our business, results of afg@ns or financial condition could be
materially adversely affected.

The semiconductor memory industry is highly competive.

We face intense competition in the semiconductamorg market from a number of companies, includitigda Memory, Inc.; Hynix
Semiconductor Inc.; Samsung Electronics Co., [3dnDisk Corporation; and Toshiba Corporation. Sofraur competitors are large
corporations or conglomerates that may have greaseurces or greater access to resources, inglgdvernmental resources, to withstand
downturns in the semiconductor markets in whichcammpete, invest in technology and capitalize omjnoopportunities. Our competitors
seek to increase silicon capacity, improve yieldduce die size and minimize mask levels in theidpct designs. The transitions to smaller
line-width process technologies and 300mm wafethérindustry have resulted in significant increaisethe worldwide supply of
semiconductor memory. Increases in worldwide suppsemiconductor memory also result from semicmbok memory fab capacity
expansions, either by way of new facilities, ina@d capacity utilization or reallocation of othensconductor production to semiconductor
memory production. Increases in worldwide suggdlgemiconductor memory, if not accompanied witmogensurate increases in demand,
would lead to further declines in average sellinggs for our products and would materially advigrséfect our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

Our joint ventures and strategic partnerships invole numerous risks.

We have entered into partnering arrangements tafaature products and develop new manufacturingge® technologies and
products. These arrangements include our IM ANBND Flash joint ventures with Intel, our Inoterd&kBM joint venture with Nanya, our
TECH DRAM joint venture, our MP Mask joint ventungth Photronics and our CMOS image sensor wafeplsuggreement with Aptina

These joint ventures and strategic partnershipsabject to various risks that could adverselgcatthe value of our investments and our
results of operations. These risks include thiewohg:

« our interests could diverge from our partners anfiiture or we may not be able to agree with pastoa ongoing manufacturing
and operational activities, or on the amount, tgmdm nature of further investments in our joint tee;

« recognition of our share of potential Inotera amtifa losses in our results of operation;

« due to financial constraints, our partners may fggle to meet their commitments to us or our jeéritures and may pose cre
risks for our transactions with the|

« the terms of our arrangements may turn out to iavwanable;

« cash flows may be inadequate to fund increasedatapguirements;

« we may experience difficulties in transferring teclogy to joint ventures;

« we may experience difficulties and delays in rargginoduction at joint ventures;

«» these operations may be less cost-efficient asudtref underutilized capacity; and

« political or economic instability may occur in theuntries where our joint ventures and/or partaeedocated.

If our joint ventures and strategic partnershipswasuccessful, our business, results of operatinfisancial condition may be adversely
affected.
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Our ownership interest in Inotera Memories, Inc. involves numerous risks.

In the first quarter of 2009, we acquired a 35.5#t@rship interest in Inotera Memories, Inc., a mhpktraded Taiwanese DRAM
memory manufacturer, from Qimonda, AG. In Augu3®2, our ownership interest in Inotera was reduoezd.8% as a result of Inotera’s
issuance of common stock in a public offering fop@ximately $310 million. In connection with daterest in Inotera, we also have rights
and obligations to purchase up to 50% of the wafeduction of Inotera. Our acquisition of an im&rin Inotera involves numerous risks
including the following:

« Inotera’s ability to meet its ongoing obligations;

« costs associated with manufacturing inefficiencésslting from underutilized capacity;

« difficulties in converting Inotera production froimonda’s trench technology to our stack technaglogy

« difficulties in obtaining financing for capital epditures necessary to convert Inotera productiaut stack technology;
« increasing our debt to finance the acquisitionnoftéra shares;

« uncertainties around the timing and amount of wafgply we will receive under the supply agreement;

« risks relating to actions that may be taken ofdted by Qimonda’s bankruptcy administrator relgtio Qimonda’s transfer to
the Company of its Inotera shares and to the plessection of or failure to perform under certaatent and technology licer
agreements between the Company and Qimc

« obligations during the technology transition periogrocure product based on a competitor’s teagylhich may be difficult
to sell and to provide support for such producthwespect to which we have limited technologicaderstanding; an

« the effect on our margins associated with our @aidgn to purchase product utilizing Qimonda’s ttetechnology at a relatively
higher cost than other products manufactured ndsselling them potentially at a lower price tloéimer products produced by
us.

Pursuant to our obligations under a supply agreémih Inotera, we recorded $95 million of chargesost of goods sold in 2009
related to underutilized capacity and purchasedrfléon of trench DRAM products from Inotera.

We may incur additional restructure charges in futue periods.

In response to a severe downturn in the semicondusmory industry and global economic conditiams,implemented restructure
initiatives in 2009, 2008 and 2007 that resultedetcharges of $70 million, $33 million and $19liom, respectively. The restructure
initiatives included shutting down our 200mm wadltgrication facility in Boise, suspending the protlon ramp of a new fabrication facility
in Singapore and other personnel cost reducti@repending on market conditions, in future periogsmay implement further restructure
initiatives. As a result of these initiatives, wauld incur restructure charges, lose productiaputiilose key personnel and experience
disruptions in our operations and difficulties ilidering products timely.
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An adverse determination that our products or manuécturing processes infringe the intellectual propdy rights of others could
materially adversely affect our business, resultsf@mperations or financial condition.

On January 13, 2006, Rambus, Inc. (“Rambus”) fdddwsuit against us in the U.S. District Courttfog Northern District of California.
Rambus alleges that certain of our DDR2, DDR3, RADR and RLDRAM Il products infringe as many as fteen Rambus patents and
seeks monetary damages, treble damages, and impinetief. The accused products account for aiiggmt portion of our net sales. On Ju
2, 2006, we filed an answer and counterclaim ag&ambus alleging, among other things, antitrustfaaud claims. On January 9, 2009, in
another lawsuit involving the Company and Rambukiawolving allegations by Rambus of patent infengent against ugs the U.S. Distric
Court for the District of Delaware, Judge Robinsmered an opinion in favor of us holding that Rasmbad engaged in spoliation and that
the twelve Rambus patents in the suit were uneeédle against the Company. Rambus subsequentakgothe Delaware Cousttlecisior
to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circ@ubsequently, the Northern District of CalifiarCourt stayed a trial of on the patent
phase of the Northern District of California casmging the outcome of the appeal of the DelawarngtGospoliation decision or further orc
of the California Court. (See “ltem 3. Legal Predimgs” for additional details on this lawsuit asthier Rambus matters pending in the U.S.
and Europe.)

On March 6, 2009, Panavision Imaging LLC filed sagainst the Company and Aptina Imaging Corporatisen a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, in the U.S. District @dar the Central District of California. The cpiaint alleges that certain of the Company
and Aptina’s image sensor products infringe found®ésion Imaging U.S. patents and seeks injunetlief, damages, attorneys’ fees, and
costs.

On March 24, 2009, Accolade Systems LLC filed agiinst the Company and Aptina in the U.S. Dist@iotrt for the Eastern District
Texas alleging that certain of the Company andgii image sensor products infringe one Accolads#e®ys U.S. patent. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief, damages, attorneys’ faad,costs. Accolade Systems never served the agmym@nd on October 15, 2009, filed a
motion to dismiss the complaint against the Compary Aptina without prejudice.

We are unable to predict the outcome of assertbirdringement made against us. A court detertdgmathat our products or
manufacturing processes infringe the intellectwapprty rights of others could result in signifitdiability and/or require us to make material
changes to our products and/or manufacturing psesesAny of the foregoing results could have eentadverse effect on our business,
results of operations or financial condition.

We have a number of patent and intellectual prggexnse agreements. Some of these license agrésmequire us to make one time
or periodic payments. We may need to obtain amtthfi patent licenses or renew existing licenseeageats in the future. We are unable to
predict whether these license agreements can b@éebtor renewed on acceptable terms.

An adverse outcome relating to allegations of antimmpetitive conduct could materially adversely affetour business, results of
operations or financial condition.

A number of purported class action price-fixing faits have been filed against us and other DRAMpEens. Numerous cases have
been filed in various state and federal courtsréiageclaims on behalf of a purported class of widlials and entities that indirectly purchased
DRAM and/or products containing DRAM from varioufRBM suppliers during the time period from April 1999 through at least June 30,
2002. The complaints allege violations of the @asijurisdictions’ antitrust, consumer protectiow/®r unfair competition laws relating to
the sale and pricing of DRAM products and seektjaird several damages, trebled, restitution, cogtyest and attorneys’ fees. A number
of these cases have been removed to federal audittansferred to the U.S. District Court for thertiiern District of California (San
Francisco) for consolidated pre-trial proceedin@s January 29, 2008, the Northern District of foatfiia Court granted in part and denied in
part our motion to dismiss the plaintiff's secomdemded consolidated complaint. The District Ceutisequently certified the decision for
interlocutory appeal. On February 27, 2008, pitigifiled a third amended complaint. On June 2808, the United States Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit agreed to consider plaintiffsterlocutory appeal. (See “Item 3. Legal Predi@gs” for additional details on these cases
and related matters.)

Various states, through their Attorneys Generalelfded suit against us and other DRAM manufaatiedleging violations of state and
federal competition laws. The amended complaiegak, among other things, violations of the Sheret, Cartwright Act, and certain
other states’ consumer protection and antitruss lamd seeks damages, and injunctive and othef. r€ie October 3, 2008, the California
Attorney General filed a similar lawsuit in Califda Superior Court, purportedly on behalf of lo€allifornia government entities, alleging,
among other things, violations of the Cartwright And state unfair competition law. (See “ltemL&gal Proceedings” for additional details
on these cases and related matters.)
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Three purported class action lawsuits alleginggsfiking of Flash products have been filed agairssin Canada asserting violations of
the Canadian Competition Act. These cases adaértscon behalf of a purported class of individuatsl entities that purchased Flash
memory directly and indirectly from various Flaskemmory suppliers. (See “Item 3. Legal Proceedirigsadditional details on these cases
and related matters.)

On May 5, 2004, Rambus filed a lawsuit in the SigreCZourt of the State of California (San Franci€munty) against us and other
DRAM suppliers. The complaint alleges various esusf action under California state law includiroggpiracy to restrict output and fix
prices of Rambus DRAM ("RDRAM"), and unfair compietin. The complaint seeks joint and several darpagebled, punitive damages,
attorneys’ fees, costs, and a permanent injunetigoining the defendants from the conduct allegetthé complaint. Trial is currently
scheduled to begin in January 2010. (See “lterhe®jal Proceedings” for additional details on ttase and other Rambus matters pending in
the U.S. and Europe.)

We are unable to predict the outcome of these lasvsén adverse court determination in any of ¢éhkesvsuits alleging violations of
antitrust laws could result in significant liabjliand could have a material adverse effect on asinless, results of operations or financial
condition.

An adverse outcome relating to allegations of viotans of securities laws could materially adverselgffect our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

On February 24, 2006, a number of purported clessracomplaints were filed against us and certdiour officers in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Idaho alleging claims wndSection 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exghakct of 1934, as amended, and Rule
10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The cases purpbe trought on behalf of a class of purchasersioftock during the period February 24,
2001 to February 13, 2003. The five lawsuits Haeen consolidated and a consolidated amendedaxdtiea complaint was filed on July 24,
2006. The complaint generally alleges violatiohfederal securities laws based on, among othag#hiclaimed misstatements or omissions
regarding alleged illegal price-fixing conduct. eTtomplaint seeks unspecified damages, interéstpays' fees, costs, and expenses. On
December 19, 2007, the Court issued an order giagithe class but reducing the class period talmasers of our stock during the period
from February 24, 2001 to September 18, 2002. (Bem 3. Legal Proceedings” for additional dedadh these cases and related matters.)

We are unable to predict the outcome of these caSesdverse court determination in any of theglaction lawsuits against us could
result in significant liability and could have a tm@al adverse effect on our business, resultpefations or financial condition.

Our debt level is higher than compared to historichperiods.

We currently have a higher level of debt compacekiistorical periods. As of September 3, 2009 wag $3.1 billion of debt. We may
need to incur additional debt in the future. Ourtdevel could adversely impact us. For exampt®iild:

« make it more difficult for us to make payments am debt;
« require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofoash flow from operations and other capital resesito debt service;

« limit our future ability to raise funds for capitekpenditures, acquisitions, research and developarel other general corpor
requirements

« increase our vulnerability to adverse economicsamdiconductor memory industry conditions;
« expose us to fluctuations in interest rates witipeet to that portion of our debt which is at daafale rate of interest; and
« require us to make additional investments in je@ritures to maintain compliance with financial auaets.
Several of our credit facilities, one of which wasedified during 2009, have covenants which requ&¢o maintain minimum levels of
tangible net worth and cash and investments. Aeptember 3, 2009, we were in compliance withdalot covenants. If we are unable to

continue to be in compliance with our debt covesaot obtain waivers, an event of default couldrlagered, which, if not cured, could ca
the maturity of other borrowings to be accelerated become due and currently payable.
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Covenants in our debt instruments may obligate usotrepay debt, increase contributions to our TECH jint venture and limit our
ability to obtain financing.

Our ability to comply with the financial and othesvenants contained in our debt may be affectegicloypomic or business conditions or
other events. As of September 3, 2009, our 85%edWlfEECH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd., (“TECsUibsidiary, had $548 million
outstanding under a credit facility with covenathigt, among other requirements, establish cerigundity, debt service coverage and
leverage ratios for TECH and restrict TECH’s apitih incur indebtedness, create liens and acquidéspose of assets. If TECH does not
comply with these debt covenants and restrictitiis,debt may be deemed to be in default and thedbxlared payable. There can be no
assurance that TECH will be able to comply withciissenants. Additionally, if TECH is unable to agpts borrowings when due, the lenders
under TECH'’s credit facility could proceed agaisisbstantially all of TECH's assets. In the firgager of 2010, TECH modified its debt
covenants. In connection with the modification; guarantee of TECH’s debt increased from approteiya 3% to approximately 85% of
the outstanding amount borrowed under TECH’s crfeditity. Our guarantee could increase up to 1@ff%he outstanding amount borrowed
under the facility based on further increases inawnership interest in TECH and other conditiofSTECH’s debt is accelerated, we may
not have sufficient assets to repay amounts duéstig covenant restrictions may limit our ability obtain additional debt financing. To
avoid covenant defaults we may be required to rejedoy obligations and/or make additional contribwsi to TECH, all of which could
adversely affect our liquidity and financial conalit.

We expect to make future acquisitions and alliancesvhich involve numerous risks.

Acquisitions and the formation of alliances, sushant ventures and other partnering arrangements|ve numerous risks including t
following:

« difficulties in integrating the operations, techogikes and products of acquired or newly formedtiesti

« increasing capital expenditures to upgrade and taiaifacilities;

« increasing debt to finance any acquisition or fdforaof a new business;

« difficulties in protecting our intellectual propgras we enter into a greater number of licensingngements;
« diverting management’s attention from normal dajberations;

« managing larger or more complex operations anditiasiand employees in separate geographic aagals;
« hiring and retaining key employees.

Acquisitions of, or alliances with, high-technologympanies are inherently risky, and any futuredaations may not be successful and
may materially adversely affect our business, tesafloperations or financial condition.

New product development may be unsuccessful.

We are developing new products that complementraditional memory products or leverage their uhdeg design or process
technology. We have made significant investmenfgroduct and process technologies and anticipqteneling significant resources for new
semiconductor product development over the nexérsdyears. The process to develop DRAM, NAND Flasd certain specialty memory
products requires us to demonstrate advanced funadiiy and performance, many times well in advaofca planned ramp of production, in
order to secure design wins with our customerser&lecan be no assurance that our product develapefierts will be successful, that we
will be able to cost-effectively manufacture newghicts, that we will be able to successfully matkese products or that margins generated
from sales of these products will recover costdenfelopment efforts.

The future success of our Imaging foundry business dependent on Aptina’s market success and customgemand.
In recent quarters, Aptina’s net sales and grosgimadecreased due to declining demand and inedezsmpetition. There can be no

assurance that Aptina will be able to grow or naimits market share or gross margins. Any redadt Aptina’s market share could
adversely affect the operating results of our Imgdoundry business. Aptina’s success dependsmméoer of factors, including:
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« development of products that maintain a technokdgidvantage over the products of our competitors;

« accurate prediction of market requirements andwwvglstandards, including pixel resolution, outpierface standards, power
requirements, optical lens size, input standardisadimer requirement

« timely completion and introduction of new imaginggucts that satisfy customer requirements; and

« timely achievement of design wins with prospectiustomers, as manufacturers may be reluctant togehiheir source of
components due to the significant costs, time reffnd risk associated with qualifying a new sugp

Depressed pricing for semiconductor memory productsnay lead to future losses and inventory write-dows.

As a result of the significant decreases in avesafieng prices for our semiconductor memory prdduwe recorded charges of $603
million in aggregate for 2009, $282 million in aggate for 2008 and $20 million in 2007 to write dowwentories to their estimated market
value. Differences in forecasted average sellimgep used in calculating lower of cost or marldjustments can result in significant changes
in the estimated net realizable value of produe¢imories and accordingly the amount of wdtawn recorded. For example, a 5% varianc
the estimated selling prices would have change@stimated market value of our semiconductor menrgntory by approximately $75
million at September 3, 2009. If the estimatedketwalues of products held in finished goods andkwin process inventories at a quarter-
end date are below the manufacturing cost of thesgucts, we will recognize charges to cost of gosald to write down the carrying value
of our inventories to market value.

The inability to reach an acceptable agreement witlour TECH joint venture partners regarding the future of TECH after its
shareholders’ agreement expires in April 2011 coulthave a significant adverse effect on our DRAM prodction and results of
operation.

Since 1998, we have participated in TECH, a sentiootor memory manufacturing joint venture in Singi@pamong the Company,
Canon Inc. (“Canon”) and Hewlett-Packard CompamyR”). As of September 3, 2009, the ownership of TECH kedd approximately 85¢
by us, approximately 11% by Canon and approximatébyby HP. The financial results of TECH are inield in our consolidated financial
statements. In 2009, TECH accounted for 20% ototat DRAM gigabit production. The shareholdeagreement for TECH expires in
April 2011. In the first quarter of 2010, TECH e&ged a notice from HP that it does not intendxteed the TECH joint venture beyond
April 2011. We are working with HP and Canon tadie a resolution of the matter. The parties’ ilighio reach a resolution of this matter
prior to April 2011 could result in the dissolutiohTECH and have a significant adverse impactwnRAM production and results of
operation.

Products that fail to meet specifications, are defgive or that are otherwise incompatible with end ges could impose significant costs
on us.

Products that do not meet specifications or thatain, or are perceived by our customers to conthfects or that are otherwise
incompatible with end uses could impose significatts on us or otherwise materially adverselycaffeir business, results of operations or
financial condition.

Because the design and production process for sadictor memory is highly complex, it is possililattwe may produce products that
do not comply with customer specifications, contdéfiects or are otherwise incompatible with endsudg despite design review, quality
control and product qualification procedures, peofid with nonconforming, defective or incompatiblegucts occur after we have shipped
such products, we could be adversely affectedvuers¢ways, including the following:

« we may be required to replace product or othens@apensate customers for costs incurred or dan@esed by defective
incompatible product, ar

« we may encounter adverse publicity, which couldseaa decrease in sales of our products.
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Changes in foreign currency exchange rates could rtexially adversely affect our business, results afperations or financial condition.
Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbel.S. GAAP and are reported in U.S. dollafsross our multi-national

operations, there are transactions and balancesrdeated in other currencies, primarily the Singepdollar, euro and yen. We recorded net

losses from changes in currency exchange rate3Mirilion for 2009 and of $25 million for 2008. &\éstimate that, based on its assets and

liabilities denominated in currencies other tham thS. dollar as of September 3, 2009, a 1% chiantle exchange rate versus the U.S. d

would result in foreign currency gains or losseambroximately U.S. $3 million for the Singapordlaoand $1 million for the euro and

yen. In the event that the U.S. dollar weakensiagntly compared to the Singapore dollar, eurd gen, our results of operations

financial condition will be adversely affected.

We face risks associated with our international sak and operations that could materially adverselyféect our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

Sales to customers outside the United States ajppated 81% of our consolidated net sales for 200%ddition, we have manufactur
operations in China, Italy, Japan, Puerto Rico &imgjapore. Our international sales and operatoasubject to a variety of risks, including:

« currency exchange rate fluctuations;

« export and import duties, changes to import andebqegulations, and restrictions on the transfdunds;
« political and economic instability;

« problems with the transportation or delivery of pooducts;

« issues arising from cultural or language differenaed labor unrest;

« longer payment cycles and greater difficulty inlecing accounts receivable;

« compliance with trade, technical standards andrdéves in a variety of jurisdictions;

» changes in economic policies of foreign governmeanisl

« difficulties in staffing and managing internatiomgderations.

These factors may materially adversely affect augifess, results of operations or financial coaditi
Our net operating loss and tax credit carryforwardsmay be limited.

We have a valuation allowance against substantdillgf our U.S. net deferred tax assets. As git&maber 3, 2009, we had aggregate
U.S. tax net operating loss carryforwards of $4llibh and unused U.S. tax credit carryforward$af2 million. We also had unused state
tax net operating loss carryforwards of $2.6 hilland unused state tax credits of $198 millionbsantially all of the net operating loss
carryforwards expire in 2022 to 2029 and substiyti of the tax credit carryforwards expire i3 to 2029. Utilization of these net
operating losses and credit carryforwards is degendpon us achieving sustained profitability. aAsonsequence of prior business
acquisitions, utilization of the tax benefits fanse of the tax carryforwards is subject to limidas imposed by Section 382 of the Internal

Revenue Code and some portion or all of these foawgards may not be available to offset any futaseable income. The determination of
the limitations is complex and requires significartigment and analysis of past transactions.
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If our manufacturing process is disrupted, our busness, results of operations or financial conditiocould be materially adversely
affected.

We manufacture products using highly complex preesshat require technologically advanced equipraedtcontinuous modification
improve yields and performance. Difficulties iretthanufacturing process or the effects from a ghifroduct mix can reduce yields or
disrupt production and may increase our per gigahitufacturing costs. Additionally, our controkeowperations at our IM Flash, TECH,
Inotera and MP Mask joint ventures may be limitgdbbrr agreements with our partners. From timénte t we have experienced minor
disruptions in our manufacturing process as a redydower outages, improperly functioning equiptamd equipment failures. If producti
at a fabrication facility is disrupted for any reasmanufacturing yields may be adversely affecredte may be unable to meet our custon
requirements and they may purchase products frower suppliers. This could result in a significantrease in manufacturing costs or loss of
revenues or damage to customer relationships, wdtiakd materially adversely affect our businessults of operations or financial conditi

Disruptions in our supply of raw materials could mderially adversely affect our business, results adperations or financial condition.

Our operations require raw materials that meettm@standards. We generally have multiple souatesipply for our raw
materials. However, only a limited number of signsl are capable of delivering certain raw matsitlaht meet our standards. Various
factors could reduce the availability of raw makrisuch as silicon wafers, photomasks, chemigakgs, lead frames and molding
compound. Shortages may occur from time to timaénfuture. In addition, disruptions in transpdidn lines could delay our receipt of raw
materials. Lead times for the supply of raw malerhave been extended in the past. If our supfplgw materials is disrupted or our lead
times extended, our business, results of operatipfisancial condition could be materially advdysaffected.
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The Company’s corporate headquarters are locatBdige, Idaho. The following is a summary of thimgipal facilities owned by the
Company:

Location Principal Operations

Boise, ldahc R&D including wafer fabrication and reticle manufaing

Lehi, Utah Wafer fabricatior

Manassas, Virginii Wafer fabricatior

Singapore Two wafer fabrication facilities and a test, asshnamd module assembly facili
Nishiwaki City, Japal Wafer fabricatior

Avezzano, Italy Wafer fabricatior

Nampa, Idah¢ Test

Aguadilla, Puerto Rici Module assembly and te

Xi’an, Chine Test

The Company also owns and leases a number of faitiéties in locations throughout the world tha¢ aised for design, research and
development, and sales and marketing activitidsee Company'’s facility in Lehi is owned and operatgdts IM Flash joint venture with
Intel. (See “Item 8. Financial Statements and $mppntary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financiae®tents — Consolidated Variable
Interest Entities — NAND Flash Joint Ventures witkel.”) One of the Company’s wafer fabricatiorifdies in Singapore is owned by its
TECH joint venture and collateralizes, in part, FE€$548 million credit facility. (See “ltem 8. fancial Statements and Supplementary
Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemeMSGH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd.”) The Canys other wafer fabrication
facility in Singapore is owned by its IM Flash Sappre joint venture. The IM Flash Singapore facivas substantially completed in the f
quarter of 2009 but has not been equipped. Inl&ctd008, the Company and Intel agreed to susmeitcig and the ramp of production at
IM Flash’s Singapore wafer fabrication plant. (Ztition of the facility is dependent on market ctionds.

In the first quarter of 2009, the Company acquaedb.5% ownership interest in Inotera. As a resfullhis acquisition, the Company has
rights and obligations to purchase up to 50% ofwhéer production of Inotera. (See “ltem 8. FinahStatements and Supplementary Data —
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme Supplemental Balance Sheet Information — EquigtHdd Investments — DRAM joint ventures
with Nanya .”)

The Company believes that its existing facilities suitable and adequate for its present purpobles.Company does not identify or

allocate assets by operating segment. (See “ltdfin@ncial Statements and Supplementary Data edNotConsolidated Financial
Statements — Geographic Information.”)
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Patent Matters

On August 28, 2000, the Company filed a complajailast Rambus, Inc. (“Rambus”) in the U.S. Dist@cturt for the District of
Delaware seeking monetary damages and declaratdrinpunctive relief. Among other things, the Campg’s complaint (as amended)
alleges violation of federal antitrust laws, breatlcontract, fraud, deceptive trade practices, rmagligent misrepresentation. The complaint
also seeks a declaratory judgment (a) that ceRambus patents are not infringed by the Compamyinaalid, and/or are unenforceable, (b)
that the Company has an implied license to thosenps and (c) that Rambus is estopped from emfgritiose patents against the
Company. On February 15, 2001, Rambus filed awanand counterclaim in Delaware denying that toen@any is entitled to relief,
alleging infringement of the eight Rambus patelate( amended to add four additional patents) naméte Company’s declaratory
judgment claim, and seeking monetary damages audcitive relief. In the Delaware action, the Compaubsequently added claims ¢
defenses based on Rambus’s alleged spoliationidémee and litigation misconduct. The spoliation #tigation misconduct claims and
defenses were heard in a bench trial before JudgeBon in October 2007. On January 9, 2009, J&idenson entered an opinion in favor
of the Company holding that Rambus had engagepdhiagion and that the twelve Rambus patents irstiewere unenforceable against the
Company. Rambus subsequently appealed the detistbr U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Gttcciihat appeal is pending.

A number of other suits involving Rambus are cuiyepending in Europe alleging that certain of @@mpany’s SDRAM and DDR
SDRAM products infringe various of Rambus’ courtpunterparts to its European patent 525 068, ifegudn September 1, 2000, Rambus
filed suit against Micron Semiconductor (Deutscla@mbH in the District Court of Mannheim, Germaow, September 22, 2000, Rambus
filed a complaint against the Company and Reptr@midistributor of the Company’s products) in theu@ of First Instance of Paris, France;
on September 29, 2000, the Company filed suit ag&ambus in the Civil Court of Milan, Italy, alieg invalidity and non-infringement. In
addition, on December 29, 2000, the Company filetlagainst Rambus in the Civil Court of Avezzaltaly, alleging invalidity and non-
infringement of the Italian counterpart to Europgatent 1 004 956. Additionally, on August 14, 20Rambus filed suit against Micron
Semiconductor (Deutschland) GmbH in the Districu@@f Mannheim, Germany alleging that certaintef Company’s DDR SDRAM
products infringe Rambus’ country counterpartdsdEiuropean patent 1 022 642. In the Europeas agdinst the Company, Rambus is
seeking monetary damages and injunctive reliebs8guent to the filing of the various Europeansstiite European Patent Office (the
“EPQ") declared Rambus’ 525 068 and 1 004 956 Eemoppatents invalid and revoked the patents. €bkarhtion of invalidity with respect
to the ‘068 patent was upheld on appeal. Themalgilaims of the '956 patent also were declaredlict on appeal, but the EPO ultimately
granted a Rambus request to amend the claims bggaddumber of limitations.

On January 13, 2006, Rambus, Inc. (“Rambus”) fidddwsuit against the Company in the U.S. Disttiotrt for the Northern District of
California. Rambus alleges that certain of the Canyys DDR2, DDR3, RLDRAM, and RLDRAM II productsfimge as many as fourteen
Rambus patents and seeks monetary damages, tegbégds, and injunctive relief. The accused procaceunt for a significant portion of
the Company's net sales. On June 2, 2006, the Goniiied an answer and counterclaim against Ranaliaging, among other things,
antitrust and fraud claims. On January 9, 200@niother lawsuit involving the Company and Rammgiavolving allegations by Rambus
patent infringement against the Company in the DiStrict Court for the District of Delaware, Judgebinson entered an opinion in favor of
the Company holding that Rambus had engaged inasipol and that the twelve Rambus patents in tliteasere unenforceable against the
Company. Rambus subsequently appealed the Del&@oand’s decision to the U.S. Court of Appealstfte Federal Circuit. Subsequently,
the Northern District of California Court stayedtrial of the patent phase of the Northern DistocCalifornia case pending the outcome of
appeal of the Delaware Court’s spoliation decisiofurther order of the California Court.

On March 6, 2009, Panavision Imaging, LLC filedt®gainst the Company and Aptina Imaging Corponatioen a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Aptina’ly the U.S. District Court for the Central Distrift California. The complaint alleges that certafrihe
Company and Aptina’s image sensor products infrioge Panavision Imaging U.S. patents and seeksative relief, damages, attorneys’
fees, and costs.

On March 24, 2009, Accolade Systems LLC filed agiinst the Company and Aptina in the U.S. Distiotrt for the Eastern District
Texas alleging that certain of the Company andgii image sensor products infringe one Accolads#e®ys U.S. patent. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief, damages, attorneys’ faad, costs. Accolade Systems never served the agry@nd on October 15, 2009, filed a
motion to dismiss the complaint against the Compary Aptina without prejudice.
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The Company is unable to predict the outcome ofdlseiits. A court determination that the Compapytslucts or manufacturing
processes infringe the product or process inteldgiroperty rights of others could result in sfgmint liability and/or require the Company to
make material changes to its products and/or matwfag processes. Any of the foregoing resulidddave a material adverse effect on
Company’s business, results of operations or firgueondition.

Antitrust Matters

A number of purported class action price-fixing faits have been filed against the Company and @R&M suppliers. Four cases
have been filed in the U.S. District Court for therthern District of California asserting claims lo@half of a purported class of individuals
and entities that indirectly purchased DRAM anghiarducts containing DRAM from various DRAM supp§eturing the time period from
April 1, 1999 through at least June 30, 2002. dtmplaints allege price fixing in violation of fedé antitrust laws and various state antitrust
and unfair competition laws and seek treble mogyetamages, restitution, costs, interest and atysfriees. In addition, at least sixty-four
cases have been filed in various state courtstaggetaims on behalf of a purported class of iadirpurchasers of DRAM. Cases have been
filed in the following states: Arkansas, Arizoi@glifornia, Florida, Hawaii, lowa, Kansas, Massas#tts, Maine, Michigan, Minnesota,
Mississippi, Montana, North Carolina, North Dakdtegbraska, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexievada, New York, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, South Dakota, Tennessee, Utah, Vérioginia, Wisconsin, and West Virginia, and alsahe District of Columbia and
Puerto Rico. The complaints purport to be on Hedfad class of individuals and entities that iedity purchased DRAM and/or products
containing DRAM in the respective jurisdictions uhgr various time periods ranging from April 1999dahgh at least June 2002. The
complaints allege violations of the various juridtins’ antitrust, consumer protection and/or unéaimpetition laws relating to the sale and
pricing of DRAM products and seek joint and sevel@hages, trebled, as well as restitution, castistést and attorneys’ fees. A number of
these cases have been removed to federal couttaarsderred to the U.S. District Court for the Nhentn District of California (San Francisco)
for consolidated pre-trial proceedings. On Jan2&xy2008, the Northern District of California Cogranted in part and denied in part the
Company’s motion to dismiss plaintiff's second anheth consolidated complaint. Plaintiffs subsequyefildd a motion seeking certification
for interlocutory appeal of the decision. On Fettp27, 2008, plaintiffs filed a third amended cdangt. On June 26, 2008, the United St
Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit agreed tosiler plaintiffs’ interlocutory appeal.

Additionally, three cases have been filed agaimstGompany in the following Canadian courts: SigpeéZourt, District of Montreal,
Province of Quebec; Ontario Superior Court of &estOntario; and Supreme Court of British Columbfancouver Registry, British
Columbia. The substantive allegations in thesesase similar to those asserted in the DRAM astitcases filed in the United
States. Plaintiffs’ motion for class certificatioras denied in the British Columbia and Quebeccas®ay and June 2008,
respectively. Plaintiffs have filed an appeal afle of those decisions. Those appeals are pending.

In addition, various states, through their Attorsi&eneral, have filed suit against the Companyatinegr DRAM manufacturers. On July
14, 2006, and on September 8, 2006 in an amendedlaimt, the following Attorneys General filed siritthe U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California: Alaska, Arizonarkansas, California, Colorado, Delaware, Floridawaii, Idaho, Illinois, lowa, Kentuck:
Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michjddimnesota, Mississippi, Nebraska, Nevada, New pkerire, New Mexico, North
Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon,@glvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, TennesS&eas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia,
Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin and the Commealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. Thereaftteee states, Ohio, New
Hampshire, and Texas, voluntarily dismissed thigiints. The remaining states filed a third amenctadplaint on October 1, 2007. Alaska,
Delaware, Kentucky, and Vermont subsequently valdliytdismissed their claims. The amended compkdieges, among other things,
violations of the Sherman Act, Cartwright Act, azeitain other states’ consumer protection andrastitaws and seeks joint and several
damages, trebled, as well as injunctive and ottlesfr Additionally, on July 13, 2006, the StafeNew York filed a similar suit in the U.S.
District Court for the Southern District of New Yor That case was subsequently transferred to t8eDistrict Court for the Northern
District of California for pre-trial purposes. TBeate of New York filed an amended complaint ooBer 1, 2007. On October 3, 2008, the
California Attorney General filed a similar lawsuitCalifornia Superior Court, purportedly on bdtallocal California government entities,
alleging, among other things, violations of thet@aght Act and state unfair competition law.

On February 28, 2007, February 28, 2007 and Mar@9@7, cases were filed against the Company aret atanufacturers of DRAM in
the U.S. District Court for the Northern Distridt@alifornia by All American Semiconductor, Incacb Electronics, Inc. and DRAM Claims
Liguidation Trust, respectively, that opted-outaddirect purchaser class action suit that wasesettlhe complaints allege, among other
things, violations of federal and state antitrusd aompetition laws in the DRAM industry, and s¢ahkt and several damages, trebled, as
as restitution, attorneys’ fees, costs, and injueatelief.
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Three purported class action lawsuits alleginggsfiking of “Static Random Access Memory” or “SRANStoducts have been filed in
Canada, asserting violations of the Canadian CatiggeAct. These cases assert claims on behafpirported class of individuals and
entities that purchased SRAM products directlynalirectly from various SRAM suppliers.

In addition, three purported class action lawsalliesging price-fixing of Flash products have beigdfin Canada, asserting violations of
the Canadian Competition Act. These cases ada@ricon behalf of a purported class of individusisl entities that purchased Flash
memory directly and indirectly from various Flaskemory suppliers.

On May 5, 2004, Rambus filed a complaint in theeigr Court of the State of California (San Franci€ounty) against the Company
and other DRAM suppliers. The complaint allegesorss causes of action under California state laeluiding a conspiracy to restrict output
and fix prices of Rambus DRAM (“RDRAM”) and unfaiompetition. Trial is currently scheduled to bemidanuary 2010. The complaint
seeks joint and several damages, trebled, purdtweages, attorneyfes, costs, and a permanent injunction enjoirfiegdefendants from t
conduct alleged in the complaint.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome aféhawsuits. The final resolution of these allegiethations of antitrust laws could
result in significant liability and could have a tmaal adverse effect on the Company’s businessiltseof operations or financial condition.

Securities Matters

On February 24, 2006, a putative class action caimiplvas filed against the Company and certainsobfficers in the U.S. District Court
for the District of Idaho alleging claims under Sec 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchangedkd934, as amended, and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder. Four substantially sinttanplaints subsequently were filed in the samerCoLhe cases purport to be brought on
behalf of a class of purchasers of the Compangskstiuring the period February 24, 2001 to Febrd&;y2003. The five lawsuits have been
consolidated and a consolidated amended classaxdioplaint was filed on July 24, 2006. The corimplgenerally alleges violations of
federal securities laws based on, among other shitlgimed misstatements or omissions regardiegedl illegal price-fixing conduct or the
Company'’s operations and financial results. Themaint seeks unspecified damages, interest, atystiiees, costs, and expenses. On
December 19, 2007, the Court issued an order giagithe class but reducing the class period talpasers of the Company'’s stock during
the period from February 24, 2001 to Septembel@82.

In addition, on March 23, 2006, a shareholder deire action was filed in the Fourth District Cofot the State of Idaho (Ada County),
allegedly on behalf of and for the benefit of thenfpany, against certain of the Company’s curredtfarmer officers and directors. The
Company also was named as a nominal defendanamfmded complaint was filed on August 23, 2006vaasl subsequently dismissed by
the Court. Another amended complaint was filecbeptember 6, 2007. The amended complaint was loeseet same allegations of fact as
in the securities class actions filed in the U.&tilixt Court for the District of Idaho and allegkeach of fiduciary duty, abuse of control,
gross mismanagement, waste of corporate assetsst @mrichment, and insider trading. The amendeaptaint sought unspecified damages,
restitution, disgorgement of profits, equitable amdnctive relief, attorneysees, costs, and expenses. The amended compksrdevivativi
in nature and did not seek monetary damages fren€tmpany. On January 25, 2008, the Court grahee@€ompany’s motion to dismiss
the second amended complaint without leave to am@rdMarch 10, 2008, plaintiffs filed a noticeagpeal to the Idaho Supreme Court.
July 16, 2009, the Idaho Supreme Court issued amarpupholding the lower court’s dismissal of tmmplaint.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome dfdloases. A court determination in any of theerscagainst the Company could
result in significant liability and could have a tmdal adverse effect on the Company’s businessilteeof operations or financial condition.

(See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors.”)

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of sgchiolders during the fourth quarter of 2008.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Sktwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Market for Common Stock
The Company’s common stock is listed on the NewkYatock Exchange and is traded under the symbol ."Mrhe following table

represents the high and low closing sales pricehhé®oCompanys common stock for each quarter of 2009 and 2098 @orted by Bloombe
L.P.

High Low

2009:

4th quarte $ 7.5¢ $ 4.7C

3rd quartel 5.5C 2.5¢

2nd quarte 4.32 1.8t

1st quarte 5.15 1.6€
2008:

4th quarte $ 85 $ 4.24

3rd quartel 8.84 5.4€

2nd quarte 9.2¢ 5.7t

1st quarte 11.7¢ 7.94

Holders of Record
As of October 20, 2009, there were 3,147 sharemloferecord of the Company’s common stock.
Dividends

The Company has not declared or paid cash dividsinde 1996 and does not intend to pay cash did&len its common stock for the
foreseeable future.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to the information set forth imit&2 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Issuer Sales of Unregistered Securities

On August 11, 2009, the Company issued 1.8 millioregistered shares of common stock to DT FLCQ,dsamoncash consideration of
$12 million paid for a business acquired for castt stock. These shares were exempt from registraimder Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company &egly as payment of withholding taxes in connectigth the vesting of restricted

stock and restricted stock unit awards, 26,17 7eshaf its common stock at an average price of $petZhare. In the fourth quarter of 2009,
the Company retired the 26,177 shares acquirdtkificurth quarter of 2009.
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(d)

Maximum
(c) Total number (or
number of approximate
shares (or dollar value)
units) of shares (or
purchased a: units) that
part of may yet be
() Total publicly purchased
number of (b) Average announced under the
shares price paid plans or plans or
Period purchased per share programs programs
June 5,2009 - July 9, 200¢ 14,62: $ 5.4 N/A N/A
July 10,2009 -  August 6, 200¢ 93¢ 5.21 N/A N/A
August 7, 2009 —  September 3, 2009 10,61¢ 7.1t N/A N/A
26,177 6.12

Performance Graph

The following graph illustrates a five-year comgan of cumulative total returns for the Companytsr@on Stock, the S&P 500
Composite Index and the Philadelphia Semiconduotiex (SOX) from August 31, 2004, through August 3009.

Note: Management cautions that the stock pricégperance information shown in the graph below isvided as of fiscal year-end and

may not be indicative of current stock price lev@l$uture stock price performance.

5200

S100

2004 2005 2006 2007

——\licron Technology, Tnc. ——5&P 500 Composite Index

2008

2009

=<& - Philadelphia Semiconductor Index (SOX)

The Company operates on a 52 or 53 week fiscalwkah ends on the Thursday closest to AugustAdcordingly, the last day of the
Companys fiscal year varies. For consistent presentaimhcomparison to the industry indices shown hetesnCompany has calculated
stock performance graph assuming an August 31legmr The performance graph assumes $100 investddgust 31, 2004 in Common
Stock of Micron Technology, Inc., the S&P 500 Comsigo Index and the Philadelphia Semiconductor IN@&XX). Any dividends paid
during the period presented are assumed to beastgy. The performance was plotted using theviatip data:

Performance Graph Data

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Micron Technology, Inc $ 10C $ 10z % 15C $ 99 37 64
S&P 500 Composite Inde 10C 11z 12: 141 12t 10z
Philadelphia Semiconductor Index
(SOX) 10C 12€ 122 137 98 87
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(in millions)
Net sales $ 4,80 $ 5841 $ 568t $ 527z $ 4,88(
Gross margir (439 (55) 1,07¢ 1,20C 1,14¢
Operating income (los! (1,675 (1,59 (280) 35C 217
Net income (loss (1,83%) (1,619 (320 40¢ 18¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per she (2.29) (2.10 (0.42) 0.57 0.2¢
Cash and shc-term investment 1,48t 1,362 2,61¢ 3,07¢ 1,29C
Total current asse 3,344 3,77¢ 5,23¢ 5,101 2,92¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 7,081 8,811 8,27¢ 5,88¢ 4,68¢
Total asset 11,45¢ 13,43( 14,81¢ 12,22: 8,00¢
Total current liabilities 1,892 1,59¢ 2,02¢ 1,661 97¢
Long-term debt 2,67¢ 2,451 1,987 40¢% 1,02C
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiari 1,98¢ 2,86¢ 2,607 1,56¢ --
Total shareholde’ equity 4,654 6,17¢ 7,752 8,11« 5,84

In the first quarter of 2009, the Company acquaedb.5% ownership interest in Inotera Memories, (fiootera”), a publicly-traded
DRAM manufacturer in Taiwan. In connection witlethcquisition of the shares in Inotera, the Comard/Nanya entered into a supply
agreement with Inotera pursuant to which Inotehis sench and stack DRAM products to the Compamy the Company’s DRAM joint
venture partner, Nanya Technology Corporation. ADgust 3, 2009, Inotera issued shares in a puffiécing, decreasing the Company’s
interest in Inotera to 29.8%. (See “ltem 8. FinahBtatements and Supplementary Data — Notes ts@lidated Financial Statements —
Equity Method Investments — DRAM joint venturestwiManya.”)

On July 10, 2009, the Company sold a 65% interesiptina Imaging Corporation (“Aptina”), a whollyamed subsidiary of the
Company. The Company continues to manufactureyatedor Aptina under a wafer supply agreemente Tbmpany accounts for its
remaining interest in Aptina under the equity metth¢See “ltem 8. Financial Statements and Suppi¢sng Data — Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements — Equity Method Investmemptina.”)

The Company formed two joint ventures (collectivdM Flash”) with Intel Corporation to manufactuMAND Flash memory products
for the exclusive benefit of the partners: IM H&%chnologies, LLC, which began operations ingbeond quarter of 2006, and IM Flash
Singapore LLP, which began operations in the thirdrter of 2007. The Company owns 51% and Intelso$®% of IM Flash. The financial
results of IM Flash are included in the consoliddteancial statements of the Company. (See “iBeifinancial Statements and
Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated FinaBt&dements — Consolidated Variable Interest Eestit NAND Flash joint venture with
Intel.”)

The Company began consolidating the financial tesaflits TECH Semiconductor joint venture (“TECHIY of the beginning of the
third quarter of 2006. In the third quarter of ZD€he Company acquired all of the shares of TEGHmon stock held by Singapore
Economic Development Board, which increased the iamy’'s ownership interest in TECH from approxima#8% to approximately
73%. As a result of the purchases of TECH shar@909, the Company’s ownership interest in TECH imareased from to approximately
73% as of August 28, 2008 to approximately 85% lugést 2009. (See “ltem 8. Financial StatementsSupplementary Data — Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements — TECH Semicaond®&ngapore Pte. Ltd.”)

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company acquirexiir Media, Inc., a designer, developer, manufactand marketer of Flash mem
products, in a stock-for-stock merger.

(See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors” and “Iltem 8. Finan@ahtements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Gdatenl Financial Statements.”)
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion contains trend informaténd other forward-looking statements that invavweumber of risks and
uncertainties. Forward-looking statements incluldgt, are not limited to, statements such as thosgenma“Overview” regarding Inotera's
transition to the Company's stack process technoéogl anticipated margins and operating expenseth®lmaging segment in future
periods; in“Net Sales” regarding DRAM production received franotera in 2010, future increases in NAND Flasbdghrction, and future
Imaging revenue under an imaging wafer supply age@ with Aptina; ir‘Gross Margin” regarding future charges from Inoeeifor
underutilized capacity, future charges for invegtarite-downs, gross margins from the Company’sgimg wafer supply agreement with

Aptina; in“Selling, General and Administrative” regarding fute legal expenses;in “Research and Development” regarding reductiafs
future research and development expenses in caonegith the sale of a majority interest in Apting;“Restructure” regarding future level
of employees; in “Stock-based Compensation” regagduture costs to be recognized; in “Liquidity a@dpital Resources” regarding
capital spending in 2010, future distributions frdwh Flash to Intel and capital contributions to THCand in “Recently Issued Accounting
Standards” regarding the impact from the adoptidmew accounting standards. The Company’s actuallte could differ materially from
the Company’s historical results and those discdi$sehe forward-looking statements. Factors thatild cause actual results to differ
materially include, but are not limited to, thoskentified in “ltem 1A. Risk Factors.” This discims should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanyotgs for the year ended September 3, 2009. Adgeeferences are to the
Company’s fiscal periods unless otherwise indicaldte Company’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53-weelogeending on the Thursday closest to
August 31. All tabular dollar amounts are in nalis. The Compa’s fiscal 2009, which ended on September 3, 20@®taned 53 weeks
and its fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 both contaiB@dveeks. All production data includes productidthe Company and its consolidated
joint ventures and the Comp¢'s supply from Inotera.

Overview

The Company is a global manufacturer and markétsemiconductor devices, principally DRAM and NANAash memory. In additic
the Company manufactures CMOS image sensor produodey a wafer foundry arrangement. The Compaeyates in two reportable
segments: Memory and Imaging. Its products aeel irsa broad range of electronic applicationsudiclg personal computers, workstations,
network servers, mobile phones and other consupmications including Flash memory cards, USB sierdevices, digital still cameras,
MP3/4 players and in automotive applications. Tloenpany markets its products through its interafdssforce, independent sales
representatives and distributors primarily to ar@iequipment manufacturers and retailers locatedra the world. The Company’s success
is largely dependent on the market acceptancedofeasified portfolio of semiconductor productsfi@ént utilization of the Company’s
manufacturing infrastructure, successful ongoingetigoment of advanced process technologies andaée of sufficient return on reseat
and development investments.

The Company has made significant investments teldpyproprietary product and process technologyithimplemented in its
worldwide manufacturing facilities and throughjagt ventures to enable the production of semicmhar products with increasing
functionality and performance at lower costs. Twenpany generally reduces the manufacturing cosholfi generation of product through
advancements in product and process technologyasiith leading-edge lingidth process technology and innovative array aeciire. Thi
Company continues to introduce new generationsaxfycts that offer improved performance charadiesissuch as higher data transfer
rates, reduced package size, lower power consumatid increased memory density. To leveragegtsfgiant investments in research and
development, the Company has formed various sij@igt ventures under which the costs of deveaigpinemory product and process
technologies are shared with its joint venturernead. In addition, from time to time, the Compéag also sold and/or licensed technology to
other parties. The Company is pursuing additiopglortunities to recover its investment in inteiled property through partnering and other
arrangements.

The semiconductor memory industry is experiencisgwere downturn due to a significant oversupplgrofiucts. The downturn has
been exacerbated by global economic conditionsiwhiéwve adversely affected demand for semiconduwegonory products. Average selling
prices per gigabit for the Company’s DRAM and NANRsh products declined 52% and 56%, respectifeth2009 as compared to 2008,
after declining 51% and 67%, respectively, for 2@8&ompared to 2007, and declining 23% and 568peively, for 2007 as compared to
2006. These declines significantly outpaced ting{term historical pricing trend. As a result loé$e market conditions, the Company and
other semiconductor memory manufacturers reporbdtantial losses in recent periods. The Compepgrted a net loss of $1.8 billion for
2009 after reporting net losses of $1.6 billion2608 and $320 million for 2007.
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In response to adverse market conditions, the Coynipétiated restructure plans in 2009, primarilithin the Company’s Memory
segment. In the first quarter of 2009, IM Flasfgiat venture between the Company and Intel Cafon, terminated its agreement with the
Company to obtain NAND Flash memory supply from @@mpany’s Boise facility, reducing the Company AMD Flash production by
approximately 35,000 200mm wafers per month. Tamg@any and Intel also agreed to suspend toolinglemdamp of NAND Flash
production at IM Flash’s Singapore wafer fabricatfacility. In addition, the Company phased oliranaining 200mm DRAM wafer
manufacturing operations at its Boise, Idaho, figcih the second half of 2009.

Inotera Memoaories, Inc. (“Inotera”): In the first quarter of 2009, the Company acqlimed35.5% ownership interest in Inotera, a
publicly-traded entity in Taiwan, from Qimonda AG)Y{monda”) for $398 million. The interest in Inogewas acquired for cash, a portion of
which was funded from loan proceeds of $200 millieceived from Nan Ya Plastics Corporation and $85on received from Inotera. Nan
Ya Plastics is an affiliate of Nanya Technology @woation (“Nanya”), a then 35.6% shareholder inténa. The loans were recorded at their
fair values which reflect an aggregate discour#3ff million from their face amounts. This aggregdiscount was recorded as a reduction of
the Companys basis in its investment in Inotera. The Compalag capitalized $10 million of costs and othesferurred in connection wi
the acquisition. As a result of the above traneast the initial carrying value of the Companyiséstment in Inotera was $377 million. On
August 3, 2009, Inotera issued shares in a puffiicing for approximately $310 million that reductte Company and Nanya's ownership in
Inotera to 29.8% and 29.9%, respectively. As alted Inoteras public offering, the Company will recognize argaf $59 million in the firs
quarter of 2010.

In connection with the acquisition of the sharefiotera, the Company and Nanya entered into alg@gpeement with Inotera (the
“Inotera Supply Agreement”) pursuant to which Imatevill sell trench and stack DRAM products to bempany and Nanya. The Company
has rights and obligations to purchase up to 50%aitra’s wafer production capacity. Inotera’suatwafer production will vary from time
to time based on market and other conditions. ehad trench production is expected to transitmthe Company’s stack process
technology. Inotera charges the Company and Neoryaportion of the costs associated with its untlized capacity, if any. The cost to
the Company of wafers purchased under the Inotgpal$ Agreement is based on a margin sharing faarautong the Company, Nanya and
Inotera. Under such formula, all parties’ manufisicty costs related to wafers supplied by Inotasayell as the Company’s and Nanya’s
selling prices for the resale of products from wsifgupplied by Inotera, are considered in detemgicbsts for wafers from Inotera. Under
the Inotera Supply Agreement. The Company’s pugetubligation includes purchasing Inotera’s treDEAM capacity (less any trench
DRAM products sold to Qimonda pursuant to a sepasapply agreement between Inotera and Qimond&Qineonda Supply
Agreement”)). Under the Qimonda Supply Agreem@mmonda was obligated to purchase trench DRAM petadresulting from wafers
started for it by Inotera through July 2009 in ademce with a ramp down schedule specified in tmeoQda Supply Agreement. In the
second quarter of 2009, Qimonda filed for bankrym®tection and defaulted on its obligations toghase products from Inotera. Pursuant
to the Company’s obligations under the Inotera Supgreement, the Company recorded $95 millionlwdrges to cost of goods sold in 2009
for underutilized capacity.

The Company’s results of operations for 2009 alstude losses of $130 million for the Company’srehaf Inotera’s losses from the
acquisition date through the second calendar quait2009. The Company accounts for its inteneshotera under the equity method and
does not consolidate Inotera. The Company recegritg share of earnings or losses from Inotera fegriod that lags the Company'’s fiscal
periods by two months. As of September 3, 2009 Gbmpany had recorded $3 million to accumulatédrotomprehensive income in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet for cuimelaanslation adjustments for its investmentiatéra. During the third quarter of 20
the Company received $50 million from Inotera parsuo the terms of a technology transfer agreem@stof September 3, 2009, the
carrying value of the Company’s equity investmeninotera was $229 million.

(See “Item 8. Financial Statements — Notes to Clateted Financial Statements — Supplemental Bal&heet Information — Equity Method
Investments — DRAM joint ventures with Nanya”)
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Aptina Imaging Corporation (“Aptina”):  On July 10, 2009, the Company sold a 65% inténe&ptina, previously a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and a significant compooéthe Company’s Imaging segment, to Riverwoagi@l (“Riverwood”) and TPG
Capital (“TPG"). In connection with the transactjidthe Company received approximately $35 milliorwash and retained a 35% interest in
Aptina. A portion of the 65% interest held by Riweod and TPG are convertible preferred sharesamd a liquidation preference over the
common shares. As a result, the Company’s inteepsesents 64% of Aptina’s common stock. The Camgalso retained all cash held by
Aptina and its subsidiaries. The Company recoalss of $41 million in connection with the salider the equity method, the Company
will recognize its share of Aptina’s results of ogéons based on its 64% share of Aptina’s comntockson a two-month lag beginning in
2010. As of September 3, 2009, the Company’s invest in Aptina was $44 million. The Company’s bty segment continues to
manufacture products for Aptina under a wafer sypgreement. The Company anticipates that prigidgr the Aptina wafer supply
agreement will generally result in lower gross nvesghan historically realized on sales of Imagimgducts to end customers. The Company
also anticipates that the sale of majority intemregtptina will significantly reduce the Imaginggeent’s research and development costs and
other operating expenses. (See “ltem 8. Finastatements — Notes to Consolidated Financial Seesn- Supplemental Balance Sheet
Information — Equity Method Investments - Aptina”)

Inventory write-downs: The Company’s results of operations for the se@mfirst quarters of 2009 included charges of $284on
and $369 million, respectively, to write down trerying value of work in process and finished gomgentories of memory products (both
DRAM and NAND Flash) to their estimated market vedu For the fourth, second and first quarter900B2 the Company recorded inventory
charges of $205 million, $15 million and $62 miliaespectively.

Results of Operations

2009 2008 2007
(in millions and as a percent of net sa
Net sales
Memory $ 4,29( 89 % $ 5,18¢ 89 % $ 5,001 88 %
Imaging 51Z 11 % 658 11 % 687 12 %
$ 4,80: 10C % $ 5,841 10C % $ 5,68¢ 10C %
Gross margin
Memory $ (527) 12 % $ (241) 5)% $ 84t 17 %
Imaging 82 16 % 18€ 28 % 23¢ 34 %
$ (439 9% $ 55) 1% $ 1,07¢ 19 %
Selling, general and
administrative $ 354 7% $ 45t 8 % $ 61C 11 %
Research and developm 647 13 % 68C 12 % 80t 14 %
Restructure 70 1% 33 1% 19 0 %
Goodwill impairmen 58 1% 462 8 % -- --
Other operating (income)
expense, ne 107 2% (92) (2) % (76) (1) %
Net income (loss (1,835 (38) % (1,619 (28) % (320 (6) %

The Company'’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53-weekqakending on the Thursday closest to August 31.
Net Sales

Total net sales for 2009 decreased 18% as compa2D8 primarily due to a 17% decrease in Memaftgsand a 21% decrease in
Imaging sales. Memory sales for 2009 reflect digamnt declines in per gigabit average selling gsipartially offset by significant increases
in gigabits sold as compared to 2008. Memory sakye 89% of total net sales for 2009 and 2008889 for 2007. The 21% decrease in
Imaging sales for 2009 was primarily due to lowades volume and average sales prices. Total test && 2008 increased 3% as compared
to 2007 primarily due to a 4% increase in Memongsaartially offset by a 5% decrease in Imagingsa
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In response to adverse market conditions, the Coynglaut down production of NAND for IM Flash at tBempany’s Boise fabrication
facility beginning in the second quarter of 2009 ahased out the remainder of its 200mm DRAM prtidacat the Boise fabrication facility
in the second half of 2009. In addition, the Companplemented production slowdowns at some ahigsmufacturing facilities during
2009. Production of Memory and Imaging product2009 was affected by the shutdown of the Boisedabon facility and slowdowns at
other facilities. The Company will adjust utilizai of 200mm wafer processing capacity as prodentahd varies.

The Company has formed partnering arrangements wvtdeh it has sold and/or licensed technologytteeo parties. The Company’s
Memory segment recognized royalty and license reeeri $135 million in 2009 and $58 million in 2008.

Memory: Memory sales for 2009 decreased 17% from 2008anily due to a 23% decrease in sales of DRAM petsland a 10%
decrease in sales of NAND Flash products.

Sales of DRAM products for 2009 decreased from 28@8arily due to a 52% decline in average selfiniges mitigated by a 56%
increase in gigabits sold. Gigabit production &AM products increased 52% for 2009 despite thédsiwn of the Boise fabrication facility
and production slowdowns at other 200mm wafer &athion facilities. The DRAM production increasesyaimarily due to production
efficiencies achieved primarily through transitidnshigher density, advanced geometry deviceghdrfourth quarter of 2009, the Company
began receiving trench DRAM products from Inotefdae Company expects that in 2010 its DRAM prodarctvill increase as a result of
increases in stack and trench DRAM production paseld from Inotera. Sales of DDR2 and DDR3 DRAM,Gloenpany’s highest volume
products, were 29% of the Company'’s total net s@le2009 and 2008 and were 32% for 2007.

The Company sells NAND Flash products in threegipial channels: 1) to Intel Corporation (“Intelfjyrough its IM Flash consolidated
joint venture at lon-term negotiated prices approximating cost, 2)rigimal equipment manufacturers (“OEM’s3hd other resellers and 3’
retail customers. Aggregate sales of NAND Flagidpcts for 2009 decreased 10% from 2008 and remexs&9% of the Company’s total
net sales for 2009 as compared to 35% for 20083886 for 2007

Sales through IM Flash to Intel were $886 millian 2009, $1,037 million for 2008 and $497 millimr 2007. For 2009, average selling
prices for IM Flash sales to Intel decreased sicgiftly due to a 61% reduction in costs per gigabibwever, gigabit sales to Intel were 11
higher in 2009 as compared to 2008 primarily duan®5% increase in gigabit production of NAND HRlgsoducts over the same period as a
result of the Company’s continued transition toheigdensity 34 nanometer (nm) NAND Flash produnts@her improvements in product
and process technologies. The increase in NANBHHEoduction was achieved despite the shutdov@2®@fnm NAND Flash production
which began in the second quarter of 2009. The fizom expects that its gigabit production of NANR$H products will continue to
increase in 2010 but at a slower rate than in 2009.

Aggregate sales of NAND Flash products to the CamisaOEM, resellers and retail customers were 4¢elofor 2009 as compared to
2008 primarily due a 52% decline in average selfiriges, partially offset by a 100% increase inadig sales. Average selling prices to the
Company’s OEM and reseller customers for 2009 édeser@ approximately 41% compared to 2008, whileameeselling prices of the
Company'’s Lexar brand, directed primarily at thiaitenarket, decreased approximately 62% for 20f¥8pared to 2008.

Memory sales for 2008 increased 4% from 2007 piilgndue to a 55% increase in sales of NAND Flastdpicts offset by a 15%
decrease in sales of DRAM products. Sales of NAN&3h products for 2008 increased from 2007 pripdrtie to an increase of
approximately 370% in gigabits sold as a resuftrofiuction increases partially offset by a decbihé7% in average selling prices per
gigabit. Gigabit production of NAND Flash produatsreased approximately 350% for 2008 as compar@007, primarily due to the
continued ramp of NAND Flash products at the ComgfsaB00mm fabrication facilities and transitionshtigher density, advanced geometry
devices. Sales of DRAM products for 2008 decre&sad 2007 primarily due to a decline of 51% in mage selling prices (which included
the effects of a $50 million charge to revenuehmfirst quarter of 2007 as a result of a settldragreement with a class of direct purchasers
of certain DRAM products), mitigated by an increasgigabits sold of approximately 70%. Gigabibguction of DRAM products increased
approximately 70% for 2008, primarily due to protioic efficiencies from improvements in product gsrdcess technologies, including
TECH'’s conversion to 300mm wafer fabrication.
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Imaging: Imaging sales for 2009 decreased by 21% from 20@8arily due to decreased unit sales and declimaserage selling
prices. Demand for Imaging products in 2009 waseskly impacted by weakness in the mobile phond&ets Imaging sales for 2009
were also negatively impacted by the Company’s ab#e65% interest in Aptina on July 10, 2009. eifthe sale of the Company’s 65%
interest in Aptina, Imaging’s revenue is derivetirely from sales of Imaging wafers to Aptina undewafer supply agreement. The
Company anticipates that pricing under the wafppguagreement will generally result in lower reuerthan historically realized on sales by
the Company of Imaging products to end custombrgging sales for 2008 decreased 5% from 2007 piliyrdue to significant declines in
average selling prices by product type partialfigetf by a shift in product mix from products withriegapixel or lower resolution to products
with 3-megapixel or higher resolution, which hadter average selling prices per unit. Imagingsselere 11% of the Company’s total net
sales for 2009 and 2008 and 12% for 2007.

Gross Margin

The Company'’s overall gross margin percentage ntifrom negative 1% for 2008 to negative 9% fdd®60ue to declines in the gross
margins for both Memory and Imaging primarily agsault of severe pricing pressure mitigated by oedtctions. The Company’s overall
gross margin percentage declined from 19% for 20G¥gative 1% for 2008 primarily due to a decréaghe gross margin percentage for
Memory as a result of significant declines in ageraelling prices. Production slowdowns impleméresome of the Company’s 200mm
manufacturing facilities during 2009 adversely eféel per gigabit costs of Memory products and pétraosts of Imaging products.

Memory: The Company’s gross margin percentage for Memoogucts declined from negative 5% for 2008 to tiggd 2% for 2009
primarily due to declines in the gross margin f&AM products partially offset by improvements irethross margin for NAND Flash
products. Gross margins for 2009 were positivélgcéed by significant cost reductions for DRAM aNAND Flash products and the effects
of selling memory products that were subject teemery write-downs in 2008, as discussed in motaidgelow. Gross margins for Memory
products in 2009 were adversely affected by $18liamiof costs associated with underutilized capagrimarily from Inotera and IM
Flash’s Singapore facility. The Company expecés tinderutilized capacity costs from Inotera wétcease substantially in 2010 as Inotera
increases its utilization of production capacity.

The Company’s gross margins for Memory in 2009,8280d 2007 were impacted by charges to write dowaritories to their estimated
market values as a result of the significant desgedn average selling prices for both DRAM and NDANash products. As charges to write
down inventories are recorded in advance of wheeritories are sold, gross margins in subsequenttieg periods are higher than they
otherwise would be. The impact of inventory widlewns on gross margins for all periods reflectemery write-downs less the estimated
net effect of prior period write-downs. The effeof inventory write-downs on gross margin by pegreere as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Inventory writedowns $ (603 $ (282 $ (20
Estimated effect of previous inventory write-downs 767 98 --
Net effect of inventory write-downs $ 164 $ (189 $ (20)

In future periods, the Company will be requireddoord additional inventory write-downs if estimdit@verage selling prices of products
held in finished goods and work in process invaatoat a quarter-end date are below the manufagtgnst of those products.

Declines in gross margins on sales of DRAM prodémt2009 as compared to 2008 were primarily duéo52% decline in average
selling prices mitigated by 40% reduction in cqss gigabit. The reduction in DRAM costs per gigaas primarily due to production
efficiencies achieved through transitions to higtiensity, advanced-geometry devices. DRAM productiosts for 2009 were adversely
impacted by $95 million of underutilized capacitysts from Inotera.

The Company’s gross margin on sales of NAND Flastdlycts for 2009 improved from 2008, despite a ©i3trease in overall average
selling prices per gigabit, primarily due to a 6#€duction in costs per gigabit. The reduction BND Flash costs per gigabit was primarily
due to lower manufacturing costs as a result akimeed production of higher-density, advanced-gégmdevices, in particular from the
Company'’s transition to 34nm process technologyos&margins on sales of NAND Flash products reflates of approximately half of IM
Flash’s output to Intel at long-term negotiatedesi approximating cost.
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The Company’s gross margin percentage for Memaoyywets declined from 17% for 2007 to negative 5%@2fa08 primarily due to the
significant decreases in average selling pricegevdowns of inventories to their estimated maskaties and the shift in product mix to
NAND Flash products (which had a significantly lavggoss margin than DRAM products in 2008), mitaghby cost reductions. TI
Company’s gross margin for DRAM products for 20@®Ithed from 2007, primarily due to the 51% declimaverage selling prices per
gigabit mitigated by a 38% reduction in costs ggebit. Cost reductions in 2008 for DRAM produetsre partially offset by inventory
write-downs. The Company’s gross margin for NANRgh products for 2008 declined from 2007 primadilie to the 67% decline in
average selling prices per gigabit mitigated byt#6eduction in costs per gigabit. Cost reductior008 primarily reflect lower
manufacturing costs and lower costs of NAND Flasidpcts purchased for sale under the Company’srileneand. NAND Flash costs for
2008 were also reduced by a recovery of $70 mill@rprice adjustments for NAND Flash products farged from other suppliers in prior
periods. Cost reductions in 2008 for NAND Flashdricts were partially offset by inventory write-duosv

Imaging: The Companys gross margin percentage for Imaging declined f28f for 2008 to 16% for 2009 primarily due to diees in
average selling prices and costs associated wikrutilized production capacity. The decreasééngross margin percentage for 2009 was
mitigated by a shift in product mix to products lw8-megapixels or more, which realized higher nrezgilmaging gross margins subsequent
to the Company’s sale of a 65% interest in Aptinaloly 10, 2009, are affected by the transitioa Wwafer foundry manufacturing model
where Imaging sells all of its output to Aptina end wafer supply agreement. The Company antespiat pricing under the wafer supply
agreement will generally result in lower gross nvasghan historically realized by the Company olesaf Imaging products to end
customers. The Comparsygross margin for Imaging declined to 28% for 260& 34% for 2007 primarily due to declines in eage sellin
prices mitigated by cost reductions and a shiftigher resolution products that realized bettesgmargins.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expeador 2009 decreased 22% from 2008, primarilytduewer payroll expenses and
other costs related to the Company’s restructlitiatives and lower legal expenses. Lower payesplenses reflect reductions in headcount,
variable pay, salary levels and employee bene85&A expenses for 2008 decreased 25% from 200@guily due to lower legal costs as
well as lower payroll costs and other expensesdrly the Company’s restructure initiatives. Téguction of payroll costs in 2008 was
primarily the result of a decrease in employee beadt. In 2007, the Company recorded a $31 miltioarge to SG&A as a result of the
settlement of certain antitrust class action (dipeochaser) lawsuits. Future SG&A expense is ebgakto vary, potentially significantly,
depending on, among other things, the number afl legtters that are resolved relatively early ®irthife-cycle and the number of matters
that progress to trial. SG&A expenses by segmemnewas follows:

2009 2008 2007
Memory segmer $ 31t % 38t % 532
Imaging segment 39 70 78
$ 354 $ 458 3 61C

Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D”) expenses vary gilgnwith the number of development wafers proedsshe cost of advanced
equipment dedicated to new product and procesdajmvent, and personnel costs. Because of thetimad necessary to manufacture its
products, the Company typically begins to proceafers before completion of performance and relightiésting. The Company deems
development of a product complete once the prodastbeen thoroughly reviewed and tested for pedoo® and reliability. R&D expenses
can vary significantly depending on the timing ofguct qualification as costs incurred in produttasior to qualification are charged to
R&D.

R&D expenses for 2009 decreased 5% from 2008 piliyrdue to lower payroll costs and decreases inscotdevelopment wafers
processed. Lower payroll expenses reflect redostio variable pay, salary levels and employee fitsneR&D expenses were reduced by
$107 million in 2009, $148 million in 2008 and $2#lion in 2007 for amounts reimbursable from Iniader a NAND Flash R&D cost-
sharing arrangement. R&D expenses for 2008 deedeE&% from 2007 primarily due to decreases in ldgveent wafers processed and
lower payroll costs driven by the Company’s redite initiatives. The Company expects that the sl majority interest in Aptina in the
fourth quarter of 2009 will reduce R&D expenseéuture periods. R&D expenses by segment were |
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2009 2008 2007

Memory segmer $ 52¢ % 53¢ $ 64¢
Imaging segment 11€ 144 157
$ 647 $ 68C $ 80t

The Company’s process technology research andaaveint (“R&D”) efforts are focused primarily on adepment of successively
smaller line-width process technologies which asighed to facilitate the Company’s transition ¢éxtrgeneration memory
products. Additional process technology R&D effddcus on the enablement of advanced computingrenridle memory architectures, the
investigation of new opportunities that leverage @ompany’s core semiconductor expertise, andakieldpment of new manufacturing
materials. Product design and development effagsoncentrated on the Company'’s high density DBf®Bmobile products, as well as
high density and mobile NAND Flash memory (inclgMLC technology), specialty memory products andmagy systems.

Restructure

In response to a severe downturn in the semicondustmory industry and global economic conditidghs, Company initiated
restructure plans in 2009 primarily within the Canp’s Memory segment. In the first quarter of 2008 Flash, a joint venture between the
Company and Intel, terminated its agreement wighGbmpany to obtain NAND Flash memory supply friva Company’s Boise facility,
reducing the Company’s NAND Flash production byragpmately 35,000 200mm wafers per month. In catioe with the termination of
the NAND Flash memory supply agreement, Intel pagdlCompany $208 million in 2009. The Company kntell also agreed to suspend
tooling and the ramp of NAND Flash production at Blash’s Singapore wafer fabrication facility. dddition, the Company phased out all
remaining 200mm DRAM wafer manufacturing operationBoise, Idaho in the second half of 2009. Assult of these restructure plans,
the Company reduced employment in 2009 by appraeiynd,600 employees, or approximately 20%. Duengogrovements in market
conditions and the pursuit of new business oppdiéan future reduction in employees may not ocdar2008 and 2007, to reduce costs, the
Company implemented restructure initiatives inahgdivorkforce reductions and relocating and outsagrcertain of its operations. The
following table summarizes restructure chargesdjtseresulting from the Company’s restructure\atés:

2009 2008 2007
Write-down of equipmer $ 152 $ - $ =
Severance and other employee ¢ 60 23 18
Gain from termination of NAND Flash supply agreetr (1449 -- --
Other 2 10 1
$ 70 $ 33 % 19

Goodwill Impairment

In the second quarter of 2009, the Company’s Ingagggment experienced a severe decline in salegimsand profitability due to a
significant decline in demand for products as altexf the downturn in global economic conditionBhe drop in market demand resulted in
significant declines in average selling prices ani sales. Due to these market and economic tiondj the Company’s Imaging segment
and its competitors experienced significant deslimemarket value. As a result, the Company categithat there were sufficient factual
circumstances for interim impairment analyses ui8feAS No. 142 and it performed an assessment afvwgitidor impairment. Based on the
results of the impairment analysis, the Companytevodf all $58 million of goodwill relating to itsnaging segment in the second quarter of
20009.

In the first and second quarters of 2008, the Cawm@xperienced a sustained, significant declinésistock price. As a result of the
decline in stock price, the Company’s market céipagion fell significantly below the recorded velof its consolidated net assets for most of
the second quarter of 2008. The reduced markéidiaption reflected, in part, the Memory segmendwer average selling prices and
expected continued weakness in pricing for the Goms Memory products. Due to these market andi@mic conditions, the Company
concluded that there were sufficient factual cirstances for interim impairment analyses of its Mgnsegment under SFAS No. 142 and it
performed an assessment of goodwill for impairméased on the results of the impairment analylsesCompany wrote off all $463 million
of goodwill relating to its Memory segment in thecend quarter of 2008.
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(See “ltem 8. Financial Statements — Notes to Clateted Financial Statements — Supplemental Bal&heet Information — Goodwill.”)
Other Operating (Income) Expense, Net

Other operating (income) expense consisted ofahewing:

2009 2008 2007
(Gain) loss on disposition of property, plant andipment $ 54 $ (66) $ (43
Loss on sale of majority interest in Apti 41 - -
Losses from changes in currency exchange 30 25 14
Other (18) (50) (47)
$ 107 $ 91) $ (76)

In the table above, “Other” for 2008 included $3&8ion for receipts from the U.S. government in oection with anti-dumping tariffs
and for 2007, included $30 million from the saleceftain intellectual property to Toshiba Corparatand $7 million in grants received in
connection with the Company’s operations in China.

Income Taxes

Income taxes for 2009, 2008 and 2007 primarilyectftaxes on the Company’s non-U.S. operationd a8dalternative minimum
tax. The Company has a valuation allowance fonetsdeferred tax asset associated with its U.&.atipns. The benefit for taxes on U.S.
operations in 2009, 2008 and 2007 was substantéfgt by changes in the valuation allowance.ofASeptember 3, 2009, the Company had
aggregate U.S. tax net operating loss carryforwaf@s!.2 billion and unused U.S. tax credit carryfards of $212 million. The Company
also had unused state tax net operating loss cawgfds of $2.6 billion and unused state tax csedfit}198 million as of September 3,
2009. Substantially all of the net operating loagyforwards expire in 2022 to 2029 and substiyt of the tax credit carryforwards
expire in 2013 to 2029. Due to the expiration eftain foreign statutes of limitations, the Compaegognized approximately $15 million of
previously unrecognized tax benefits in 2008.

Equity in Net Losses of Equity Method Investees

In connection with its DRAM partnering arrangementth Nanya, the Company has investments in twevdaiDRAM memory
companies accounted for as equity method invessndnbtera and MeiYa. Inotera and MeiYa each Haoal years that end on December
31. The Company recognizes its share of InotemacsMeiYa'’s quarterly earnings or losses for tHermdar quarter that ends within the
Company'’s fiscal quarter. This results in the gegtion of the Company’s share of earnings or legsam these entities for a period that lags
the Companygs fiscal periods by two months. The Company retamghlosses from these equity method investmen$d.4® million for 200¢

As a result of its sale of a 65% interest in itdiA@ subsidiary on July 10, 2009, the Company’'gtment in Aptina is accounted for as
an equity method investment. The Company’s sharAgtina constitute 35% of Aptina’s total commamdapreferred stock and 64% of
Aptina’s common stock. Under the equity method, @ompany recognizes its share of Aptina’s resifltsperations based on its 64% share
of Aptina’s common stock on a two-month lag begngnin 2010.

(See “Item 8. Financial Statements — Notes to Clateted Financial Statements — Supplemental Bal&heet Information — Equity Method
Investments.”)

Noncontrolling Interests in Net (Income) Loss

Noncontrolling interests for 2009, 2008 and 200hprily reflects the share of income or losseshef Company’s TECH joint venture
attributed to the noncontrolling interests in TECFhe Company purchased $99 million of TECH shareEebruary 27, 2009, $99 million of
TECH shares on June 2, 2009, and $60 million of AiEBares on August 27, 2009. As a result, nonobimy interests in TECH were
reduced from approximately 27% as of August 28 82@0approximately 15% in August 2009. (See “l@nkinancial Statements — Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements — TECH Semicand®&ngapore Pte. Ltd.”)
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Stock-based Compensation

Total compensation cost for the Company’s equinglin 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $44 million, $48aniland $44 million,
respectively. Stock compensation expenses fluetbased on assessments of whether performancdioardiill be achieved for the
Company'’s performance-based stock grants. As pfeB&er 3, 2009, $71 million of total unrecognizethpensation cost related to non-
vested awards was expected to be recognized thtbedourth quarter of 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 3, 2009, the Company had casha@uidadents and short-term investments totaling 83 dillion compared to $1,362
million as of August 28, 2008. The balance aseyt@mber 3, 2009, included $114 million held atGoenpanys IM Flash joint ventures at
$188 million held at the Company’s TECH joint vengtu The Company’s ability to access funds heldheyjoint ventures to finance the
Company’s other operations is subject to agreefmgtie joint venture partners, debt covenants amtractual limitations. Amounts held by
TECH are not anticipated to be available to finatheeCompany’s other operations.

The Company'’s liquidity is highly dependent on aggr selling prices for its products and the tinofigapital expenditures, both of
which can vary significantly from period to perioBepending on conditions in the semiconductor nrgmmarket, the Company’s cash flows
from operations and current holdings of cash amdstments may not be adequate to meet the Compaegtss for capital expenditures and
operations. Historically, the Company has usedres sources of financing to fund these needse wonditions in the credit markets, it
may be difficult to obtain financing on terms acizdye to the Company. The Company significantjued its actual capital expenditures
for 2009 and planned capital expenditures for 20h0addition, the Company is considering furthieahcing alternatives, continuing to limit
capital expenditures and implementing further cedtiction initiatives.

Operating activities: Net cash provided by operating activities wa28a million in 2009 which reflected approximatel§4® million
generated from the production and sales of the @oip products and approximately $564 million pd®d from the management of
working capital. Specifically, the Company redutieel amount of working capital as of September0®2invested in inventories by $304
million and receivables by $126 million as compa@dugust 28, 2008.

Investing activities: Net cash used for investing activities was $61an in 2009, which included cash expenditures$488 million
for property, plant and equipment and cash experatitof $408 million for the acquisition of a 35.%8erest in Inotera, partially offset by
net effect of maturities and purchases of marketabhlestment securities of $124 million. A sigcéfnt portion of the capital expenditures
related to IM Flash and TECH operations. The Campzelieves that to develop new product and protdmologies, support future
growth, achieve operating efficiencies and mainpmoduct quality, it must continue to invest in ratacturing technologies, facilities and
capital equipment and research and developmerg. Cimpany expects that capital spending will be@pmately $750 million to $850
million for 2010. As of September 3, 2009, the @amy had commitments of approximately $276 milfionthe acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, most of which is expectedetpaid within one year.

Financing activities: Net cash used for financing activities was $2%0an in 2009, which primarily reflects $705 mitin of
distributions to joint venture partners, $429 roifliin debt payments and $144 million in paymenteguipment purchase contracts, partially
offset by $716 million in proceeds from borrowiregsd $276 million in net proceeds from the issuasfa@mmon stock.

On April 15, 2009, the Company issued 69.3 milltrares of common stock for $4.15 per share iniatexgd public offering. The
Company received net proceeds of $276 million afeetucting underwriting fees and other offeringtsa@s $12 million.

On April 15, 2009, the Company issued $230 millddr.25% Convertible Senior Notes due October D332the “4.25% Senior
Note"). Issuance costs associated with the 4.25% $&totes totaled $7 million. The initial conversimte for the 4.25% Senior Notes is
196.7052 shares of common stock per $1,000 prihaipaunt of the 4.25% Senior Notes. This is eqeirtto an initial conversion price of
approximately $5.08 per share of common stock. elsldf the 4.25% Senior Notes may convert thei%. Senior Notes at any time prior to
maturity, unless previously redeemed or repurcha3é Company may not redeem the 4.25% SeniorsNmter to April 20, 2012. On or
after April 20, 2012, the Company may redeem fahcall or part of the 4.25% Senior Notes if thesiig price of its common stock has been
at least 135% of the conversion price for at I@@strading days during a 30 consecutive tradingpjod.
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Concurrent with the offering of the 4.25% Senioitéé the Company also entered into capped cabaaions (the “2009 Capped Ca)ls”
that have an initial strike price of approximat&b.08 per share, subject to certain adjustmentshwkas set to equal the initial conversion
price of the 4.25% Senior Notes. The 2009 Capyzdls Gave a cap price of $6.64 per share and @veapproximate combined total of 45.2
million shares of common stock, and are subjestdadard adjustments for instruments of this typee 2009 Capped Calls are intended to
reduce the potential dilution upon conversion ef #25% Senior Notes. If, however, the marketesgler share of the common stock, as
measured under the terms of the 2009 Capped @atlsgds the applicable cap price of the 2009 Cafpdld, there would be dilution to the
extent that the then market value per share ofdhemon stock exceeds the cap price. The 2009 @apaks expire in October and
November of 2012. The Company paid approximat2ly illion to purchase the 2009 Capped Ci

On February 23, 2009, the Company entered intmgapiore dollar-denominated term loan agreementtitSingapore Economic
Development Board (“EDB”) enabling the Company torbw up to $300 million Singapore dollars at 5.8 annum. The terms of the
agreement require the Company to use the proceausainy borrowings under the agreement to makeyeqantributions to its TECH
Company’s joint venture subsidiary. The loan agrest further required that TECH use the proceeauts he Company’s equity
contributions to purchase production assets and osein production milestones related to the anpntation of advanced process
manufacturing. The loan contains a covenant thatd the amount of indebtedness TECH can incunaevit approval from the EDB. The
loan is collateralized by the Company’s sharesECH up to a maximum of 66% of TECH’s outstandingrels. The Company drew $150
million Singapore dollars in the second quarte2@®9 and an additional $150 million Singapore dadhlahe third quarter of 2009. The
aggregate $300 million Singapore dollars outstap@®#208 million U.S. dollars as of September 3,908 due in February 2012 with inter
payable quarterly.

In the first quarter of 2009, in connection with furchase of its interest in Inotera, the Compentgred into a two-year, variable rate
term loan with Nan Ya Plastics and a six-monthjalde rate term loan with Inotera. The Companyeigd loan proceeds of $200 million
from Nan Ya Plastics and $85 million from InotefBhe Company repaid the $85 million Inotera loathia third quarter of 2009. Under the
terms of the Nan Ya Plastics loan agreement, istésgpayable quarterly at LIBOR plus 2%. Theriest rate resets quarterly and was 2.4%
per annum as of September 3, 2009. Based on ichjnterest rate of 12.1%, the Company recordedNtdoe Ya Plastics loan net of a
discount of $28 million, which is recognized a®neist expense over the life of the loan. The NarP¥stics loan is collateralized by a first
priority security interest in the Inotera sharesyed by the Company (approximate carrying value2@3million as of September 3, 2009).

In 2008, the Company’s TECH joint venture subsigidrew $600 million under a credit facility at SIBQlus 2.5%. The credit facility
is collateralized by substantially all of the assgt TECH (approximately $1,498 million as of Sepber 3, 2009) and contains covenants
among other requirements, establish certain ligyidiebt service coverage and leverage ratiosrestdct TECH's ability to incur
indebtedness, create liens and acquire or disgfasgsets. TECH repaid $50 million of principal amts in 2009 and remaining payments
due in $50 million quarterly installments from Smpber 2009 through May 2012. Under the termsettedit facility, TECH held $30
million in restricted cash as of September 3, 2@@8ich was increased to $60 million in the firsager of 2010. The Company has
guaranteed approximately 85% of the outstandinguentnioorrowed under TECH'’s credit facility and then@pany’s guarantee could increase
up to 100% of the outstanding amount borrowed utttefacility based on further increases in the Gany’s ownership interest in TECH
and other conditions.

(See “Item 8. Financial Statements — Notes to Clateted Financial Statements — Supplemental Bal&eet Information — Debt.”)

Joint ventures: In 2009, IM Flash distributed $695 million to éhtand the Company expects that it will make adddi distributions to
Intel in 2010. Timing of these distributions andyduture contributions, however, is subject to keaiconditions and approval of the partn

The Company purchased $99 million of TECH shareBelsruary 27, 2009, $99 million of TECH shares oneJ2, 2009, and $60 millic
of TECH shares on August 27, 2009. As a resudtGbmpany’s ownership interest in TECH increasethfapproximately 73% as of August
28, 2008 to approximately 85% in August 2009. Tloenany expects to make additional capital contidimstto TECH in 2010 to support its
continued transition to 50nm wafer processing. fiinéhg and amount of these contributions is sutfj@enarket conditions.
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Contractual obligations: The following table summarizes the Company’s ificgnt contractual obligations at September 3,2GMhd
the effect such obligations are expected to havih@iCompany’s liquidity and cash flows in futureripds.

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Notes payabl®) $ 2,78t $ 337 $ 854 $ 159 % =
Capital lease obligatior(®) 65C 18¢ 322 42 97
Operating lease 73 17 24 17 15
Purchase obligatior 642 46¢ 14¢€ 9 18
Other long-term liabilities 24¢ -- 111 35 10z
Total $ 4,39¢ $ 1,011 $ 1,45¢ $ 1,697 $ 232

M Includes interes

The obligations disclosed above do not includeremttal obligations recorded on the Company’s ladasheet as current liabilities
except for the current portion of long-term delbhe expected timing of payment amounts of the aliligs discussed above is estimated
based on current information. Timing and actuabants paid may differ depending on the timing afeipt of goods or services, market
prices or changes to agreed-upon amounts for shiigatons.

Purchase obligations include all commitments tapase goods or services of either a fixed or mininguantity that meet any of the
following criteria: (1) they are noncancelable, {23 Company would incur a penalty if the agreemeas cancelled, or (3) the Company n
make specified minimum payments even if it doestalot delivery of the contracted products or sewi¢take-or-pay”). If the obligation to
purchase goods or services is noncancelable, tive galue of the contract was included in the abtable. If the obligation is cancelable,
the Company would incur a penalty if cancelled,dbar amount of the penalty was included as a@lpage obligation. Contracted minimum
amounts specified in take-or-pay contracts areialdaded in the above table as they represerpahiéon of each contract that is a firm
commitment.

Pursuant to the Inotera Supply Agreement, the Compas an obligation to purchase up to 50% of haddeoutput of semiconductor
memory components subject to specific terms anditions. As purchase quantities are based onfipdafproduction output, the Inotera
Supply Agreement does not contain a fixed or mimmpuurchase quantity and therefore the Company atidhclude its obligations under the
Inotera Supply Agreement in the contractual obiayet table above. The Company’s obligation unterihotera Supply Agreement also
fluctuates due to pricing which is based on martufatg costs and margins associated with the refdldRAM products. Pursuant to the
Company’s obligations under the Inotera Supply #&grent, the Company purchased $46 million of trdDRAM products from Inotera in
20009.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Concurrent with the offering of the 1.875% Seniat®é in May 2007, the Company paid approximatefyl$illion for three Capped
Call transactions (the “Capped Calls”). The Cappadls cover an aggregate of approximately 91.8anishares of common stock. The
Capped Calls are in three equal tranches with capgof $17.25, $20.13 and $23.00 per share, ctisply, each with an initial strike price
approximately $14.23 per share, subject to cegdjostments. The Capped Calls expire on variotesdzetween November 2011 and
December 2012. The Capped Calls are intendeditecegpotential dilution upon conversion of the $ehlotes.

Concurrent with the offering of the 4.25% Seniortéoin April, 2009, the Company paid approximat&®p million for three capped call
instruments that have an initial strike price opegximately $5.08 per share (the “2009 Capped QallEhe 2009 Capped Calls have a cap
price of $6.64 per share and cover an aggregapmbximately 45.2 million shares of common stog¢ke Capped Calls expire in October
and November of 2012. The 2009 Capped Calls &aded to reduce potential dilution upon conversibthe 4.25% Senior Notes.

(See “Item 8. Financial Statements — Notes to Clateted Financial Statements — Supplemental Bal&heet Information — Shareholders’
Equity — Capped Call Transactions.”)
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Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Stand@dard (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Aeeting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 159,“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets anddfipial Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASEatement No.
115”". Under SFAS No. 159, an entity may elect asure many financial instruments and certain ataers at fair value on an instrument
by instrument basis, subject to certain restrictiomhe Company adopted SFAS No. 159 effective #sedbeginning of 2009. The Company
did not elect to measure any existing items atvfaiue upon the adoption of SFAS No. 159.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1580r Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 (as amebgesibsequent FSP’s)
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value in generally accepted accountirigciples and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. The Company adopted ;A3 57 effective as of the beginning of 2009 foahcial assets and financial
liabilities. The adoption did not have a signifitémpact on the Company'’s financial statementSAS No. 157 is also effective for all other
assets and liabilities of the Company as of thenmgg of 2010. The Company does not expect tloptoh to have a significant impact on
its financial statements as of the adoption datee impact to periods subsequent to the initiapsida of SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial
assets and liabilities will depend on the naturm extent of nonfinancial assets and liabilities sugad at fair value after the beginning of
2010.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, “Amextmto FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)” (“SFAS N@&71), which (1) replaces
the quantitativebased risks and rewards calculation for determimihgther an enterprise is the primary beneficiarg variable interest enti
with an approach that is primarily qualitative, (8juires ongoing assessments of whether an eiseipithe primary beneficiary of a varia
interest entity and (3) requires additional disates about an enterprise’s involvement in variattierest entities . The Company is required
to adopt SFAS No. 167 as of the beginning of 20Ihe Company is evaluating the impact the adopifdBFAS No. 167 will have on its
financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. APB 14-1, ‘@&wtting for Convertible Debt Instruments That Mag Bettled in Cash upon
Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)SPANo. APB 14t requires that issuers of convertible debt insami®s that may be settlec
cash upon conversion separately account for théitisand equity components of such instrumenta manner such that interest cost will be
recognized at the entity’s nonconvertible debt daing rate in subsequent periods. The Compamggsired to adopt FSP No. APB 14-1 as
of the beginning of 2010. Upon adoption, the Conypaill retrospectively account for its $1.3 billi@f 1.875% convertible senior notes
issued in May, 2007 under the provisions of FSPARB 14-1. At issuance, the carrying value of $i€3 billion convertible senior notes
will be $402 million lower under FSP No. APB 14-This difference of $402 million will be recognizedequity as additional capital and the
carrying value of the convertible senior notes Wélaccreted to their face amount with a chargetérest expense over the approximate
seven-year term of the notes, resulting in addifiamerest expense (net of the effects of cagialiinterest) of $50 million, $38 million and
$12 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectiveAdditional interest expense will be $53 million2010, $57 million in 2011, $62 million in
2012, $67 million in 2013 and $54 million in 201¥Wnder FSP No. APB 14-1, the carrying value of$fe3 billion convertible senior notes
will be $1,006 million at September 3, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141d4eeV2007), “Business Combinatiohg"SFAS No. 141(R)"), which establishes
the principles and requirements for how an acquiirerbusiness combination (1) recognizes and mesasu its financial statements the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assdyrand any noncontrolling interests in the acgi(®) recognizes and measures goodwill
acquired in the business combination or a gain fadmargain purchase and (3) determines what infiiom#o disclose. SFAS No. 141(R) is
effective for the Company as of the beginning cf@0The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 141/ depend on the nature and extent
of business combinations occurring after the begmof 2010.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financia@t8ments — an amendment of
ARB No. 51.” SFAS No. 160 requires that (1) nortcolting interests be reported as a separate coemgaf equity, (2) net income
attributable to the parent and to the noncontrgliiterest be separately identified in the statéro&pperations, (3) changes in a parent’s
ownership interest while the parent retains itsmling interest be accounted for as equity tratisas and (4) any retained noncontrolling
equity investment upon the deconsolidation of esiliairy be initially measured at fair value. SFNS8. 160 is effective for the Company as
of the beginning of 2010 and must be applied pro$ypay, except for the presentation and disclosarpiirements, which must be applied
retrospectively. As a result of the retrospectideption, the Company’s reported total equity f@@2 and 2008 will increase by $1,986
million and $2,865 million, respectively, and itstiioss for the years 2009, 2008 and 2007 willréase) decrease by $(111) million, $(10)
million and $122 million, respectively. The efféotperiods subsequent to the initial adoption @iipend on the amounts and balances of
noncontrolling interests as of and for those peviadd the nature and extent of transactions inmglehanges in the Company’s
noncontrolling interests after the beginning of 201

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and reldisclosures in conformity with U.S. GAAP requireanagement to make estimates
judgments that affect the reported amounts of askabilities, revenues, expenses and relatedadiges. Estimates and judgments are b
on historical experience, forecasted future evantbvarious other assumptions that the Compang\esito be reasonable under the
circumstances. Estimates and judgments may vaigrutifferent assumptions or conditions. The Camypevaluates its estimates and
judgments on an ongoing basis. Management belieeaccounting policies below are critical in gegtrayal of the Compar's financial
condition and results of operations and requiresagament’s most difficult, subjective or compleggments.

Acquisitions and consolidations: Determination and the allocation of the purchasee of acquired operations significantly influesc
the period in which costs are recognized. Accagntor acquisitions and consolidations requiresGbenpany to estimate the fair value of
individual assets and liabilities acquired as wvaslivarious forms of consideration given, which iree a number of judgments, assumptions
and estimates that could materially affect the amhand timing of costs recognized. The Companically obtains independent third party
valuation studies to assist in determining faituea), including assistance in determining futuréa ¢lsvs, appropriate discount rates and
comparable market values. Determining whethemotaconsolidate a variable interest entity mayuiee judgment in assessing whether the
Company is the entity’s primary beneficiary.

Contingencies: The Company is subject to the possibility of &ssfom various contingencies. Considerable juddrisenecessary to
estimate the probability and amount of any lossifeuch contingencies. An accrual is made whengtabable that a liability has been
incurred or an asset has been impaired and thergrobloss can be reasonably estimated. The Coynpegrues a liability and charges
operations for the estimated costs of adjudicatiosettlement of asserted and unasserted claimsrexas of the balance sheet date.

Goodwill and intangible assets:The Company tests goodwill for impairment annuatid whenever events or circumstances make it
more likely than not that an impairment may haveuoed, such as a significant adverse change ibubmess climate (including declines in
selling prices for products) or a decision to seltlispose of a reporting unit. Goodwill is testedimpairment using a two-step process. In
the first step, the fair value of each reporting immcompared to the carrying value of the neetssassigned to the unit. If the fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, goodisiltonsidered not impaired. If the carrying vaddi¢he reporting unit exceeds its fair value,
then the second step of the impairment test mupebiermed in order to determine the implied faitue of the reporting unit’s
goodwill. Determining the implied fair value of gdwill requires valuation of all of the Companyangible and intangible assets and
liabilities. If the carrying value of a reportingit’'s goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, thihe Company would record an impairment
loss equal to the difference.
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Determining when to test for impairment, the Compameporting units, the fair value of a reportimgit and the fair value of assets and
liabilities within a reporting unit, requires judgmt and involves the use of significant estimatesassumptions. These estimates and
assumptions include revenue growth rates and apgnaiargins used to calculate projected future ¢asbs, risk-adjusted discount rates,
future economic and market conditions and detertiinaf appropriate market comparables. The Comjpases fair value estimates on
assumptions it believes to be reasonable but teairgpredictable and inherently uncertain. Acfuadre results may differ from those
estimates. In addition, judgments and assumptoasequired to allocate assets and liabilitie®pmrting units. In the second quarter of
2009, the Company wrote off all $58 million of gsodwill related to the Imaging segment based errélsults of its test for impairment. In
the second quarter of 2008, the Company wrotelo$4%3 million of its goodwill relating to its Meary segment based on the results of its
test for impairment.

The Company tests other identified intangible a&sa&th definite useful lives and subject to amatian when events and circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoveralgleomparing the carrying amount to the sum of sewlinted cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. The Company tests intaragbets with indefinite lives annually for impa@nt using a fair value method such as
discounted cash flows. Estimating fair values Iage significant assumptions, especially regardirigre sales prices, sales volumes, costs
and discount rates.

Income taxes: The Company is required to estimate its provismrincome taxes and amounts ultimately payablecoverable in
numerous tax jurisdictions around the world. Eates involve interpretations of regulations andiainerently complex. Resolution of
income tax treatments in individual jurisdictionaymot be known for many years after completioamyf fiscal year. The Company is also
required to evaluate the realizability of its deégrtax assets on an ongoing basis in accordarthdJa®. GAAP, which requires the
assessment of the Compasiperformance and other relevant factors when mtérg the need for a valuation allowance with exgfo thes
deferred tax assets. Realization of deferred $arta is dependent on the Company’s ability to geaduture taxable income.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of average @omarket value and the Company recorded chafg®$03 million in
aggregate for 2009 and $282 million in aggregat@®8, to write down the carrying value of invergs of memory products to their
estimated market values. Cost includes labor, mah#nd overhead costs, including product and ggsdechnology costs. Determining
market value of inventories involves numerous judgts, including projecting average selling priced sales volumes for future periods and
costs to complete products in work in process itm@gs. To project average selling prices andssatdumes, the Company reviews recent
sales volumes, existing customer orders, curremiract prices, industry analysis of supply and deshaeasonal factors, general economic
trends and other information. When these analgeftect estimated market values below the Compamgaufacturing costs, the Company
records a charge to cost of goods sold in advahaden the inventory is actually sold. Differenéegorecasted average selling prices used
in calculating lower of cost or market adjustmegaa result in significant changes in the estimatetdrealizable value of product inventories
and accordingly the amount of write-down recordédr example, a 5% variance in the estimated sgefiiices would have changed the
estimated market value of the Company’s semicomaducemory inventory by approximately $75 millionSgptember 3, 2009. Due to the
volatile nature of the semiconductor memory indysctual selling prices and volumes often varyigantly from projected prices and
volumes and, as a result, the timing of when prodasts are charged to operations can vary sigmifig.

U.S. GAAP provides for products to be grouped tategories in order to compare costs to markeegal’he amount of any inventory
write-down can vary significantly depending on tredermination of inventory categories. The Compamyentories have been categorized
as Memory products or Imaging products. The melj@racteristics the Company considers in determimwentory categories are product
type and markets.

Product and process technologyCosts incurred to acquire product and processitdogy or to patent technology developed by the
Company are capitalized and amortized on a strdiightbasis over periods currently ranging up toyg@rs. The Company capitalizes a
portion of costs incurred based on its analysisistbrical and projected patents issued as a peofgratents filed. Capitalized product and
process technology costs are amortized over theeshaf (i) the estimated useful life of the tectowy, (ii) the patent term or (iii) the term of
the technology agreement.
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Property, plant and equipment:The Company reviews the carrying value of propgrtant and equipment for impairment when events
and circumstances indicate that the carrying vafuan asset or group of assets may not be recdesiraln the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from its use and/or dispositizncases where undiscounted expected futureftash are less than the carrying value, an
impairment loss is recognized equal to the amoyntiich the carrying value exceeds the estimated/édue of the assets. The estimatio
future cash flows involves numerous assumptionglwrequire judgment by the Company, including,mttlimited to, future use of the
assets for Company operations versus sale or dispbthe assets, future selling prices for the @any’s products and future production and
sales volumes. In addition, judgment is requirgdie Company in determining the groups of asseta/hich impairment tests are separately
performed.

Research and developmentCosts related to the conceptual formulation agglgh of products and processes are expensedeasales
and development as incurred. Determining whenymbdevelopment is complete requires judgment byGbmpany. The Company deems
development of a product complete once the prodastbeen thoroughly reviewed and tested for pedoo® and reliability. Subsequent to
product qualification, product costs are valuethirentory.

Stock-based compensationnder the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), stockdshcompensation cost is estimated at the graat dat
based on the fair-value of the award and is re@aghas expense ratably over the requisite serédegof the award. For stock-based
compensation awards with graded vesting that wemetgd after 2005, the Company recognizes compgensatpense using the straight-line
amortization method. For performance-based sta@ds, the expense recognized is dependent onrdbalmlity of the performance
measure being achieved. The Company utilizes éstsf future performance to assess these prateshind this assessment requires
considerable judgment.

Determining the appropriate fair-value model aniduating the fair value of stock-based award$atdgrant date requires considerable
judgment, including estimating stock price vol#filiexpected option life and forfeiture rates. TWwmpany develops its estimates base
historical data and market information which caarge significantly over time. A small change ia #stimates used can result in a relati
large change in the estimated valuation. The Compaes the Black-Scholes option valuation modebtae employee stock awards. The
Company estimates stock price volatility based mawerage of its historical volatility and the inggl volatility derived from traded options
the Company'’s stock.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Interest Rate Risk

As of September 3, 2009, $2,359 million of the Camps $3,098 million of debt was at fixed interesties. As a result, the fair value of
the debt fluctuates based on changes in markeestteates. The estimated fair value of the Comigadebt was $2,868 million as of
September 3, 2009 and was $2,167 million as of Aug8, 2008. The Company estimates that as okBdyar 3, 2009, a 1% decrease in
market interest rates would change the fair vafubefixedrate debt by approximately $55 million. As of Sapber 3, 2009, $739 million
the Company'’s debt was at variable interest ratdsaa increase of 1% would increase annual intesgstnse by approximately $8 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The information in this section should be readdnjanction with the information related to changethe exchange rates of foreign
currency in “ltem 1A. Risk Factors.” Changes ingfign currency exchange rates could materially eshhe affect the Company’s results of
operations or financial condition.

The functional currency for substantially all oét@ompany’s operations is the U.S. dollar. The @amy held cash and other assets in
foreign currencies valued at an aggregate of L239%nillion as of September 3, 2009 and U.S. $4fkomas of August 28, 2008. The
Company also had foreign currency liabilities vala¢ an aggregate of U.S. $742 million as of Sep&r, 2009, and U.S. $580 million as
August 28, 2008. Significant components of the @any’s assets and liabilities denominated in fareigrrencies were as follows (in U.S.
dollar equivalents):

2009 2008
Singapore Singapore
Dollars Yen Euro Dollars Yen Euro
(in millions)
Cash and equivalen $ 7 $ 8 $ 21 % 84 $ 13C % 25
Net deferred tax asse -- 11F 1 -- 85 2
Accounts payable and accrued expe (68) (147) (99 (10%) (227) (62)
Debt (289 (25) 4) (49 (108) 4)
Other liabilities (6) (54) (39) (8) (45) (43)

The Company estimates that, based on its assetgabilities denominated in currencies other tham t).S. dollar as of September 3,
2009, a 1% change in the exchange rate versus.$heddllar would result in foreign currency gaimdasses of approximately U.S. $3 milli
for the Singapore dollar and U.S. $1 million foreand the yen. Historically, the Company hasusad derivative instruments to hedge its
foreign currency exchange rate risk.
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions except per share amounts)

September 3 August 28, August 30,

For the year ended 2009 2008 2007
Net sales $ 4,80 $ 5841 $ 5,68¢
Cost of goods sold 5,242 5,89¢ 4,61(

Gross margir (439 (55) 1,07¢
Selling, general and administrati 354 45E 61C
Research and developmt 647 68C 80t
Restructure 70 33 19
Goodwill impairment 58 462 -
Other operating (income) expense, net 107 (92) (76)

Operating los! (1,675 (1,59 (280)
Interest incomt 22 79 14z
Interest expens (13%) (82 (40
Other non-operating income (expense), net (16) (13) 9

(1,809 (1,61)) (16€)

Income tax (provision 2 (18) (30
Equity in net losses of equity method investeespheax (140 -- --
Noncontrolling interests in net (income) Ic 111 10 (122)

Net loss $ (1,835 $ (1,619 $ (320
Loss per share

Basic $ (2.29) $ (2.10 $ (0.42)

Diluted (2.29) (2.10 (0.42)
Number of shares used in per share calculat

Basic 800.7 772.5 769.1

Diluted 800.% 772.F 769.1

See accompanying notes to consolidated financag¢stents.
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions except par value amounts)

September 3 August 28,

As of 2009 2008
Assets
Cash and equivalen $ 1,48t $ 1,24z
Shor-term investment -- 11¢
Receivable: 79¢€ 1,032
Inventories 987 1,291
Other current assets 74 94
Total current asse 3,344 3,77¢
Intangible assets, n 344 364
Property, plant and equipment, | 7,081 8,811
Equity method investmen 31t 84
Other assets 371 392
Total assets $ 11,45 $ 13,43(

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 1,037 $ 1,111
Deferred incomt 20¢ 114
Equipment purchase contra 222 98
Current portion of long-term debt 424 27E

Total current liabilities 1,892 1,59¢
Long-term debt 2,67¢ 2,45]
Other liabilities 24¢ 33¢

Total liabilities 4,81°F 4,38

Commitments and contingenci

Noncontrolling interests in subsidiari 1,98¢ 2,86¢

Common stock, $0.10 par value, authorized 3,000esh#ssued and outstanding 848.7 million and

761.1 million shares, respective 8t 7€
Additional capital 6,86: 6,56¢€
Accumulated defici (2,297 (45€)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) (3) (8)

Total shareholders’ equity 4,654 6,17¢

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 11,45 $ 13,43(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financstents.
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in millions)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Other Total
Number Additional Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
of Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
Balance at August 31, 200 7494 $ 7% $ 6,55 $ 1,48¢ $ 2 $ 8,114
Net loss (320) (320)
Stock issued under stock ple 8.7 1 73 74
Stocl-based compensation expel 44 44
Repurchase and retirement of commr
stock (0.2 2 2 4)
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS Ni
158, net of tax benefit of $ (5) (5)
Purchase of capped calls (157) (157)
Balance at August 30, 200 757.¢ $ 76 $ 6,51¢ $ 1,16¢ $ 7) $ 7,752
Comprehensive income (los:
Net loss (1,619 (1,619
Other comprehensive income (los
Net change in unrealized gain
(loss) on investments, net of
tax Q) €Y
Total comprehensive income (loss (1,620
Stock issued under stock ple 3.7 3 3
Stocl-based compensation expel 48 48
Adoption of FIN 48 @ (D)
Repurchase and retirement of commr
stock (0.5) (4) (4)
Balance at August 28, 200 761.1 $ 76 $ 6,56 $ (456) $ (8) $ 6,17¢
Comprehensive income (los:
Net loss (1,835 (1,839
Other comprehensive income (los
Net change in unrealized gain
(loss) on investments, net of
tax 13 13
Net change in cumulative
translation adjustment, net o
tax (€) 9)
Pension liability adjustment, net
tax 1 1
Total comprehensive income (loss (1,830
Stock issued under stock ple 4.0 1 1
Stocl-based compensation expel 44 44
Repurchase and retirement of comm
stock (0.5 () 2
Issuance of common sto 69.2 7 26¢ 27¢€
Stock issued for business acquisit 1.8 12 12
Exercise of Intel stock righ 13.C 1 (@)} --
Purchase of capped calls (25) (25)
Balance at September 3, 20C 848.7 $ 85 $ 6,86: $ (2,29)) $ 3 $ 4,654




See accompanying notes to consolidated financad¢stents.
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)
September 3 August 28, August 30,
For the year ended 2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (1,835 $ 1,619 $ (320
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,13¢ 2,06( 1,71¢
Provision to writ-down inventories to estimated market val 603 282 20
Noncash restructure charc 15€ 7 5
Equity in net losses of equity method investeesph&ax 14C -- --
Goodwill impairment 58 46Z --
(Gain) loss from disposition of property, plant aglipmen 54 (66) (43
Loss on sale of majority interest in Apti 41 - -
Noncontrolling interests in net income (lo (117) (20 122
Change in operating assets and liabilit
(Increase) decrease in receivat 12¢€ (26) 5
Increase in inventorie (35€) (40 (597)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acexpetse 107 (92 --
Decrease in customer prepayme (63) (38) (4)
Increase in deferred incorn 81 28 30
Other 66 69 (5)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,20¢ 1,01¢ 937
Cash flows from investing activities
Expenditures for property, plant and equipn (48¢) (2,529 (3,609
Acquisition of equity method investme (40¢) (84) --
(Increase) decrease in restricted ¢ (56) - 14
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie (6) (283) (1,466
Acquisition of additional interest in TEC - - (73)
Proceeds from maturities of availa-for-sale securitie 13C 547 2,15¢
Distributions from equity method investme 41 - -
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equip 26 187 94
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie - 24 54C
Other 87 46 (53)
Net cash used for investing activities (674) (2,092 (2,397
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from del 71€ 837 1,30(¢
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net o 27¢€ 4 69
Contributions from noncontrolling interes 24 40C 1,24¢
Proceeds from equipment s-leaseback transactio 4 111 454
Distributions to noncontrolling interes (70%) (132 --
Repayments of del (429 (69¢) (199
Payments on equipment purchase conti (1449) (387) (487)
Cash paid for capped call transacti (25) - (157)
Other (7) (10) (26)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing actigtie (290) 12t 2,21°F
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivs 242 (949) 761
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 1,24z 2,192 1,431
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 1,48t $ 1,24 $ 2,192
Supplemental disclosures
Income taxes paid, n $ 43 $ (36) $ (42)
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali. (107) (84) (22
Noncash investing and financing activiti
Equipment acquisitions on contracts payable andaldpases 331 501 1,01C

See accompanying notes to consolidated financétstents



47




MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All tabular amounts in millions except per sham@oants)

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation: Micron Technology, Inc. and its consolidated sdibsies (hereinafter referred to collectively ke tCompany”)
is a global manufacturer and marketer of semicotmtwevices, principally DRAM and NAND Flash memoryn addition, the Company
manufactures CMOS image sensor products underer Wafndry arrangement. The Company has two raplertsegments, Memory and
Imaging. The Memory segment’s primary productsiRAM and NAND Flash and the Imaging segment’s @iiynproduct is CMOS image
sensors. The accompanying consolidated finanEg#ments have been prepared in accordance witluiatiieg principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. In preparatiothaf accompanying consolidated financial statemémesCompany evaluated events and
transactions occurring after September 3, 200utiir@ctober 28, 2009. All significant intercompdransactions and balances have been
eliminated.

The Company'’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53-weekqukending on the Thursday closest to August 31e Cbmpany’s fiscal 2009
contained 53 weeks and fiscal 2008 and 2007 eadfaioed 52 weeks. All period references are tadbmpany'’s fiscal periods unless
otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements and edldisclosures in conformity with accounting prpies generally
accepted in the United States of America requirasagement to make estimates and judgments that &ffereported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disobss Estimates and judgments are based on bstesiperience, forecasted events and
various other assumptions that the Company belivbe reasonable under the circumstances. Estnaaid judgments may differ under
different assumptions or conditions. The Comparajuates its estimates and judgments on an ondpziaig. Actual results could differ frc
estimates.

Product warranty: The Company generally provides a limited warrahst its products are in compliance with Compamscsfications
existing at the time of delivery. Under the Comgarmgeneral terms and conditions of sale, liabildy certain failures of product during a
stated warranty period is usually limited to regmireplacement of defective items or return ofa@redit with respect to, amounts paid for
such items. Under certain circumstances, the Cagnpeovides more extensive limited warranty covertitan that provided under the
Company’s general terms and conditions. The Coyipavarranty obligations are not material.

Revenue recognition: The Company recognizes product or license reveman persuasive evidence that a sales arrangexisit,
delivery has occurred, the price is fixed or defeahle and collectibility is reasonably assureihc& the Company is unable to estimate
returns and changes in market price and therefi@@tice is not fixed or determinable, for saleglmunder agreements allowing pricing
protection or rights of return (other than for puotiwarranty), such sales are deferred until custerhave resold the product.

Research and development: Costs related to the conceptual formulation aeglgh of products and processes are expensedeasales
and development as incurred. Determining whenyrbdevelopment is complete requires judgment byGbmpany. The Company deems
development of a product complete once the prodastbeen thoroughly reviewed and tested for pedoo® and reliability. Subsequent to
product qualification, product costs are valuethirentory. Product design and other research andldpment costs for NAND Flash are
shared equally among the Company and Intel Conpporétintel”). Charges from the cost-sharing agneat to Intel are reflected as a
reduction of research and development expensee “@Smsolidated Variable Interest Entities — NANR$h joint ventures with Intel.”)

Stock-based compensation: Stock-based compensation is measured at the dmantbased on the fair value of the award, and is
recognized as expense over the requisite servitedperor stock awards granted after the beginnin2006, expenses are amortized under
the straight-line attribution method. The Comp@spes new shares upon the exercise of stock gptiooonversion of share units. (See
“Equity Plans.”)

Functional currency: The U.S. dollar is the Company’s functional camgfor substantially all of its consolidated opé&ras.
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Earnings per share: Basic earnings per share is computed based omdlghted-average number of common shares and styiak
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is conmtpb#sed on the weighted-average number of comnmamesland stock rights outstanding
plus the dilutive effects of stock options, wargaand convertible notes. Potential common shaasaould increase earnings per share
amounts or decrease loss per share amounts adéuwivie and are, therefore, excluded from dilupedat share calculations.

Financial instruments: Cash equivalents include highly liquid short-ténwestments with original maturities to the Comypafithree
months or less, readily convertible to known amseuwitcash. Investments with original maturitiesager than three months and remaining
maturities less than one year are included in sieom investments. Investments with remaining mitiés greater than one year are included
in other noncurrent assets. Securities classifsedvailable-for-sale are stated at market valtre carrying value of investment securities
sold is determined using the specific identificatioethod.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of averagé @omarket value. Cost includes labor, matenma overhead costs,
including product and process technology coststeid@ning fair market values of inventories invaweumerous judgments, including
projecting average selling prices and sales voluorefsiture periods and costs to complete prodinctgork in process inventories. When 1
market values are below the Company’s costs, thregaay records a charge to cost of goods sold t@ wdwn inventories to their estimated
market value in advance of when the inventoriesaateally sold. The Company’s inventories havenbesegorized as Memory products or
Imaging products for purposes of determining avereast and fair market value. The major charaattesithe Company considers in
determining categories are product type and markets

Product and process technology: Costs incurred to acquire product and procesmtdogy or to patent technology developed by the
Company are capitalized and amortized on a strdiigitasis over periods ranging up to 10 yeanse Company capitalizes a portion of
costs incurred based on its analysis of histoaoal projected patents issued as a percent of pdtleat  Capitalized product and process
technology costs are amortized over the shorté) tie estimated useful life of the technology), ttie patent term or (iii) the term of the
technology agreement. Fully-amortized assetsear®ved from product and process technology andnaglatted amortization.

Property, plant and equipment: Property, plant and equipment are stated atarabtepreciated using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives of 5 to 30 years for buiggin2 to 20 years for equipment and 3 to 5 yearsdfiware. Assets held for sale are carried
at the lower of cost or estimated fair value areliacluded in other noncurrent assets. When ptpperequipment is retired or otherwise
disposed of, the net book value of the asset i®vethfrom the Company’s accounts and any gainsw ilincluded in the Company’s results
of operations.

The Company capitalizes interest on borrowingsmdutine active construction period of major capitaljects. Capitalized interest is
added to the cost of the underlying assets anch@stized over the useful lives of the assets. Chmpany capitalized interest costs of $3
million, $13 million and $18 million in 2009, 20G8d 2007, respectively, in connection with varioapital projects.

Recently adopted accounting standards:In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 159h&TFair Value Option for Financial Assets and FaianLiabilities — Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”. Under SFAS18$9, an entity may elect to measure many fir@mestruments and certain other
items at fair value on an instrument by instrumzastis, subject to certain restrictions. The Comzatopted SFAS No. 159 effective as of
beginning of 2009. The Company did not elect t@suee any existing items at fair value upon theptidn of SFAS No. 159.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150y Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 (as amebhgesibsequent FSP’s)
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value in generally accepted accountirigciples and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. The Company adopted A3 57 effective as of the beginning of 2009 faahcial assets and financial
liabilities. The adoption did not have a signifitampact on the Company’s financial statementBAS No. 157 is also effective for all other
assets and liabilities of the Company as of thenmigg of 2010. The Company does not expect tloptoh to have a significant impact on
its financial statements as of the adoption datee impact to periods subsequent to the initiapsida of SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial
assets and liabilities will depend on the nature extent of nonfinancial assets and liabilities suead at fair value after the beginning of
2010.
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Recently issued accounting standards:In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, “Adneents to FASB Interpretation No. 46
(R)” (“SFAS No. 167"), which (1) replaces the qutattve-based risks and rewards calculation foedeining whether an enterprise is the
primary beneficiary in a variable interest entitifwan approach that is primarily qualitative, (@jjuires ongoing assessments of whether an
enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a variahterest entity and (3) requires additional disal@s about an enterprise’s involvement in
variable interest entities . The Company is regpliio adopt SFAS No. 167 as of the beginning ofl20he Company is evaluating the
impact the adoption of SFAS No. 167 will have anfihancial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. APB 14-1, ‘é&wtting for Convertible Debt Instruments That Mag 8ettled in Cash upon
Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)SPANo. APB 14t requires that issuers of convertible debt insami®s that may be settlec
cash upon conversion separately account for théditimand equity components of such instrumenta manner such that interest cost will be
recognized at the entity’s nonconvertible debt twing rate in subsequent periods. The Companggsired to adopt FSP No. APB 14-1 as
of the beginning of 2010. Upon adoption, the Conypaill retrospectively account for its $1.3 billi@f 1.875% convertible senior notes
issued in May, 2007 under the provisions of FSPARB 14-1. At issuance, the carrying value of $i€3 billion convertible senior notes
will be $402 million lower under FSP No. APB 14-This difference of $402 million will be recognizedequity as additional capital and the
carrying value of the convertible senior notes Wwélaccreted to their face amount with a chargetérest expense over the approximate
seven-year term of the notes, resulting in addifiamerest expense (net of the effects of cagialiinterest) of $50 million, $38 million and
$12 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectivedditional interest expense will be $53 million2010, $57 million in 2011, $62 million in
2012, $67 million in 2013 and $54 million in 201¥nder FSP No. APB 14-1, the carrying value of$te3 billion convertible senior notes
will be $1,006 million at September 3, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141ideeh2007), “Business Combinatich§*SFAS No. 141(R)"), which establishes
the principles and requirements for how an acquir@rbusiness combination (1) recognizes and measui its financial statements the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assdyrand any noncontrolling interests in the ac@i(®) recognizes and measures goodwill
acquired in the business combination or a gain fadmargain purchase and (3) determines what infioméo disclose. SFAS No. 141(R) is
effective for the Company as of the beginning cf20The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 141 depend on the nature and extent
of business combinations occurring after the begmof 2010.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financia@t8ments — an amendment of
ARB No. 51.” SFAS No. 160 requires that (1) norteolting interests be reported as a separate copmiaf equity, (2) net income
attributable to the parent and to the noncontrgliiterest be separately identified in the statéro&pperations, (3) changes in a parent’s
ownership interest while the parent retains itsmling interest be accounted for as equity tratisas and (4) any retained noncontrolling
equity investment upon the deconsolidation of ss&liéiry be initially measured at fair value. SFN8. 160 is effective for the Company as
of the beginning of 2010 and must be applied prosypay, except for the presentation and disclosarpiirements, which must be applied
retrospectively. As a result of the retrospectideption, the Company’s reported total equity f@@2 and 2008 will increase by $1,986
million and $2,865 million, respectively, and itstiioss for the years 2009, 2008 and 2007 willréase) decrease by $(111) million, $(10)
million and $122 million, respectively. The efféstperiods subsequent to the initial adoption dépend on the amounts and balances of
noncontrolling interests as of and for those peviadd the nature and extent of transactions inmglehanges in the Company’s
noncontrolling interests after the beginning of 201
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Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Investment Securities 2009 2008

Available-for-sale securities

Certificates of depos $ 187 $ 19¢
U.S. government and agenc -- 28¢
Commercial pape - 271
Other 22 28

20¢ 78€
Less cash equivalen (187) (641)
Less investments included in noncurrent assets (22) (26)
Short-term investments $ - 9 11¢€

In 2009 and 2008, the Company recognized loss8&®million and $8 million, respectively, for othéran-temporary impairments of
investment securities and in 2008 realized los§858 anillion on sales of investment securities. hiSeptember 3, 2009, the Company had
gross unrealized gains of $9 million in accumulatéter comprehensive income, substantially all bich related to equity securities that had
a fair value of $15 million. As of August 28, 20@Be Company had gross unrealized losses of $ibmih accumulated other
comprehensive income, substantially all of whidated to investments in commercial paper that htairaralue of $86 million and had been
in an unrealized loss position for less than orar.ye

Receivables 2009 2008
Trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtfoamts of $5 million and $2 million,
respectively’ $ 501 $ 741
Related party receivabli 70 --
Income and other tax 49 43
Other 88 24¢
$ 79¢ $ 1,032

As of September 3, 2009, related party receivableaded $69 million due from Aptina Imaging Corption under a wafer supply
agreement for image sensor products and $1 miflienfrom Inotera Memories, Inc. for reimbursemdrdgenses incurred under a
technology transfer agreement.

As of September 3, 2009 and August 28, 2008, oteivables included $29 million and $71 millioespectively, due from Intel for
amounts related to NAND Flash product design andgss development activities. Other receivabled &eptember 3, 2009 and August
2008 also included $40 million and $75 million,pestively, due from settlement of litigation andB$8illion, as of August 28, 2008, due
from settlements of pricing adjustments with cersippliers.

Inventories 2009 2008
Finished good $ 233 % 444
Work in proces: 64¢ 671
Raw materials and supplies 10E 17¢€

$ 987 $ 1,291

The Company’s results of operations for the se@mfirst quarters of 2009 included charges of $84on and $369 million,
respectively, to write down the carrying value afriwin process and finished goods inventories afmy products (both DRAM and NAND
Flash) to their estimated market values. For theth, second and first quarters of 2008, the Camypacorded charges to write down the
carrying value of work in process and finished gootventories by $205 million, $15 million and $&2lion, respectively.
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Intangible Assets

2009 2008
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Product and process technolc $ 43¢ $ (181 $ 577 $ (320
Customer relationshig 127 (50) 127 (35
Other 28 (19) 29 (14)
$ 594 $ (250 $ 735 % (369)

During 2009, the Company capitalized $88 million fooduct and process technology with a weightestaye useful life of 9
years. During 2008, the Company capitalized $48anifor product and process technology with agiéc-average useful life of 10 years.

Amortization expense for intangible assets wasi#iflion, $80 million and $75 million in 2009, 20@8d 2007, respectively. Annual
amortization expense for intangible assets is egéthto be $66 million for 2010, $63 million for2Q $54 million for 2012, $50 million for
2013 and $41 million for 2014.

Property, Plant and Equipment 2009 2008
Land $ % $ 99
Buildings (includes $184 million and $142 millioespectively, for capital lease 4,46: 3,82¢
Equipment (includes $630 million and $755 millioespectively, for capital lease 11,83¢ 13,59:
Construction in progres 47 611
Software 26¢ 282

16,70¢ 18,41
Accumulated depreciation (includes $331 million &3@7 million, respectively, for capital leases) (9,628 (9,602)
$ 7,081 $ 8,811

Depreciation expense was $2,038 million, $1,976@ioniland $1,644 million for 2009, 2008 and 200 5pectively.

The Company, through its IM Flash joint ventures ha unequipped wafer manufacturing facility inggipore that has been idle since it
was completed in the first quarter of 2009. Thenpany has been recording depreciation expensbédatility since it was completed and
its net book value was $624 million as of Septen®h&009. Utilization of the facility is dependeron market conditions, including, but |
limited to, worldwide market supply of, and demdad semiconductor products, availability of finamg, agreement between the Company
and its joint venture partner and the Company'sajmns, cash flows and alternative capacity w@ttlan opportunities. (See “Consolidated
Variable Interest Entities — NAND Flash joint vergs with Intel” note.)

As part of a restructure plan initiated in 200%hait down 200mm manufacturing operations at its8didaho facilities, the Company
recorded impairment charges of $152 million in 2009 connection therewith, assets with a carryiaye of $34 million as of September 3,
2009 (original acquisition cost of $1,422 milliomgre classified as held for sale and included lreohoncurrent assets. (See “Restructure”
note.)

As of September 3, 2009, property, plant and eqeigrwith a carrying value of $1,176 million waslatéral under TECH's credit
facility and $86 million of property, plant and égonent was collateral under the Company’s otheespayable. (See “Debt” and “TECH
Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd.” notes.)

Goodwill

As of August 28, 2008, other noncurrent assetsided goodwill of $58 million, all of which related the Company’s Imaging
segment. In the second quarter of 2009, the Comnpante off the $58 million of Imaging goodwill bed on the results of its test for
impairment. In the second quarter of 2008, the gammy wrote off the $463 million of goodwill relagrto its Memory segment based on the
results of its test for impairment.
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SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetsquires that goodwill be tested for impairmant reporting unit level. The
Company has determined that its reporting unitstaf@lemory and Imaging segments based on its argaonal structure and the financial
information provided to and reviewed by managemditte Company tests goodwill for impairment annuatd whenever events or
circumstances make it more likely than not thainamairment may have occurred. Goodwill is testadmpairment using a two-step
process. In the first step, the fair value offgoréing unit is compared to its carrying value thié carrying value of the net assets assigned to :
reporting unit exceeds the fair value of a repgortinit, the second step of the impairment tesei$opmed in order to determine the implied
fair value of the goodwill of a reporting unit. tte carrying value of the goodwill of a reportimgit exceeds its implied fair value, goodwill is
deemed impaired and is written down to the extéthedifference.

In the second quarter of 2009, the Company’s Ingagggment experienced a severe decline in salegimaand profitability due to a
significant decline in demand as a result of themtarn in global economic conditions. The dropriarket demand resulted in significant
declines in average selling prices and unit sal®ige to these market and economic conditions, tiragany’s Imaging segment and its
competitors experienced significant declines inkaetwalue. As a result, the Company concludedttiere were sufficient factual
circumstances for interim impairment analyses uigfeAS No. 142. Accordingly, in the second quaofe2009, the Company performed an
assessment of its Imaging segment goodwill for innpant.

In the first step of the impairment analysis, th@®any performed valuation analyses utilizing bottome and market approaches to
determine the fair value of its reporting unitsndér the income approach, the Company determireeththvalue based on estimated future
cash flows discounted by an estimated weiglateelage cost of capital, which reflects the ovdeak! of inherent risk of the Imaging segm
and the rate of return an outside investor woulakekto earn. Estimated future cash flows weredas the Company’s internal projection
models, industry projections and other assumptileesned reasonable by management. Under the nimkett approach, the Company
derived the fair value of its Imaging segment basedevenue multiples of comparable publicly-trageér companies. In the second step of
the impairment analysis, the Company determinedntipiied fair value of goodwill for the Imaging segnt by allocating the fair value of t
segment to all of its assets and liabilities inardance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinatioas,if the Imaging segment had been
acquired in a business combination and the pri@ktpaacquire it was the fair value.

Based on the results of the Company’s assessmegoiaivill for impairment, it was determined thag ttarrying value of the Imaging
segment exceeded its estimated fair value as adrnileof the second quarter of 2009. ThereforeCimapany performed the second step of
the impairment test to estimate the implied faluesof goodwill, which indicated there would be mmnaining implied value attributable to
goodwill in the Imaging segment. Accordingly, iempany wrote off all the $58 million of goodwiksociated with its Imaging segment as
of March 5, 2009.

In the first and second quarters of 2008, the Caompxperienced a sustained, significant declinesigtock price. As a result of the
decline in stock prices, the Company’s market edipition fell significantly below the recorded welof its consolidated net assets for most
of the second quarter of 2008. The reduced magggitalization at that time reflected, in part, Memory segment’s lower average selling
prices and expected continued weakness in pricnthe Company’s memory products. Accordinglythe second quarter of 2008, the
Company performed an assessment of Memory segroedtgll for impairment. In the first step of tirapairment analysis, the Company
performed extensive valuation analyses utilizinthbocome and market approaches to determine thedle of its reporting units, which
indicated that the carrying value of the Memorymsegt exceeded its estimated fair value. TheretbeeCompany performed the second step
of the impairment test to determine the implied fa@lue of goodwill, which indicated that there Madbe no remaining implied value
attributable to goodwill in the Memory segment aedordingly, the Company wrote off all $463 milliohgoodwill associated with its
Memory segment as of February 28, 2008.

Equity Method Investments

The Company has partnered with Nanya Technologp@ation (“Nanya”) in two Taiwan DRAM memory compes, Inotera
Memories, Inc. (“Inotera”) and MeiYa Technology @oration (“MeiYa”), which are accounted for as dgunethod investments. The
Company also has an equity method investment imapimaging Corporation (“Aptina”), a CMOS imagingmpany.
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DRAM joint ventures with Nanya: The Company has a partnering arrangement wittydlparsuant to which the Company and Nanya
jointly develop process technology and designsdoufacture stack DRAM products. In addition, trmm@any has deployed and licen:
certain intellectual property related to the mantifee of stack DRAM products to Nanya and licensedain intellectual property from
Nanya. As a result, the Company is to receivegameyate of $207 million from Nanya through 20Ithhe Company recognized $105 milli
of license revenue in net sales from this agreeime2®09, and since May 2008 through Septembe@@9 2has recognized $142 million of
cumulative license revenue. In addition, the Comypaxpects to receive royalties in future periaasf Nanya for sales of stack DRAM
products manufactured by or for Nanya.

The Company has concluded that both Inotera andf daie variable interest entities as defined in B&(R), ‘Consolidation of Variabl
Interest Entities — an interpretation of ARB No,"3iecause of the Inotera and MeiYa supply agregésnaith Micron and Nanya. Nanya and
the Company are considered related parties undeprtivisions of FIN 46(R). The Company reviewedesal factors to determine whether it
is the primary beneficiary of Inotera and MeiY glirding the size and nature of the entities’ operatrelative to Nanya and the Company,
nature of the day-to-day operations and certaiardictors. Based on those factors, the Compateyrdaed that Nanya is more closely
associated with, and therefore the primary beraafiodf, Inotera and MeiYa. The Company accountstfointerests using the equity method
of accounting and does not consolidate these estiti

Inotera and MeiYa each have fiscal years that enDecember 31. The Company recognizes its shdrotdra’s and MeiYa quarterly
earnings or losses for the calendar quarter thdg aithin the Company’s fiscal quarter. As a reghke Company recognizes its share of
earnings or losses from these entities for a pehatllags the Company’s fiscal periods by two rhent

Inotera : In the first quarter of 2009, the Company acqliae35.5% ownership interest in Inotera, a publicdyled entity in
Taiwan, from Qimonda AG (“Qimonda”) for $398 millio The interest in Inotera was acquired for cagiprtion of which was funded from
loan proceeds of $200 million received from NanPfastics Corporation, an affiliate of Nanya. Afmr was also funded from loan proce
of $85 million received from Inotera, which the Coamy repaid with accrued interest in the third tpreof 2009. The loans were recorded at
their fair values, which reflect an aggregate distaf $31 million from their face amounts. Thggaegate discount was recorded as a
reduction of the Company'’s basis in its investmenhotera. The Company also capitalized $10 orillof costs and other fees incurred in
connection with the acquisition. As a result af #bove transactions, the initial carrying valu¢hef Company’s investment in Inotera was
$377 million. As of the date of acquisition, therfpany’s proportionate share of Inotera’s sharedrsldequity was approximately $250
million higher than the Company’s initial carryinglue of $377 million. Substantially all of thigfdrence will be amortized over the
estimated five-year weighted-average remaininguldiéé of Inotera’s production equipment and fé@k as of the acquisition date (the
“Inotera Amortization”). (See “Debt” note.)

On August 3, 2009, Inotera finalized the issuarfa@amon shares in a public offering at a pricea¢qo $16.02 New Taiwan dollars
common share (approximately $0.49 U.S. dollarswagust 3, 2009). Inotera expects to use the neepds of approximately $310 million to
begin conversion to the Company’s 50nm stack DRAbhhology. As a result of the issuance, the Coryipanterest in Inotera decreased
from 35.5% to 29.8% and the Company will recogrizgain of $59 million in the first quarter of 2018s of September 3, 2009, the
ownership of Inotera was held 29.9% by Nanya, 2%8%he Company and the balance was publicly held.
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In connection with the acquisition of the sharefiotera, the Company and Nanya entered into alg@gpeement with Inotera (the
“Inotera Supply Agreement”) pursuant to which Imatevill sell trench and stack DRAM products to bempany and Nanya. The Company
has rights and obligations to purchase up to 50%aitra’s wafer production capacity. Inotera’suatwafer production will vary from time
to time based on market and other conditions. elad trench production is expected to transitmthe Companyg stack process technolog
Inotera charges the Company and Nanya for a poofidine costs associated with its underutilizedac#y, if any. The cost to the Company
of wafers purchased under the Inotera Supply Ageseiis based on a margin sharing formula amon@tmpany, Nanya and
Inotera. Under such formula, all parties’ manufisicty costs related to wafers supplied by Inotasawell as the Company’s and Nanya’'s
selling prices for the resale of products from wsifgupplied by Inotera, are considered in detemgicbsts for wafers from Inotera. Under
the Inotera Supply Agreement, the Company’s purelodadigation includes purchasing Inotera’s trend®AM capacity (less any trench
DRAM products sold to Qimonda pursuant to a sepasapply agreement between Inotera and QimondaQineonda Supply
Agreement”)). Under the Qimonda Supply Agreem@mmonda was obligated to purchase trench DRAM petsdresulting from wafers
started for it by Inotera through July 2009 in ademce with a ramp down schedule specified in ttrecQda Supply Agreement. In the
second quarter of 2009, Qimonda filed for bankrypi®tection and defaulted on its obligations tochase products from Inotera. Pursuant
to the Company’s obligations under the Inotera 8upgreement, the Company recorded $95 milliontwdrges to cost of goods sold in 2009
for underutilized capacity. For 2009, the Comppaychased $46 million of trench DRAM products frémtera under the Inotera Supply
Agreement.

The Company’s results of operations for 2009 atstude losses of $130 million for the Company’srshaf Inotera’s losses from the
acquisition date through the second calendar quefi2009. The losses recorded by the Companyetref $38 million of the Inotera
Amortization as defined above. During the thirdudar of 2009, the Company received $50 milliomfrimotera pursuant to the terms of a
technology transfer agreement. In connection thithethe Company reduced its investment in Inot®r&18 million based on its 35.5%
share in Inotera. The technology transfer agreémith Inotera supplanted a technology transfeeagrent between the Company and
MeiYa. License fee revenue from the technologgdfar agreements is being recognized through iheé dgarter of 2010. The Company
recognized $15 million and $4 million of revenue2®09 and 2008, respectively, from the agreemeitksinotera and MeiYa. As of
September 3, 2009, the Company had unrecognizexaiskicfee revenue of $13 million related to thenetdyy transfer fee.

As of September 3, 2009, the carrying value ofGbenpany’s equity investment in Inotera was $229iamland is included in equity
method investments in the accompanying consolidaédghce sheet. As of September 3, 2009, the Caoyriped recorded a loss of $3 milli
to accumulated other comprehensive income (losjeraccompanying consolidated balance sheetsifoulative translation adjustments on
its investment in Inotera. Based on the closiagitrg price of Inotera’s shares in an active maokeSeptember 3, 2009, the market value of
the Company’s shares in Inotera was $694 million.

Summarized financial information for Inotera aslohe 30, 2009 and for the period from the Compainytigl acquisition of Inotera
shares on October 20, 2008 through June 30, 28@%6@riod that Inotera’s operating results areeotfid in the Company’s 2009 operating
results due to the two-month lag period), is akfes:

As of June 30, 2009

Current assel $ 45C
Noncurrent assets (primarily property, plant andigpent) 3,31¢
Current liabilities 1,78¢
Noncurrent liabilities 74C

For the period October 20, 2008 to June 30, 20(

Net sales $ 607
Gross margir (370
Loss from operation (462)
Net loss (539)

As of September 3, 2009, the Company’s maximum sxoto loss on its investment in Inotera equdiedb232 million recorded in the
Company'’s consolidated balance sheet for its imvest in Inotera including the $3 million loss ircamulated other comprehensive income
(loss). The Company may also incur losses in caimewith its obligations under the Inotera Supflyreement to purchase up to 50% of
Inotera’s wafer production under a long-term pricarrangement and charges from Inotera for undieedicapacity.
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On May 1, 2009, Inotera entered into an agreeméhtManya and MeiYa to lease a Nanya wafer fabiocafacility that Nanya had
previously been leasing to MeiYa. The initial ledasrm is from January 1, 2009 through Decembe@18 and Inotera is entitled to renew
this lease for an unlimited number of additionaéfiyear terms. In addition, Inotera has an optiopurchase the leased facility for $50
million after December 31, 2023. Inotera’s inifisdse obligations to Nanya are $15 million any@lt the first nine years. For the first five-
year renewal lease term, Inotera would pay $10daniinnually and for each subsequent renewal térnrguld pay $2 million
annually. Concurrent with this agreement, Inofgrechased equipment from MeiYa for approximatel@ #llion.

MeiYa : In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company and Nafioymed MeiYa to manufacture stack DRAM productd aell such
products exclusively to the Company and Nanya.of®September 3, 2009, the ownership of MeiYa wdd 58% by Nanya and 50% by the
Company. The carrying value of the Company’s gguivestment in MeiYa was $42 million and $84 noiflias of September 3, 2009 and
August 28, 2008, respectively, and is includeddgaiy method investments in the accompanying cadatdd balance sheets. As of
September 3, 2009, the Company had recorded ai@Smillion to accumulated other comprehensivame (loss) in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet for cumulative tramsiadjustments on its investment in MeiYa. The @any’s results of operations for 2009
include losses of $10 million for its share of Mal¥ results of operations for the twelve-month péended June 30, 2009. Losses
recognized in 2008 were de minimis.

Pursuant to a technology transfer agreement, timep@oy received $50 million from MeiYa in the ficptarter of 2009. The technology
transfer agreement between the Company and Mei$sswgaplanted by a technology transfer agreemewnieleet the Company and Inotera
and the Company returned the $50 million with aedrinterest to MeiYa in the fourth quarter of 2009.

In connection with the purchase of its ownershipriest in Inotera, the Company entered into a sefi@greements with Nanya pursuant
to which both parties ceased future funding of, @sburce commitments to, MeiYa. In the fourthrtgraof 2009, the Company received a
distribution of $27 million from MeiYa. As of Septier 3, 2009, the Company’s maximum exposure ®dosits MeiYa investment equaled
the $48 million recorded in the Company’s consdidabalance sheet for its investment in MeiYa,ldalg the $6 million loss in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Aptina:  On July 10, 2009, the Company sold a 65% intereéfitina, previously a wholly-owned subsidiary bétCompany and a
significant component of the Company’s Imaging seginto Riverwood Capital (“Riverwood”) and TPG @ap(“TPG"). In connection
with the transaction, the Company received appratéty $35 million in cash and retained a 35% irdeie Aptina. A portion of the 65%
interest held by Riverwood and TPG are convertilbéferred shares and have a liquidation preferemeethe common shares. As a result,
the Company’s interest represents 64% of Aptinatarmon stock. The Company also retained all cakhlheAptina and its
subsidiaries. The Company recorded a loss of $ilibmin connection with the sale. The carryinglwes of Aptina assets and liabilities,
prior to the effects of the transaction, were dleofes:

Receivable! $ 50
Inventories 56
Other current asse 20
Other assets (primarily property, plant and equipna&d intangible assel 63
Accounts payable and accrued expel (68)
Other liabilities 1)
Net carrying valut $ 12C

Under the equity method, the Company will recogtiizahare of Aptina’s results of operations basedts 64% share of Aptina’s
common stock on a two-month lag beginning in 20A8.0f September 3, 2009, the Company'’s investrimeAptina was $44 million. The
Company’s Imaging segment continues to manufagoducts for Aptina under a wafer supply agreenaadtrecognized $70 million of
sales and $60 million of cost of goods sold fromduorcts sold to Aptina subsequent to July 10, 2009.
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Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 2009 2008

Accounts payabl $ 52¢ $ 597
Customer advance 15C 13C
Salaries, wages and bene 147 244
Related party payable 83 -
Income and other taxt 32 27
Other 99 113

$ 1,037 $ 1,111

As of September 3, 2009, related party payablesistad of amounts due to Inotera under the In@emply Agreement including $51
million for the purchase of trench DRAM productsigB2 million for underutilized capacity. (See “HyuMethod Investments — DRAM
joint ventures with Nany— Inotera” note.)

As of September 3, 2009 and August 28, 2008, custaavances included $142 million and $129 milli@spectively, for the
Company’s obligation to provide certain NAND Flaslemory products to Apple Computer, Inc. (“ApplethtiiDecember 31, 2010 pursuant
to a prepaid NAND Flash supply agreement. As @it&@aber 3, 2009 and August 28, 2008, other accqayable and accrued expenses
included $24 million and $16 million, respectivelgr amounts due to Intel for NAND Flash producside and process development and
licensing fees pursuant to a product designs dpuatmt agreement.

Debt 2009 2008
Convertible senior notes, interest rate of 1.878&& June 201 $ 1,30C $ 1,30C
TECH credit facility, effective interest rates 063 and 5.0% , respectively, net of discount ofi§lion

and $3 million, respectively, due in periodic insteents through May 201 54¢ 597
Capital lease obligations, weighted-average impiutextest rate of 6.7% and 6.6%, respectively,idue
monthly installments through February 2( 55¢ 657
Convertible senior notes, interest rate of 4.25¢& @ctober 201 23C --
EDB notes, interest rate of 5.4%, due February : 20¢ --
Nan Ya Plastics notes, effective imputed interat of 12.1%, net of discount of $18 million, due
November 201( 182 -
Convertible subordinated notes, interest rate @65 .due April 201( 70 70
Other notes, weighted-average effective interdesraf 9.5% and 1.6%, respectively, due in periodic
installments through July 2015 1 10z
3,09¢ 2,72¢
Less current portion (424) (275)
$ 2,67 $ 2,451
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In May 2007, the Company issued $1.3 billion of7B% Convertible Senior Notes due June 1, 2014“@kaior Notes”). The issuance
costs associated with the Senior Notes totaleddifidn and the net proceeds to the Company froendtfiering of the Senior Notes were
$1,274 million. The initial conversion rate foet&enior Notes is 70.2679 shares of common stac&p@00 principal amount of Senior
Notes, equivalent to an initial conversion priceapproximately $14.23 per share of common stoctildéts may convert the Senior No
prior to the close of business on the businessrdayediately preceding the maturity date for thei@eNotes only under the following
circumstances: (1) during any calendar quarterrvegg after August 30, 2007 (and only during sualeisdar quarter), if the closing price of
the Company's common stock for at least 20 tradays in the 30 consecutive trading days endindierast trading day of the immediately
preceding calendar quarter is more than 130% offiie applicable conversion price per share oBSteior Notes; (2) if the Senior Notes
have been called for redemption; (3) if specifigstributions to holders of the Company's commowlstre made, or specified corporate
events occur, as specified in the indenture foiSbeior Notes; (4) during the five business dayer @y five consecutive trading day period
in which the trading price per $1,000 principal ambof Senior Notes for each day of that period lgas than 98% of the product of the
closing price of the Company’s common stock andliea applicable conversion rate of the Senior dlate (5) at any time on or after March
1, 2014. Upon conversion, the Company will haweright to deliver, in lieu of shares of its commaiack, cash or a combination of cash
shares of common stock. If a holder elects to edrits Senior Notes in connection with a make-whdiange in control, as defined in the
indenture, the Company will, in certain circumse@siay a make-whole premium by increasing the esion rate for the Senior Notes
converted in connection with such make-whole chang®ntrol. On or after June 6, 2011, the Compaay redeem for cash all or part of
the Senior Notes if the last reported sale pricksafommon stock has been at least 130% of theersion price then in effect for at least 20
trading days during any 30 consecutive tradingmiyod ending within five trading days prior to th@te on which the Company provides
notice of redemption. The redemption price is 10ff%he principal amount of the Senior Notes tad@eemed, plus accrued and unpaid
interest. Upon a change in control or a termimatibtrading, as defined in the indenture, the Bddnay require the Company to repurchase
for cash all or a portion of their Senior Notesaepurchase price equal to 100% of the principadunt of the Senior Notes, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any. FSP No. APB 14-1 is differfor the Company at the beginning of 2010, whiequires the Company to
retrospectively account for the Senior Notes fromirtissuance date. (See “Significant Accountinfidies — Recently issued accounting
standards.”)

In 2008, the Company'’s joint venture subsidiaryCHESemiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“TECH"), dr&00 million under a credit
facility at SIBOR plus 2.5%. The credit facility collateralized by substantially all of the ase$tSECH (approximately $1,498 million as of
September 3, 2009) and contains covenants thanh@otber requirements, establish certain liquidight service coverage and leverage
ratios, and restrict TECH’s ability to incur indetihess, create liens and acquire or dispose dsasBECH repaid $50 million of principal
amounts in 2009 and remaining payments are duB0mdllion quarterly installments from Septembef2@hrough May 2012. Under the
terms of the credit facility, TECH held $30 milliam restricted cash as of September 3, 2009, whiechincreased to $60 million in the first
quarter of 2010. In the first quarter of 2010, THEModified its debt covenants. In connection with modification, the Company has
guaranteed approximately 85% of the outstandinguentnioorrowed under TECH'’s credit facility and then@pany’s guarantee could increase
up to 100% of the outstanding amount borrowed utttefacility based on further increases in the Gany’s ownership interest in TECH
and other conditions.

In 2009, the Company recorded $81 million in cdpéase obligations with a weighted-average impinéetest rate of 5.9%, payable in
periodic installments through February 2023. 10820he Company received $111 million in proceedmfsales-leaseback transactions and
in connection with these transactions, recordedadpase obligations aggregating $110 millionhnatweightedaverage imputed interest r
of 6.7%, payable in periodic installments throughel2012. As of September 3, 2009, the Companysédnillion of capital lease
obligations with covenants that require minimumelevof tangible net worth, cash and investmentd, rastricted cash of $26 million. The
covenants were modified in the second quarter 6828nd the Company was in compliance with thebé etevenants as of September 3,
20009.
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On April 15, 2009, the Company issued $230 millddr.25% Convertible Senior Notes due October D332the “4.25% Senior
Note¢"). Issuance costs for the 4.25% Senior Notedddt@i7 million. The initial conversion rate foretd.25% Senior Notes is 196.7052
shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amantivalent to approximately $5.08 per share ofroom stock, and is subject to
adjustment upon the occurrence of certain evermgsifépd in the indenture for the 4.25% Senior NotElelders of the 4.25% Senior Notes
may convert them at any time prior to October 18,2 If there is a change in control, as defimethe indenture, in certain circumstances
Company may pay a make-whole premium by increasiagonversion rate to holders that convert th&5% Senior Notes in connection
with such makewxhole change in control. The Company may not nedéie 4.25% Senior Notes prior to April 20, 2012n or after April 20
2012, the Company may redeem for cash all or gahteo4.25% Senior Notes if the closing price efddmmon stock has been at least 135%
of the conversion price for at least 20 tradingsddyring a 30 consecutive trading day period. rEdemption price will equal 100% of the
principal amount plus a make-whole premium equdhéopresent value of the remaining interest paysieam the redemption date to the
date of maturity of the 4.25% Senior Notes. Upaange in control or a termination of tradingdafined in the indenture, the Company
may be required to repurchase for cash all or igroof the 4.25% Senior Notes at a repurchase @ipial to 100% of the principal plus any
accrued and unpaid interest to, but excludingréiperchase date.

On February 23, 2009, the Company entered intmgapiore dollar-denominated term loan agreementtiétSingapore Economic
Development Board (“EDB"gnabling the Company to borrow up to $300 milliong&apore dollars at 5.4% per annum. The termbefdar
agreement required the Company to use the proéemdsany borrowings under the agreement to makéyeqgantributions to its TECH joint
venture subsidiary. The loan agreement also requitat TECH use the proceeds from the Companyigyecontributions to purchase
production assets and meet certain production toites related to the implementation of advancedge® manufacturing. The loan contains
a covenant that limits the amount of indebtedndSSH can incur without approval from the EDB. Thar is collateralized by the
Company'’s shares in TECH up to a maximum of 66%EEH’s outstanding shares. The Company drew $1i8®mSingapore dollars
under the facility on February 27, 2009 and an tamthl $150 million Singapore dollars on June 020The aggregate $300 million
Singapore dollars outstanding ($208 million U.Slats as of September 3, 2009) is due in Febru@iy? 2vith interest payable quarterly.

In the first quarter of 2009, in connection with furchase of its interest in Inotera, the Compantgred into a two-year, variable-rate
term loan with Nan Ya Plastics, an affiliate of Manand received loan proceeds of $200 milliondéfrthe terms of the loan agreement,
interest is payable quarterly at LIBOR plus 2%.eTiterest rate resets quarterly and was 2.4%rparm as of September 3, 2009. Based on
imputed interest rate of 12.1%, the Company reabtbe Nan Ya Plastics loan net of a discount of §#8on, which is recognized as inter
expense over the life of the loan. The loan isatetalized by a first priority security interentthe Inotera shares owned by the Company
(approximate carrying value of $229 million as ep&mber 3, 2009). (See “Equity Method Investniemise.)

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of aeMedia, Inc. (“Lexar”) in the fourth quarter 0®@6, the Company assumed Lexsar’
$70 million 5.625% convertible notes due April D1D (the “Lexar Notes”). The Lexar Notes are cotilike into the Company’s common
stock any time at the option of the holders oflte®ar Notes at a price equal to approximately $8 p& share and are subject to customary
covenants. The Lexar Notes became redeemablasdbrat the Company’s option on April 1, 2008 atiegpequal to the principal amount
plus accrued interest plus the net present valtieeofemaining scheduled interest payments thréygh 1, 2010. The Company may only
redeem the Lexar Notes if its common stock hasedes 175% of the conversion price for at leasta@ing days in the 30 consecutive
trading days prior to delivery of a notice of regdion.
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As of September 3, 2009, maturities of notes payaht future minimum lease payments under capitad obligations were as follows:

Capital
Notes Lease
Payable Obligations

2010 $ 27C % 18¢
2011 40C 271
2012 35¢ 52
2013 - 20
2014 1,53( 21
2015 and thereaftt - 98
Discount and interest, respectively (19) (92)

$ 2,53¢ $ 55¢

Commitments

As of September 3, 2009, the Company had commisrafrapproximately $276 million for the acquisitiohproperty, plant and
equipment. The Company leases certain facilitiesequipment under operating leases. Total rex@énse was $28 million, $39 million
and $62 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respebttivdhe Company also subleases certain facildies buildings under operating leases to
Aptina and recognized $1 million of rental income2009. Minimum future rental commitments and minm future sublease rentals to be
received from Aptina under noncancelable subleaseas follows:

Operating Operating

Lease Sublease

Commitments Rentals
2010 $ 17 % 3
2011 14 2
2012 10 3
2013 10 3
2014 7 (@)
2015 and thereafter 15 --

$ 73 $ (12

Contingencies

The Company has accrued a liability and chargedatipas for the estimated costs of adjudicatiosaitiement of various asserted and
unasserted claims existing as of the balance sta¢etincluding those described below. The Compaurrently a party to other legal
actions arising out of the normal course of businasne of which is expected to have a materiatesdveffect on the Company’s business,
results of operations or financial condition.

In the normal course of business, the Companyerty to a variety of agreements pursuant to whiatay be obligated to indemnify tl
other party. Itis not possible to predict the maxm potential amount of future payments underdhgpes of agreements due to the
conditional nature of the Company’s obligations #mlunique facts and circumstances involved it gacticular agreement. Historically,
payments made by the Company under these typegedgraents have not had a material effect on thep@aogis business, results of
operations or financial condition.

The Company is involved in the following patenttitiast and securities matters.
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Patent matters: As is typical in the semiconductor and other Higthnology industries, from time to time, otheasd asserted, and may
in the future assert, that the Company’s productaanufacturing processes infringe their intelletfroperty rights. In this regard, the
Company is engaged in litigation with Rambus, [(ilRambus”) relating to certain of Rambus’ patemntd gertain of the Company’s claims
and defenses. Lawsuits between Rambus and the &ynape pending in the U.S. District Court for Bistrict of Delaware, U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of California, Geamy, France, and ltaly. On January 9, 2009, tHavizere Court entered an opinion in favor
of the Company holding that Rambus had engagepdliagion and that the twelve Rambus patents irstliewere unenforceable against the
Company. Rambus subsequently appealed the detistbr U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal ditchat appeal is pending. In the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of [@arnia, trial on a patent phase of the case leenlstayed pending resolution of Rambus'
appeal of the Delaware spoliation decision or frtbrder of the California Court.

On March 6, 2009, Panavision Imaging, LLC filedt@gainst the Company and Aptina Imaging Corponatieen a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Aptina’ip the U.S. District Court for the Central Distrift California. The complaint alleges that certairihe
Company and Aptina’s image sensor products infrioge Panavision Imaging U.S. patents and seeksative relief, damages, attorneys’
fees, and costs.

On March 24, 2009, Accolade Systems LLC filed against the Company and Aptina in the U.S. Dis€@iaurt for the Eastern District
of Texas alleging that certain of the Company aptif®’s image sensor products infringe one Accolagetems U.S. patent. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief, damages, attorneys’ faad,costs. Accolade Systems never served the aomm@nd on October 15, 2009, filed a
motion to dismiss the complaint against the Compary Aptina without prejudice.

Among other things, the above lawsuits pertainetdain of the Company’s SDRAM, DDR SDRAM, DDR2 SDRADDR3 SDRAM,
RLDRAM and image sensor products, which accounafsignificant portion of net sales.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome ddréiess of infringement made against the Companytharefore cannot estimate the
range of possible loss. A court determination thatCompany’s products or manufacturing procesggage the intellectual property rights
of others could result in significant liability afod require the Company to make material changés foroducts and/or manufacturing
processes. Any of the foregoing could have a ristedverse effect on the Company’s business, tesfibperations or financial condition.

Antitrust matters: At least sixty-eight purported class action prioeafy lawsuits have been filed against the Compamy other DRAM
suppliers in various federal and state courts énUhited States and in Puerto Rico on behalf aféatl purchasers alleging price-fixing in
violation of federal and state antitrust laws, at@ns of state unfair competition law, and/or ghjenrichment relating to the sale and pricing
of DRAM products during the period from April 198%ough at least June 2002. The complaints séekgad several damages, trebled, in
addition to restitution, costs and attorneys’ feAsaumber of these cases have been removed teafertrirt and transferred to the U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of Califioia for consolidated pre-trial proceedings. Oruday 29, 2008, the Northern District of
California court granted in part and denied in plagt Company’s motion to dismiss plaintiffs’ secardended consolidated
complaint. Plaintiffs subsequently filed a mote®eking certification for interlocutory appeal bétdecision. On February 27, 2008,
plaintiffs filed a third amended complaint. On 86, 2008, the United States Court of AppealsiferNinth Circuit agreed to consider
plaintiffs’ interlocutory appeal.

In addition, various states, through their Attorsi&eneral, have filed suit against the Companyatinegr DRAM manufacturers. On July
14, 2006, and on September 8, 2006 in an amendedlaimt, the following Attorneys General filed siritthe U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California: Alaska, Arizonarkansas, California, Colorado, Delaware, Floridawaii, Idaho, Illinois, lowa, Kentuck:
Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michjddimnesota, Mississippi, Nebraska, Nevada, New pkarire, New Mexico, North
Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon,@glvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, TenneS&eas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia,
Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin and the Commealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. Thereaftaee states, Ohio, New
Hampshire, and Texas, voluntarily dismissed thigiints. The remaining states filed a third amenctadplaint on October 1, 2007. Alaska,
Delaware, Kentucky, and Vermont subsequently valtlytdismissed their claims. The amended compklieges, among other things,
violations of the Sherman Act, Cartwright Act, azettain other states’ consumer protection andrastitaws and seeks joint and several
damages, trebled, as well as injunctive and ottlesfr Additionally, on July 13, 2006, the StafeNew York filed a similar suit in the U.S.
District Court for the Southern District of New Yor That case was subsequently transferred to t8eDistrict Court for the Northern
District of California for pre-trial purposes. TBeate of New York filed an amended complaint ooBer 1, 2007. On October 3, 2008, the
California Attorney General filed a similar lawsuitCalifornia Superior Court, purportedly on bdtallocal California government entities,
alleging, among other things, violations of thet@aght Act and state unfair competition law.
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Three purported class action DRAM lawsuits alsoeHagen filed against the Company in Quebec, Ontanid British Columbia, Canat
on behalf of direct and indirect purchasers, afiggiiolations of the Canadian Competition Act. Bubstantive allegations in these cases are
similar to those asserted in the DRAM antitrusesafed in the United States. Plaintiffs’ motifur class certification was denied in the
British Columbia and Quebec cases in May and JO08,2espectively. Plaintiffs subsequently filedegpeal of each of those
decisions. Those appeals are pending.

In February and March 2007, All American Semicoridudnc., Jaco Electronics, Inc., and the DRAMif@& Liquidation Trust each
filed suit against the Company and other DRAM siguplin the U.S. District Court for the Northerrsbict of California after opting-out of a
direct purchaser class action suit that was setfldte complaints allege, among other things, vimtes of federal and state antitrust and
competition laws in the DRAM industry, and seekjand several damages, trebled, as well as réstifattorneysfees, costs and injuncti
relief.

Three purported class action lawsuits alleginggsfieing of SRAM products have been filed in Canaatsserting violations of the
Canadian Competition Act. These cases assert£lainbehalf of a purported class of individuals antities that purchased SRAM products
directly or indirectly from various SRAM suppliers.

In addition, three purported class action lawsalliesging price-fixing of Flash products have beitadfin Canada, asserting violations of
the Canadian Competition Act. These cases adaértscon behalf of a purported class of individuatsl entities that purchased Flash
memory directly and indirectly from various Flaskemory suppliers.

On May 5, 2004, Rambus filed a complaint in the&igr Court of the State of California (San Franci€ounty) against the Company
and other DRAM suppliers. The complaint allegesotss causes of action under California state lasluiding conspiracy to restrict output
and fix prices of Rambus DRAM (“RDRAM”) and unfaiompetition. Trial is currently scheduled to bemidanuary 2010. The complaint
seeks joint and several damages, trebled, purdawmeages, attorneytes, costs, and a permanent injunction enjoirtiegdefendants from t
conduct alleged in the complaint.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome dfehawsuits and therefore cannot estimate the rahgessible loss. The final
resolution of these alleged violations of antitrasts could result in significant liability and ddthave a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations or firgugondition.

Securities matters: On February 24, 2006, a putative class actionptaimt was filed against the Company and certaiitsodfficers in
the U.S. District Court for the District of Idahtesying claims under Section 10(b) and 20(a) of$keeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and Rule 1@promulgated thereunder. Four substantially simibmplaints subsequently were filed in the samerC The case
purport to be brought on behalf of a class of paseins of the Comparsg/stock during the period February 24, 2001 to Getyr13, 2003. Tt
five lawsuits have been consolidated and a cors@litamended class action complaint was filed §n2#y 2006. The complaint generally
alleges violations of federal securities laws bas®damong other things, claimed misstatementsmssions regarding alleged illegal price-
fixing conduct. The complaint seeks unspecifiechdges, interest, attorneys’ fees, costs, and egper@n December 19, 2007, the Court
issued an order certifying the class but redudimegciass period to purchasers of the Company’« stodng the period from February 24,
2001 to September 18, 2002.

In addition, on March 23, 2006, a shareholder deire action was filed in the Fourth District Cofot the State of Idaho (Ada County),
allegedly on behalf of and for the benefit of then@pany, against certain of the Company’s curredtfarmer officers and directors. The
Company also was named as a nominal defendanammded complaint was filed on August 23, 2006sarsequently dismissed by the
Court. Another amended complaint was filed on &eyer 6, 2007. The amended complaint was basétesame allegations of fact as in
the securities class actions filed in the U.S. fisCourt for the District of Idaho and allegedathch of fiduciary duty, abuse of control, gross
mismanagement, waste of corporate assets, unjtishement, and insider trading. The amended compkught unspecified damages,
restitution, disgorgement of profits, equitable amjdnctive relief, attorneydees, costs, and expenses. The amended compksndevivativ:
in nature and did not seek monetary damages fren€tdmpany. On January 25, 2008, the Court grahee€ompany’s motion to dismiss
the second amended complaint without leave to am@&rdMarch 10, 2008, plaintiffs filed a noticeagpeal to the Idaho Supreme Court.
July 16, 2009, the Idaho Supreme Court issued amarpupholding the lower court’s dismissal of tmmplaint.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome dfdtomses and therefore cannot estimate the raqpssible loss. A court

determination in any of these actions against th@any could result in significant liability anduid have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations or fiiggondition.
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Shareholders’ Equity

Stock rights: As of September 3, 2009 and August 28, 2008| halel stock rights exchangeable into approximaBe®/million and 16.!
million shares, respectively, of the Company’s camrstock. Shares issuable pursuant to the stgbksrare included in weighted-average
common shares outstanding in the computationsrofregs per share.

Issuance of common stock:On April 15, 2009, the Company issued 69.3 millsivares of common stock for $4.15 per share in iqub
offering. The Company received net proceeds o6$8iflion, net of underwriting fees and other ofifey costs of $12 million.

Capped call transactions:In connection with the offering of the Senior Noteday 2007, the Company entered into three cappdd
transactions (the “Capped Calls”). The CappedsGalkch have an initial strike price of approxima®&l4.23 per share, subject to certain
adjustments, which matches the initial conversinoepof the Senior Notes. The Capped Calls athrige equal tranches, have cap prices of
$17.25, $20.13 and $23.00 per share, and coveectub anti-dilution adjustments similar to thammtained in the Senior Notes, an
approximate combined total of 91.3 million sharésammon stock. The Capped Calls expire on vardaiss between November 2011 and
December 2012. The Capped Calls are intendediteceethe potential dilution upon conversion of #emior Notes. Settlement of the
Capped Calls in cash on their respective expiradates would result in the Company receiving anwarhoanging from zero if the market
price per share of the Company’s common stock @ Aelow $14.23 to a maximum of $538 million. T®@empany paid $151 million to
purchase the Capped Calls. The Capped Calls asdsred capital transactions and the relatedwastrecorded as a charge to additional
capital.

Concurrent with the offering of the 4.25% Seniont@toon April 15, 2009, the Company entered intgedpcall transactions (the “2009
Capped Calls”) that have an initial strike priceapproximately $5.08 per share, subject to ceddjnstments, which was set to equal initial
conversion price of the 4.25% Senior Notes. THg92Dapped Calls have a cap price of $6.64 per strateover, subject to anti-dilution
adjustments similar to those contained in the 4.3&Mior Notes, an approximate combined total o2 #&llion shares of common stock, &
are subject to standard adjustments for instrunitss type. The 2009 Capped Calls expire inobet and November of 2012. The 2009
Capped Calls are intended to reduce the potentidgiath upon conversion of the 4.25% Senior Not&8gttlement of the Capped Calls in cash
on their respective expiration dates would resuthe Company receiving an amount ranging from #dtee market price per share of the
Company’s common stock is at or below $5.08 to aimam of $70 million. The Company paid $25 millitmpurchase the 2009 Capped
Calls. The 2009 Capped Calls are considered ¢agtesactions and the related cost was recordedcharge to additional capital.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (losshccumulated other comprehensive income (losg)phtax, consisted of the
following as of the end of the periods shown below:

2009 2008
Accumulated translation adjustment, $ 9 $ =
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments, 10 (©)]
Unrecognized pension liability (4) (5)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 3 $ (8)

Fair Value Measurements

SFAS No. 157 establishes three levels of inputsrttey be used to measure fair value: quoted piicastive markets for identical assets
or liabilities (referred to as Level 1), observainlputs other than Level 1 that are observabléHerasset or liability either directly or
indirectly (referred to as Level 2) and unobsergabputs to the valuation methodology that areifiant to the measurement of fair value of
assets or liabilities (referred to as Level 3).
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Fair value measurements on a recurring basidssets measured at fair value on a recurring lazastf September 3, 2009 were as
follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Total
Money marke@ $ 1,182 $ - $ 1,18¢
Certificates of depos®@ - 217 217
Marketable equity investmen& 15 -- 15
$ 1,19¢ $ 217 $ 1,41¢€

M Included in casl and equivalent
(2$187 million included in cas and equivalents and $30 million included in othencurrent asset
® Included in other noncurrent asst

Level 2 assets are valued using observable inpustive markets for similar assets or alterngpiieing sources and models utilizing
market observable inputs. In 2009, the Companggeized impairment charges of $7 million for otliesn-temporary declines in the value
of marketable equity instruments.

As of September 3, 2009 and August 28, 2008, thmated fair value of the Company’s debt was $2,868on and $2,167 million,
respectively, compared to the carrying value 00$8,million and $2,726 million, respectively. Thaér value of the convertible notes paye
is based on quoted market prices in active marketgel 1). The fair value of other long-term debestimated based on discounted cash
flows using inputs that are observable in the maokeéhat could be derived from or corroboratedwabservable market data, as well as
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), incluglinterest rates based on yield curves of simiidat dssues from parties with similar credit
ratings as the Company.

Amounts reported as cash and equivalents, shantiterestments, receivables, other assets, accpagtble and accrued expenses and
equipment purchase contracts approximate theivédires.

Fair value measurements on a nonrecurring basiss of September 3, 2009, non-marketable equitystents of $6 million were
valued using Level 3 inputs. During 2009, the Campidentified events and circumstances that indétthe fair value of certain non-
marketable equity investments sustained other-teanporary declines in values and recognized charfy$8 million to write down the
carrying values of these investments to their estiioh fair values. The fair value measurements determined using present value
techniques of estimated future cash flows basedmuts which were classified as Level 3 as theyewerobservable and required
management’s judgment.

During 2009, the Company recorded loans with NarP¥stics and Inotera at fair value because thedstaterest rates were
substantially lower than the prevailing rates fmrs with comparable terms and collateral and dordsvers with similar credit ratings. The
Company repaid the loan to Inotera in the thirdrtgraof 2009. During 2009, the Company also reedrdther noncurrent contractual
liabilities at fair values of $36 million (net oB$ million of discounts) based on prevailing rdt@scomparable obligations. The fair values
these obligations were determined based on disedwash flows using inputs that are observablbémtarket or that could be derived from
or corroborated with observable market data, atagesignificant unobservable inputs (Level 3)]uding interest rates based on published
rates for transactions involving parties with samitredit ratings as the Company. (See “Debt” hote

Equity Plans

As of September 3, 2009, under its equity plarsGbmpany had an aggregate of 195.1 million shafr#égs common stock reserved for
issuance for stock options and restricted stock@dsyaf which 125.9 million shares were subjeatutstanding awards and 69.2 million
shares were available for future awards. Awardssabject to terms and conditions as determinetiddCompany’s Board of Directors.

Stock options: Stock options granted by the Company are gepezatircisable in increments of 25% per year begmoine year from

the date of grant. Stock options issued aftere&apéer 22, 2004 generally expire six years frondidte of grant. All other options expire ten
years from the grant dal
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Option activity for 2009 is summarized as follows:

Weightec-
Weightec- average
average remaining
exercise contractual Aggregate
Number of price per life intrinsic
shares share (in years) value
Outstanding at August 28, 20 112¢ % 19.2¢
Grantec 21.€ 2.97
Exercisec (0.0 4.9C
Cancelled or expired (18.0 19.12
Outstanding at September 3, 2009 116.F 16.2¢ 29C ¢ 96
Exercisable at September 3, 2( 86.z $ 20.2( 224 3 3
Expected to vest after September 3, 2 26.¢ 5.0¢ 4.74 81
The following table summarizes information abouti@ps outstanding as of September 3, 2009:
Outstanding options Exercisable options
Weightec- Weightec-
average Weighted- average
remaining average exercise
Number of contractual  exerciseprice  Number of price
Range of exercise price shares life (in years) per share shares per share
$085- % 9.79 29.C 49 $ 3.9¢ 32 % 7.1t
10.00 - 14.01 43.1 2.7¢ 12.51] 39.1 12.47
14.06 - 22.8¢ 21.¢ 2.54 19.0¢ 21.4 19.1¢
23.25 - 39.94 19.5 0.77 31.7¢ 19.5 31.7¢
40.57 - 96.56 3.C 1.11 66.47 3.C 66.47
116. 2.9C 16.2¢ 86.2 20.2C

The weighted-average grant-date fair value peresivais $1.71, $2.52 and $4.87 for options granteithgl2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The total intrinsic value was de imis, $1 million and $32 million for options exeseid during 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Changes in the Company’s nonvested options for 200%ummarized as follows:

Weightec-

average

grant date

Number of fair value

shares per share
Nonvested at August 28, 20 171 % 4.21
Granted 21.¢€ 1.71
Vested (6.5) 4.7¢
Cancelled (1.9 3.3:
Nonvested at September 3, 2( 30.8 2.3¢€

As of September 3, 2009, $43 million of total urngrized compensation cost related to nonvesteddsweais expected to be recognized
through the fourth quarter of 2013, resulting weighted-average period of 1.3 years. The Comzamghvested options as of September 3,
2009 have a weighted-average exercise price oB$d.deighted-average remaining contractual lifd.@%7 years and an aggregate intrinsic
value of $93 million.
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The fair values of option awards were estimatedfdlse date of grant using the Black-Scholes optiaination model. The Black-
Scholes model was developed for use in estimalieddir value of traded options which have no vegtestrictions and are fully transferable
and requires the input of subjective assumptior@duding the expected stock price volatility antireated option life. The expected
volatilities utilized by the Company were basedraplied volatilities from traded options on the Goamy’s stock and on historical
volatility. The expected lives of options granted®009 were based, in part, on historical expegesind on the terms and conditions of the
options. The expected lives of options grantedrpgg 2009 were based on the simplified method iplexy/by the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The risk-free interest rates utilibgdhe Company were based on the U.S. Treasurg yiedffect at the time of the grant. No
dividends were assumed in the Company’s estimgtédrovalues. Assumptions used in the Black-Scholedel are presented below:

2009 2008 2007
Average expected life in yea 4.92 4.2t 4.2k
Weightec-average volatility 73% 47% 3%
Weightec-average ris-free interest rat 1.%% 2.5% 4.7%

Restricted stock and restricted stock units (“Réstied Stock Awards”): As of September 3, 2009, there were 9.4 millioarss of
Restricted Stock Awards outstanding, of which 4illian were performance-based Restricted Stock AlsarFor service-based Restricted
Stock Awards, restrictions generally lapse eithesrie-fourth or one-third increments during eaclr yd¢ employment after the grant
date. For performance-based Restricted Stock Asyamsbting is contingent upon meeting certain Camppaide performance goals, none of
which were achieved or deemed probable to achiew# September 3, 2009. Restricted Stock Awartsitycfor 2009 is summarized as
follows:

Weightec-
average
remaining
contractual Aggregate
Number of life intrinsic
shares (in years) value
Outstanding at August 28, 20 9.2
Granted 3.€
Restrictions lapse (2.2
Cancelled (1.9
Outstanding at September 3, 2009 9.4 177 ¢ 67
Expected to vest after September 3, 2 5.2 211 % 37

The weighted-average grant-date fair value forritetl stock awards granted during 2009, 2008 &QF 2vas $4.40, $8.41 and $14.91
per share, respectively. The aggregate valuesdtfise date of awards for which restrictions ldghging 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $8
million, $12 million and $11 million, respectivelyAs of September 3, 2009, there was $28 milliotot#l unrecognized compensation cost,
net of estimated forfeitures, related to nonveséstricted stock awards, which is expected to begeized through the second quarter of
2013, resulting in a weighted-average period ofyeérs.

Stock purchase planThe Company’s 1989 Employee Stock Purchase PIa&®RFE) plan was suspended during 2008 and expirgdglu
20009.
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Stock-based compensation expens&ptal compensation costs for the Company’s equians were as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Stocl-based compensation expense by cap
Cost of goods sol $ 16 $ 15 $ 11
Selling, general and administrati 16 19 21
Research and developm 13 14 12
Other operating (income) expense (1) -- --
$ 44 $ 48 $ 44
Stocl-based compensation expense by type of av
Stock options $ 29 % 26 $ 26
Restricted stock awards 15 22 18
$ 44 $ 48 $ 44

Stock-based compensation expense of $3 millioncapgalized and remained in inventory as of Septmb2009 and August 28,
2008. As of September 3, 2009, $71 million of tot@recognized compensation costs, net of estinfatéeitures, related to non-vested
awards was expected to be recognized through tivehfquarter of 2013, resulting in a weighted-agerperiod of 1.2 years. Stock-based
compensation expense in the above presentationnddesflect any significant income tax benefithieh is consistent with the Company’s
treatment of income or loss from its U.S. operatio(See “Income Taxes” note.)

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has employee retirement plans at s &hd international sites. Details of the mogai§icant plans are discussed as
follows:

Employee savings plan for U.S. employee$he Company has a 401(k) retirement plan (“RAMNP) under which U.S. employees m
contribute up to 45% of their eligible pay (subjectRS annual contribution limits) to various gays alternatives, none of which include
direct investment in the Company’s common stockdéf the RAM plan, the Company matched in cashibédigontributions from
employees up to 4% of the employee’s annual ebgalrnings or $2,000, whichever was greater. 092the Company suspended its match
under in the RAM plan. Contribution expense fa @ompany’s RAM Plan was $16 million, $32 millionda$31 million in 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

Retirement plans The Company has pension plans in various cosnivildwide. The pension plans are only availabliacal
employees and are generally government mandatpdn Bdoption of FAS 158 as of August 30, 2007 Gbewpany increased its liability by
$8 million related to the unfunded pension liakgktof the plans.

Restructure

In response to a severe downturn in the semicondustmory industry and global economic conditidghs, Company initiated
restructure plans in 2009 primarily within the Canp’s Memory segment. In the first quarter of 2008 Flash, a joint venture between the
Company and Intel, terminated its agreement wighGbmpany to obtain NAND Flash memory supply fréwea €ompany’s Boise facility,
reducing the Company’s NAND Flash production byragpmately 35,000 200mm wafers per month. In catioe with the termination of
the NAND Flash memory supply agreement, Intel pa@lCompany $208 million in 2009. The Company btell agreed to suspend tooling
and the ramp of NAND Flash production at IM FlasGisgapore wafer fabrication facility. In additidhe Company phased out all
remaining 200mm DRAM wafer manufacturing operationBoise, Idaho in the second half of 2009. Assult of these restructure plans,
the Company reduced employment in 2009 by appraeiynd,600 employees, or approximately 20%. Duenggrovements in market
conditions and the pursuit of new business oppditan future reduction in employees may not occlis. of September 3, 2009, the Comp
expects to incur additional restructure costs ih@6f approximately $2 million, excluding any gaorsadditional losses from disposition of
equipment. In 2008 and 2007, to reduce costgCtmpany implemented restructure initiatives inahgdivorkforce reductions and relocating
and outsourcing certain of its operations. Thfeihg table summarizes restructure charges (gedisulting from the Company’s
restructure activities:
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2009 2008 2007

Write-down of equipmer $ 152 $ - $ ==
Severance and other employee ¢ 60 23 18
Gain from termination of NAND Flash supply agreetr (1449 -- --
Other 2 10 1

$ 70 $ 33 $ 19

During 2009 the Company made cash payments of $i@mfor severance and other termination benefaibstantially all of the
charges in 2008 and 2007 were paid in those yessof September 3, 2009 and August 28, 2008, $itomand $6 million, respectively, of
restructure costs, primarily related to severamekeather termination benefits, remained unpaidwerk included in accounts payable and
accrued expenses.

Other Operating (Income) Expense, Net

Other operating (income) expense consisted ofahewing:

2009 2008 2007
(Gain) loss on disposition of property, plant agdipment $ 54 $ (66) $ (43
Loss on sale of majority interest in Apti 41 - -
Losses from changes in currency exchange 30 25 14
Other (18) (50) (47)
$ 107 $ 91) $ (76)

In the table above, “Other” for 2008 included $3&8ion for receipts from the U.S. government in oection with anti-dumping tariffs
and for 2007, included $30 million from the saleceftain intellectual property to Toshiba Corparatand $7 million in grants received in
connection with the Company’s operations in Chifee “Equity Method Investments — Aptina” note.)

Income Taxes

The Company’s income tax (provision) and loss kefaxes, noncontrolling interests in net (inconesysland equity in net losses of
equity method investees consisted of the following:

2009 2008 2007
Loss before taxes, noncontrolling interests in(metome) loss and equity in net losse:
equity method investee
u.sS. $ 377 $ 1,719 $ (577
Foreign (427) 10z 402
$ (1,809 $ (1,610 $ (16€)
Income tax (provision) benefi
Current:
U.S. federa $ 12 3 7 % (5)
State == == ==
Foreign (12 (17) (39)
-- (24) (44)
Deferred:
U.S. federa - - -
State -- -- --
Foreign (2) 6 14
(2) 6 14
Income tax (provision) $ 2 $ (18 $ (30)
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The Company’s income tax (provision) computed usitegU.S. federal statutory rate reconciled toGleenpany’s income tax (provision)
follows:

2009 2008 2007

U.S. federal income tax (provision) at statutorg $ 631 $ 564 $ 59
State taxes, net of federal ben 38 38 3
Tax credits 18 8 25
Change in valuation allowan: (5549) (44¢) (219
Foreign operation (13%) (22) 93
Goodwill impairmen - (15%) --
Other -- (6) 9

Income tax (provision) $ 2 $ (18 $ (30

State taxes reflect investment tax credits of #ianj $12 million and $10 million for 2009, 2008ié 2007, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the bases of aaseétfiabilities for financial reporting
and income tax purposes. The Company’s deferredssets and liabilities consist of the followirgycd the end of the periods shown below:

2009 2008
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss and credit carryforwa $ 1,96 $ 1,35¢
Inventories 197 23t
Basis differences in investments in joint ventt 10€ 20C
Deferred incom 78 15t
Accrued salaries, wages and bene 74 76
Other 27 48
Gross deferred tax assi 2,447 2,07z
Less valuation allowance (2,119 (1,569
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 32¢ 503
Deferred tax liabilities
Unremitted earnings on certain subsidia (87) (119
Product and process technolc 47 (48)
Intangible asset (472) (52)
Receivable! (15) (43)
Excess tax over book depreciati (12 (141
Other (6) (16)
Deferred tax liabilities (20€) (413
Net deferred tax assets $ 121 $ 90
Reported as
Current deferred tax assets (included in otherecuirassets $ 18 $ 25
Noncurrent deferred tax assets (included in othsets 107 74
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities (included ifnet liabilities) (4) (9)
Net deferred tax assets $ 121 $ 90

The Company has a valuation allowance against antistly all of its U.S. net deferred tax assets. of September 3, 2009, the
Company had aggregate U.S. tax net operating krsgforwards of $4.2 billion and unused U.S. taadit carryforwards of $212
million. The Company also has unused state taxpetating loss carryforwards of $2.6 billion amiised state tax credits of $198 million as
of September 3, 2009. Substantially all of theapetrating loss carryforwards expire in 2022 to288d substantially all of the tax credit
carryforwards expire in 2013 to 2029. As a consage of prior business acquisitions, utilizatiorihaf tax benefits for some of the tax
carryforwards is subject to limitations imposedSsction 382 of the Internal Revenue Code and samtip or all of these carryforwards
may not be available to offset any future taxabt®me.
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The changes in valuation allowance of $549 milkma $427 million in 2009 and 2008, respectivelg, priimarily due to uncertainties of
realizing certain U.S. net operating losses anthitetax credit carryforwards.

Provision has been made for deferred taxes on witdited earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries to tkter that dividend payments from
such companies are expected to result in additiaxdiability. During 2008 a decision was madeti be indefinitely reinvested in certain
foreign jurisdictions. For the year ended Augut 2008, $322 million of earnings that in prior yehad been considered indefinitely
reinvested in foreign operations were determineabttonger be indefinitely reinvested. This demisiesulted in no impact to the
consolidated statement of operations as the Comipasa full valuation allowance against its net.ld&Serred tax assets. Remaining
undistributed earnings of $410 million as of SegienB, 2009 have been indefinitely reinvested;efoee, no provision has been made for
taxes due upon remittance of these earnings. matation of the amount of unrecognized deferreditbility on these unremitted earnings
is not practicable.

Below is a reconciliation of the beginning and ergdamount of unrecognized tax benefits:

2009 2008
Beginning unrecognized tax bene $ 1 % 16
Expiration of foreign statutes of limitatiol (€D} (15)
Other 1 --
Ending unrecognized tax benefits $ 1 $ 1

The balance at September 3, 2009 and August 28, Z@idesents unrecognized income tax benefits,wihiecognized, would affect tf
Company’s effective tax rate. As of September@®® accrued interest and penalties related tortaindax positions was $2 million.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tanrres with the United States federal governmenipua U.S. states and various
foreign jurisdictions throughout the world. Ther@many’s U.S. federal and state tax returns rempémdo examination for 2005 through
2009 and 2004 through 2009, respectively. In &lditax years open to examination in multiple fgnetaxing jurisdictions range from 2002
to 2009. The Company is currently undergoing audiforeign jurisdictions for years 2005 throud)09.

Earnings Per Share

2009 2008 2007
Net loss available to common shareholders $ (1,835 $ (1,619 $ (320
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 800.7 772.5 769.1
Loss per share
Basic $ (2.29 $ (2.10 $ (0.42)
Diluted (2.29) (2.10 (0.42)

Listed below are the potential common shares, @iseoénd of the periods shown below, that couldteibasic earnings per share in the
future that were not included in the computationliiited earnings per share because to do so wawld been antidilutive:

2009 2008 2007
Employee stock plar 126.C 122.1 124.¢
Convertible note 142.¢ 97.€ 97.¢€
Common stock warran - - 29.1
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Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

NAND Flash joint ventures with Intel (“IM Flash”): The Company has formed two joint ventures witielldM Flash Technologies,
LLC formed January 2006 and IM Flash Singapore Edifhed February 2007) to manufacture NAND Flash mgnproducts for the
exclusive benefit of the partners. IMFT and IMAS each governed by a Board of Managers, with Mienod Intel initially appointing an
equal number of managers to each of the boards.nlimber of managers appointed by each party adjegtending on the parties’
ownership interests. These ventures will operati 2016 but are subject to prior termination undertain terms and conditions. IMFT and
IMFS are aggregated as IM Flash in the followingcttisure due to the similarity of their ownershijusture, function, operations and the \
the Company’s management reviews the results afaperations. At inception and through Septenther009, the Company owned 51%
and Intel owned 49% of IM Flash.

IM Flash is a variable interest entity as defingd=tN 46(R) because all costs of IM Flash are pds$sehe Company and Intel through
product purchase agreements. IM Flash is depengem the Company and Intel for any additional aasfuirements. The Company and
Intel are also considered related parties undeptbeisions of FIN 46(R) due to restrictions omsters of ownership interests. As a result,
the primary beneficiary of IM Flash is the entibat is most closely associated with IM Flash. Tleenpany considered several factors to
determine whether it or Intel is more closely agsed with IM Flash, including the size and natoféM Flash’s operations relative to the
Company and Intel, and which entity had the majasfteconomic exposure under the purchase agreesmeBatsed on those factors, the
Company determined that it is more closely assediatith IM Flash and is therefore the primary benafy. Accordingly, the financial
results of IM Flash are included in the Companyasolidated financial statements and all amountsjmeng to Intel’s interests in IM Flash
are reported as noncontrolling interests in subsiel. (See “Significant Accounting Policies” npte

IM Flash manufactures NAND Flash memory productegidesigns developed by the Company and Intebddrit design and other
research and development (“R&D") costs for NANDdgHare generally shared equally between the Comgrathyntel. As a result of
reimbursements received from Intel under a NANDsRIR&D cost-sharing arrangement, the Company’s R&pPenses were reduced by
$107 million, $148 million and $240 million in 2002008 and 2007, respectively.

IM Flash sells products to the joint venture parrgeenerally in proportion to their ownership atdeterm negotiated prices
approximating cost. IM Flash sales to Intel weB8& million, $1,037 million and $497 million for 29, 2008 and 2007, respectively. As of
September 3, 2009 and August 28, 2008, IM Flashréegivables from Intel primarily for sales of NANBash products of $95 million and
$144 million, respectively. In addition, as of 8apber 3, 2009 and August 28, 2008, the Companydwvables from Intel of $29 million
and $71 million, respectively, related to NAND Fgwoduct design and process development activiesof September 3, 2009 and Aug
28, 2008, IM Flash had payables to Intel of $3iomlland $4 million, respectively, for various sees.

Under the terms of a wafer supply agreement, thegamy manufactured wafers for IM Flash in its Bpls@ho facility. In the first
quarter of 2009, the Company and Intel agreedsoaditinue production of NAND flash memory for IMaBh at the Boise facility. Pursuant
to the termination agreement, Intel paid the Corg&208 million in 2009. Also in the first quartef 2009, IM Flash substantially complet
construction of a new 300mm wafer fabrication facitructure in Singapore and the Company and &geeed to suspend tooling and the
ramp of production at this facility.

IM Flash distributed $695 million and $132 milliém Intel in 2009 and 2008, respectively, and $728an and $137 million to the
Company in 2009 and 2008, respectively. Inteltbated $24 million, $393 million and $1,238 miltido IM Flash in 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The Company contributed $25 milléovd $409 million and $1,017 million to IM Flash2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Intel’s contributions in 2007 incaet$261 million as part of its initial obligatiofrem the formation of IM Flash in January
2006. The Company’s ability to access IM Flaslashcand marketable investment securities ($114omils of September 3, 2009) to
finance the Company'’s other operations is subfeeagreement by the joint venture partners.
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Total IM Flash assets and liabilities includedhe Company’s consolidated balance sheets arelag/ol

September 3 August 28,

As of 2009 2008
Assets
Cash and equivalen $ 114 % 398
Receivable! 111 16¢
Inventories 161 22t
Other current assets 8 14
Total current asse 394 801
Property, plant and equipment, | 3,371 3,99¢
Other assets 63 58
Total assets $ 3,832 $ 4,857
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 93 $ 16€
Deferred incom 137 67
Equipment purchase contra 1 18
Current portion of long-term debt 6 5
Total current liabilities 237 25€
Long-term debi 66 38
Other liabilities 4 5
Total liabilities $ 307 $ 29¢

Amounts exclude intercompany balances that areiredit|d in the Compars consolidated balance sheets. IMFT and IMFS aygragated
as IM Flash in this disclosure due to the simibaiif their ownership structure, function, operasand the way the Comparyhanageme!
reviews the results of their operatiol

The creditors of IM Flash have recourse only toabgets of IM Flash and do not have recourse tmtrgr assets of the Company.

MP Mask Technology Center, LLC (“MP Mask”): In 2006, the Company formed a joint venture, M&sk| with Photronics, Inc.
(“Photronics”) to produce photomasks for leadingeednd advanced next generation semiconductorgcéption and through September 3,
2009, the Company owned 50.01% and Photronics ow8€19% of MP Mask. The Company purchases a suiitanajority of the reticles
produced by MP Mask pursuant to a supply arrangéniarconnection with the formation of the joirgnture, the Company received $72
million in 2006 in exchange for entering into aelise agreement with Photronics, which is beinggeieed over the term of the 10-year
agreement. As of September 3, 2009, deferred ircmd other noncurrent liabilities included an aggte of $48 million related to this
agreement. MP Mask made distributions to bothGbmpany and Photronics of $10 million each in 20B8otronics contributed $8 million
and $11 million to MP Mask in 2008 and 2007, resipety. The Company contributed $4 million to MPabk in 2007.

MP Mask is a variable interest entity as definedrby 46(R) because all costs of MP Mask are passdd the Company and Photronics
through product purchase agreements and MP Matgpisndent upon the Company and Photronics fomddigional cash
requirements. The Company and Photronics arecalssidered related parties under the provisioridf46(R) due to restrictions on
transfers of ownership interests. As a resultpifimary beneficiary of MP Mask is the entity tlgimore closely associated with MP
Mask. The Company considered several factorsterméne whether it or Photronics is more closelgoagated with the joint venture. The
most important factor was the nature of the joeiture’s operations relative to the Company andrBhizs. Based on those factors, the
Company determined that it is more closely assediatith the joint venture and therefore is the jmynbeneficiary. Accordingly, the
financial results of MP Mask are included in then@@any’s consolidated financial statements andrabiunts pertaining to Photonics’ interest
in MP Mask are reported as noncontrolling interassubsidiaries.
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Total MP Mask assets and liabilities included ia @ompany’s consolidated balance sheets are asvill

September 3 August 28,

As of 2009 2008

Current assel $ 25 $ 27
Noncurrent assets (primarily property, plant andigapent) 97 121
Current liabilities 8 11

Amounts exclude intercompany balances that arerait®ed in the Compar's consolidated balance shee
The creditors of MP Mask have recourse only toassets of MP Mask and do not have recourse to thiey assets of the Company.

In 2008, the Company completed the constructioa faicility to produce photomasks and sold the itgdid Photronics under a build to
suit lease agreement, with quarterly payments tiiradlanuary 2013. On May 19, 2009, the CompanyPdradronics entered into an
agreement whereby the Company repurchased théyfdim Photronics for $50 million and leased fheility to Photronics under an
operating lease providing for quarterly lease paysaggregating $41 million through October 2014.

TECH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Since 1998, the Company has participated in TECHI&mnductor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“TECH"), a semidoctor memory
manufacturing joint venture in Singapore amongGbenpany, Canon Inc. and Hewlett-Packard Company(yH
The financial results of TECH are included in then@hany’s consolidated financial statements andrathunts pertaining to Canon Inc. and
HP are reported as noncontrolling interests inislidr$es. The Company began consolidating TECHtarfcial results in 2006.

The shareholders’ agreement for the TECH joint wenéexpires in April 2011, but automatically exteridr 10 years unless one or more
of the shareholders provides a non-extension patifin. In the first quarter of 2010, TECH receiwenotice from HP that it does not intend
to extend the TECH joint venture beyond April 20Ihe Company is working with HP and Canon to remcbsolution of the matter. The
parties’ inability to reach a resolution of thisthea prior to April 2011 could result in the disstbn of TECH.

In the second quarter of 2009, the Company eniatedx term loan agreement with the EDB that erchtile Company to borrow up to
$300 million Singapore dollars at 5.4%. The Comypaas required to use the proceeds from any bomgsviinder the facility to make equ
contributions to TECH. On February 27, 2009, tleenpany drew $150 million Singapore dollars underftzility and used the proceeds to
purchase shares of TECH for $99 million. On Jun20®9, the Company drew the remaining $150 milémgapore dollars under the faci
and purchased additional shares of TECH for $98anil Additionally, on August 27, 2009, the Comgaurchased shares of TECH for $60
million. As a result, the Company’s interest inQiE increased from approximately 73% as of August?2®8 to approximately 85% in
August 2009. As a result of these share purchése€ompany reduced noncontrolling interests bg@8lion during 2009. Because the
cost of the noncontrolling interest acquired wasWwearrying value, the Company’s carrying value T&CH'’s property, plant and equipm
was also reduced $87 million. (See “Debt” note.)

In March 2007, the Company acquired all of the shaf TECH common stock held by the Singapore Ecin®evelopment Board for
approximately $290 million, increasing the Compangvnership interest in TECH from 43% to 73%.

TECH'’s cash and marketable investment securiti#@8&$nillion as of September 3, 2009) are not guaid to be available to pay
dividends of the Company or finance its other opena. As of September 3, 2009, TECH had $548anilbutstanding under a credit facil
which is collateralized by substantially all of thesets of TECH (carrying value of approximately4$8 million as of September 3, 2009) i
contains covenants that, among other requiremesitablish certain liquidity, debt service coveragd leverage ratios, and restrict TECH’s
ability to incur indebtedness, create liens anduaepr dispose of assets. As of September 3,,26@3Company was in compliance with
these covenants. In the first quarter of 2010, FiE@dified its debt covenants. In connection wiitt modification, the Company has
guaranteed approximately 85% of the outstandinguentnioorrowed under TECH'’s credit facility and then@pany’s guarantee could increase
up to 100% of the outstanding amount borrowed utttefacility based on further increases in the Gany’s ownership interest in TECH
and other conditions. (See “Debt” note.)
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Acquisition of Avago Technologies Limited Image Sesor Business (“Avago”)

On December 11, 2006, the Company acquired the CM@8e sensor business of Avago. The acquisitiowigled Imaging with an
experienced imaging team, select imaging produndsiratellectual property relating to Avago’s imaggnsor business. The Company
acquired Avago for $63 million in cash. The Compascorded total assets of $64 million (includingangible assets of $17 million and
goodwill of $46 million) and total liabilities ofmillion. The acquired goodwill is not deductilite tax purposes. The Compasykesults ¢
operations subsequent to the acquisition datededine CMOS image sensor business acquired frorgdaa part of the Comparsyimaging
segment. Mercedes Johnson, a member of the Corsdaogrd of Directors, was the Senior Vice Presidemance and Chief Financial
Officer of Avago at the time of the transactions.Mohnson recused herself from all deliberatidikeoCompany’s Board of Directors
concerning this transaction.

Segment Information

The Company’s reportable segments are Memory aading. The Memory segment’s primary products aRAD and NAND Flash
memory and the Imaging segment’s primary produ€iNEOS image sensors. Subsequent to the saleS¥er@erest in Aptina on July 10,
2009, the Company’s Imaging segment continues taufiaature products for Aptina under a wafer suggyeement and also provides
services to Aptina. Segment information reportelbW is consistent with how it is reviewed and eedtd by the Company’s chief operating
decision makers and is based on the nature of tingp@ny’s operations and products offered to custemehe Company does not identify or
report depreciation and amortization, capital exlitemes or assets by segment. (See “Equity Metheestments — Aptina” note.)

2009 2008 2007
Net sales
Memory $ 429C $ 518t $ 5,001
Imaging 51: 653 687
Total consolidated net sales $ 4,80 $ 5841 $ 5,68¢
Operating income (loss
Memory $ (1,499 $ (1,569 $ (28¢)
Imaging (17€) (37) 8
Total consolidated operating income (loss) $ (1,675 $ (1,599 $ (280)

Certain Concentrations

Approximately 30% of the Company’s net sales fdd2Were to the computing market, including desl®qs, servers, notebooks and
workstations. Sales to Intel were 20% of the Camyfsanet sales in 2009 and were included in the Blgnsegment. Sales of DRAM,
NAND Flash and CMOS image sensor products conetit60%, 39% and 11%, respectively, of the Com’s net sales for 2009. Certain
components used by the Company in manufacturingcseuctor products are available from a limitedniver of suppliers.

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consigtgpally of cash, investment securit
and trade receivables. The Company invests thrbigitrcredit-quality financial institutions and, pylicy, generally limits the concentration
of credit exposure by restricting investments weitty single obligor. A concentration of credit rislay exist with respect to receivables as a
substantial portion of the Company’s customersaffikated with the computing industry. The Comgarerforms ongoing credit evaluations
of customers worldwide and generally does not megenllateral from its customers. Historicallyet@ompany has not experienced
significant losses on receivables. The Compangsp@d Call instruments expose the Company to arisHito the extent that the counter
parties may be unable to meet the terms of theeaggat. The Company seeks to mitigate such ridkriting its counter parties to major
financial institutions and by spreading the riskogs several major financial institutions. In ditai, the potential risk of loss with any one
counter party resulting from this type of credskkris monitored on an ongoing basis. (See “Shadehsl Equity — Capped call transactions”
note.)
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Geographic Information

Geographic net sales based on customer ship-tidacaere as follows:

2009 2008 2007
China $ 124: $ 1372 $ 1,064
Asia Pacific (excluding China, Malaysia and Taiw 99C 1,66( 1,44¢
United State: 92¢ 1,48¢ 1,71¢
Malaysia 542 17z 21F
Europe 47C 55¢ 66€
Taiwan 447 304 30¢
Other 184 287 267
$ 4,80 $ 5841 $ 5,68¢

Net property, plant and equipment by geographia aras as follows:

2009 2008 2007
United State: $ 4,67C $ 6,00 $ 6,54¢
Singapore 2,06¢ 2,34¢ 1,21z
Italy 18C 25¢ 26¢
Japar 112 171 22¢€
Other 53 32 28
$ 7,081 $ 8,811 $ 8,27¢
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Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
(in millions except per share amounts)

First Second Third Fourth

2009 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 1,40z $ 998 $ 1,10¢ $ 1,302
Gross margir (449) (267) 107 17C
Operating los! (672) (70¢) (24€) (49
Net loss (70€) (757) (290) (88)
Diluted loss per shai $ 0.91) $ 0.97) $ (0.3¢) $ (0.10)

First Second Third Fourth

2008 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 153 % 1,35¢ % 1,49 $ 1,44¢
Gross margir 5 (43 48 (65)
Operating los! (260) (772) (22%) (33§
Net loss (262) (777) (23€) (344)
Diluted loss per shal $ (039 $ (1.01) $ (030 $ (0.4%)

The results of operations for the second quarte?@9 and 2008 included charges of $58 million A3 million, respectively, to write
off all the goodwill associated with the Companitsgging and Memory segments, respectively.

The Company'’s results of operations for the se@mlfirst quarters of 2009 included charges of $284on and $369 million,
respectively, to write down the carrying value afriwin process and finished goods inventories afmy products (both DRAM and NAND
Flash) to their estimated market values. The Cawypgaesults of operations for the fourth, second first quarters of 2008 included charges
of $205 million, $15 million and $62 million, resgevely, to write down the carrying value of workprocess and finished goods inventories
of memory products to their estimated market valugs charges to write down inventories are recdlideadvance of when inventories are
sold, gross margins in subsequent periods are htgha they otherwise would be.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company sold%6nterest in its Aptina business. In connectlmrewith, in the third quarter of fisc
2009, the Company recorded a charge of $53 miftiothe sale and in the fourth quarter, recordededit of $12 million to adjust the
estimated loss to the final loss of $41 million.

In the fourth quarter of 2008, costs of goods $eldefited by $70 million due to settlements of ipdgcadjustments with certain suppliers.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Micron Technology, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index appearing uttéen 8 present fairly, in all materi
respects, the financial position of Micron Techmgylolnc. and its subsidiaries at September 3, 20@PAugust 28, 2008, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for eachefthree years in the period ended September 3, ia0fbnformity with accounting principl
generally accepted in the United States of Amerloaaddition, in our opinion, the financial statem schedule listed in the accompanying
index appearing under Item 8 presents fairly, inmelterial respects, the information set forth ¢firewhen read in conjunction with the rela
consolidated financial statements. Also in our @pinthe Company maintained, in all material respesffective internal control over
financial reporting as of September 3, 2009, basedriteria established imternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimis@COSO). The Company's management is respaibthese financial statements
and financial statement schedule, for maintainiifigciive internal control over financial reportiagd for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, inded in Management's Report on Internal Control Gsieancial Reporting appearing under
Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opiniamsthese financial statements, on the financakstent schedule, and on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting basedoom integrated audits. We conducted our audigegordance with the standards of the Pt
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Statd¥)ose standards require that we plan and perfioenaudits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatises of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@sir audits of the financial statements includedneixing, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fiahstatements, assessing the accounting prirscyled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&estent presentation. Our audit of internal cdrdver financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control drgaincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenéggernal control based on the assessed risk. addits also included performing such ot
procedures as we considered necessary in the dtanoes. We believe that our audits provide a redse basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firtéal reporting includes those policies and proceslthat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (i) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companysats that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
October 28, 2009
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéinting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried out under the superviaioth with the participation of the Company’s mamaget, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officexf, the effectiveness of the design and operatiah®@Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 1%e}1mder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)fdseoend of the period covered by this
report. Based upon that evaluation, the prinagsaicutive officer and principal financial officenricluded that those disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to ensure that inforrmatémuired to be disclosed by the Company in tpents that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summadpedeported, within the time periods specifiethe@ Commission’s rules and forms and
(if) accumulated and communicated to the Compamgdsagement, including the Company'’s principal ekeewfficer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timelgaisions regarding required disclosure.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, there &vap changes in the Company’s internal control éimancial reporting that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, the Company’s internal control o¥imancial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controt émancial reporting for the
Company. Internal control over financial reportinga process designed to provide reasonable assuragarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with acéogmtrinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. The Compasinternal control over financial reporting inclsdbose policies and procedures that (i) pertathe
maintenance of records that in reasonable detailrately reflect the transactions and dispositifithe assets of the Company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the Company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; andpfiiiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company'se¢s that could have a material effect on the Caoryipdinancial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannobyide absolute assurance regarding the preventidetection of misstatements because
of inherent limitations. These inherent limitaoawre known by management and considered in thgndesthe Company’s internal control
over financial reporting which reduce, though Hohmate, this risk.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effentige of the Company’s internal control over finahoéporting based on the
framework in “Internal Control — Integrated FrameWassued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaiizes of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation, managenwrdieded that the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting waseetfve as o
September 3, 2009. The effectiveness of the Coyipanternal control over financial reporting as®dptember 3, 2009 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registarblic accounting firm, as stated in their répehich is included in Part Il, ltem 8,
this Form 10-K.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners alanagement and Related Stockholder Matters
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Certain information concerning the registrant's@i@ve officers is included under the caption, ‘@itors and Executive Officers of the
Registrant,” in Part I, Item 1 of this report. @thnformation required by Items 10, 11, 12, 13 addvill be contained in the registrant’s
Proxy Statement which will be filed with the Seties and Exchange Commission within 120 days &egtember 3, 2009 and is
incorporated herein by reference.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
The following documents are filed as part of tiepart:
1. Financial Statement: See Index to Consolidatedr@ial Statements under Item

2. Certain Financial Statement Schedules have beetieghsince they are either not required, not apple or the information
otherwise includec

3. Exhibits.

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibits

1.1 Underwriting Agreement dated as of May 17, 2007abgt between Micron Technology, Inc. and Morgamigia& Co.
Incorporated, as representative of the underwr{ter

1.2 Note Underwriting Agreement, dated as of April 809, by and among Micron Technology, Inc. and Mar§&anley & Co
Incorporated and Goldman, Sachs & Co., as reprathess of the underwriters (;

1.3 Common Stock Underwriting Agreement, dated as afl&p 2009, by and among Micron Technology, Ined&lorgan Stanle
& Co. Incorporated and Goldman, Sachs & Co., asessmtatives of the underwriters

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Microchiielogy, Inc., March 2006 Merger Corp. and Lexadi4, Inc., dated
as of March 8, 2006 (:

2.2 First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Mergeediats of May 30, 2006, by and among Micron Tectmgltnc., March
2006 Merger Corp. and Lexar Media, Inc.

2.3 Second Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Mergeddss of June 4, 2006, by and among Micron Tecgyplinc., March
2006 Merger Corp. and Lexar Media, Inc.

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Reagist (6)

3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended

4.2 Securities Purchase Agreement dated Septembef@3, Between the Registrant and Intel Capital Cagm (8)

4.3 Stock Rights Agreement dated September 24, 20@&eke the Registrant and Intel Capital Corpora®)r

4.4 Indenture dated March 30, 2005, by and betweenrdedlia, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Associatioh

4.5 First Supplemental Indenture to the Lexar Indentlaied as of June 21, 2006, between Lexar andBausk National
Association (10

4.6 Indenture dated as of May 23, 2007 by and betweienol Technology, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, Naglofissociation, as
trustee (1.

4.7 Convertible Senior Indenture between the Compai\dells Fargo Bank, National Association, datedfa&pril 15, 2009 (2]

4.8 Form of 4.25% Convertible Senior Note due Octolier2D13 (2]

10.1 Executive Officer Performance Incentive Plan (
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10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20*

10.21*

10.22*
10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*
10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
10.34*
10.35
10.36*
10.37*

10.38*

10.39*
10.40*
10.41*
10.42*

10.43*
10.44*

1989 Employee Stock Purchase Plan |

1994 Stock Option Plan (1

1994 Stock Option Plan Form of Agreement and TeantsConditions (12

1997 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (:

1998 Nor-Employee Director Stock Incentive Plan (:

1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (.

2001 Stock Option Plan (1

2001 Stock Option Plan Form of Agreement (

2002 Employment Inducement Stock Option Plan

2004 Equity Incentive Plan (.

2004 Equity Incentive Plan Forms of Agreement aachis and Conditions (1.

Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (1

Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan Form of Agreememt #arms and Conditions (1

Lexar Media, Inc. 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (.

Micron Quantum Devices, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Rlib4)

Micron Quantum Devices, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Psample Stock Option Assumption Letter (

Rendition, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan (

Rendition, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan Sampiec® Option Assumption Letter (1!

Settlement and Release Agreement dated Septemp200&, by and among Toshiba Corporation, Microahifelogy, Inc. ani
Acclaim Innovations, LLC (17

Patent License Agreement dated September 15, B9Gd among Toshiba Corporation, Acclaim Innovagjd_LC and
Micron Technology, Inc. (17

Omnibus Agreement dated as of February 27, 20Q%des Micron Technology, Inc. and Intel Corporat{@0)

Limited Liability Partnership Agreement dated ag-ebruary 27, 2007, between Micron Semiconductéa R¢e. Ltd. and Intel
Technology Asia Pte. Ltd. (1

Supply Agreement dated as of February 27, 200¥ydet Micron Semiconductor Asia Pte. Ltd. and IMskI&ingapore, LLP
(10)

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company @gieg Agreement of IM Flash Technologies, LLC datsdf February
27, 2007, between Micron Technology, Inc. and I@tetporation (10

Supply Agreement dated as of February 27, 200¥Wdm1 Intel Technology Asia Pte. Ltd. and IM Flasig&pore, LLP (10
Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Regig and its officers and directors (.

Form of Severance Agreement between the Companitsaafficers (19

Form of Agreement and Amendment to Severance Ageaebetween the Company and its officers |

Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 1998, betedRdgistrant and TECH Semiconductor Singaporelile(21)
Business Agreement dated September 24, 2003, betivedRegistrant and Intel Corporation

Securities Rights and Restrictions Agreement dStgatember 24, 2003, between the Registrant ankdGafstal (8)

Master Agreement dated as of November 18, 200%dat Micron Technology, Inc. and Intel Corporat{tB)

Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of IMash Technologies, LLC dated as of January 66 266tween Micron
Technology, Inc. and Intel Corporation (Z

Manufacturing Services Agreement dated as of Jgrfye2006, between Micron Technology, Inc. and Ildsk Technologies,
LLC (15)

Boise Supply Agreement dated as of January 6, 28818,een IM Flash Technologies, LLC and Micron Trealbgy, Inc. (15
MTV Lease Agreement dated as of January 6, 20G6;de® Micron Technology, Inc. and IM Flash Techigods, LLC (15)
Product Designs Assignment Agreement dated Jary&§06, between Intel Corporation and Micron Textbgy, Inc. (15)
NAND Flash Supply Agreement, effective as of Japar2006, between Apple Computer, Inc. and MicFfeshnology, Inc
(15)

Supply Agreement dated as of January 6, 2006, leetWwicron Technology, Inc. and IM Flash Technolsgie C (15)
Supply Agreement dated as of January 6, 2006, leetiweel Corporation and IM Flash Technologies, L(15)
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10.45
10.46
10.47
10.48
10.49
10.50
10.51*
10.52*
10.53*
10.54*
10.55*
10.56*
10.57*
10.58*
10.59
10.60

10.61

10.62
10.63
10.64
10.65*
10.66*

10.67
10.68

10.69

10.70

10.71*

10.72*

10.73*

10.74*

10.75*

Capped Call Confirmation (Reference No.CEODLG6) bgl between Micron Technology, Inc. and Morgan $tail Co.
International plc (1

Capped Call Confirmation (Reference No. 53228890artd between Micron Technology, Inc. and Credis&e International
1)

Capped Call confirmation (Reference No. 532288%53rd between Micron Technology, Inc. and CredisSaiInternational
(1)

2007 Equity Incentive Plan (1

2007 Equity Incentive Plan Forms of Agreements

Severance Agreement dated April 9, 2008, betweamdviiTechnology, Inc. and Ronald C. Foster |

Master Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2008, by between Nanya Technology Corporation and Micreahhology, Inc.
(24)

Joint Venture Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2088and between Micron Semiconductor B.V. and Nahgchnology
Corporation (24

Supply Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2008, byaamehg Micron Technology, Inc., Nanya Technologyg@oation and
MeiYa Technology Corporation (2:

Joint Development Program Agreement, dated as of Ap, 2008, by and between Nanya Technology Ci@an and Micron
Technology, Inc. (24

Technology Transfer and License Agreement for 68ab@rocess Nodes, dated as of April 21, 2008, bybatween Micron
Technology, Inc. and Nanya Technology Corporati4)

Technology Transfer and License Agreement, datext April 21, 2008, by and between Micron Technglolipc. and Nanya
Technology Corporation (2

Technology Transfer Agreement for 68-50nm Processel, dated as of May 13, 2008, by and betweernoki€echnology,
Inc. and MeiYa Corporation (2

Technology Transfer Agreement, dated as of May2088, by and among Nanya Technology Corporatioydti Technology
Inc. and MeiYa Technology Corporation (z

Services Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2008, dypaimveen Nanya Technology Corporation and MeiYehfielogy
Corporation (24

Micron Guaranty Agreement, dated April 21, 2008 amgl between Nanya Technology Corporation and Mi&emiconductor
B.V. (24)

TECH Facility Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, agh®dBCH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd. and ABNré\Bank N.V.,
Citibank, N.A., Singapore Branch, Citigroup Globddrkets Singapore Pte Ltd., DBS Bank Ltd and OwesShinese Banking
Corporation Limited, as Original Mandated Lead Agers (24

Guarantee, dated March 31, 2008, by Micron Techgygltnc. as Guarantor in favor of ABN Amro Bank N,\%ingapore
Branch acting as Security Trustee (

Form of Severance Agreement (.

Lexar Media, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan, as Ameindd)

Boise Supply Termination and Amendment Agreemeatted October 10, 2008, by and among Intel Corpamaivicron
Technology, Inc. and IM Flash Technologies, LLC)(

Loan Agreement, dated November 26, 2008, by anchgrivicron Semiconductor B.V., Micron Technologyclnand Nan Ya
Plastics Corporation (1:

Loan Agreement, dated November 26, 2008, by analdsst Micron Technology, Inc. and Inotera Memoriaes, (11)
Transition Agreement, dated October 11, 2008, lyaanong Nanya Technology Corporation, Qimonda AGtdra Memories
Inc. and Micron Technology, Inc. (1

Micron Guaranty Agreement, dated November 26, 26@8Vlicron Technology, Inc. in favor of Nanya Techogy Corporatiol
(11)

Share Purchase Agreement by and among Micron Témydnc. as the Buyer Parent, Micron SemiconduBt¥'., as the
Buyer, Qimonda Ag as the Seller Parent and Qimdfalding B.V., as the Seller Sub dated as of Octdier2008 (11
Master Agreement, dated November 26, 2008, amomgadiTechnology, Inc., Micron Semiconductor B.Varnya
Technology Corporation, MeiYa Technology Corponatamd Inotera Memories, Inc. (1

Joint Venture Agreement, dated November 26, 209&nid between Micron Semiconductor B.V. and Nangehhology
Corporation (11

Facilitation Agreement, dated November 26, 2008atg between Micron Semiconductor B.V., Nanya Tetdgy Corporatiol
and Inotera Memoaries, Inc. (1

Supply Agreement, dated November 26, 2008, by amshg Micron Technology, Inc., Nanya Technology Qogtion and
Inotera Memories, Inc. (1:

Amended and Restated Joint Development Programefugat, dated November 26, 2008, by and betweendNaaghnology
Corporation and Micron Technology, Inc. (I
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10.76*

10.77*

10.78*

10.79
10.80

10.81

10.82

10.83

10.84

10.85

211
23.1
311
31.2
32.1
32.2

Amended and Restated Technology Transfél&ense Agreement, dated November 26, 2008, bybatween Micron
Technology, Inc. and Nanya Technology Corporatil)

Technology Transfer Agreement, dated November @88 2by and among Nanya Technology Corporationydsic
Technology, Inc. and Inotera Memories, Inc. (

Technology Transfer Agreement for 68-50nm Procesde, dated October 11, 2008, by and between MiEeghnology, Inc.
and Inotera Memories, Inc. (1

Loan Agreement as of February 23, 2009, by and dmtvMicron Technology, Inc. and Economic Developinisard (26)
Mortgage and Charge Agreement as of February 28,28y and among Economic Development Board, Midrechnology,
Inc. and TECH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd)

Capped Call Confirmation (Reference No. SDB 163@822, dated as of April 8, 2009, by and betweenrbdficTechnology,
Inc. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. |

Capped Call Confirmation (Reference No. CGPWK®6)edas of April 8, 2009, by and between Micron Tresthgy, Inc. and
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc (

Capped Call Confirmation (Reference No. 325758dlas of April 8, 2009, by and between Micron Trexthgy, Inc. and
Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Amendment Agreement, dated September 25, 200 &@HTFacility Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, amdBgH
Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd. And ABN Amro Bahk., Citibank, N.A., Singapore Branch, CitigroGbobal Markets
Singapore Pte Ltd., DBS Bank Ltd and Oversea-Chkifzsking Corporation Limited, as Original Mandat&ad Arrangers
(27)

Supplemental Deed, dated September 25, 2009, tca@ea, dated March 31, 2008, by Micron Technoldggy, as Guarantor
in favor of ABN Amro Bank N.V., Singapore Branchtiag as Security Trustee (2

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Offic

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Offici

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuantt8 U.S.C. 135

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. 135

(1)
(2)
®3)
(4)
(®)
(6)
(7)
(8)
9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
@7)

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on R8-K dated May 17, 200

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 4, 2
Incorporated by reference to Current Report on R8-K dated March 8, 200

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on R8-K dated May 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on RE-K dated June 4, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 31, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Current Report on R8-K dated October 1, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on F8-K dated September 24, 20

Incorporated by reference to Lexar Media,’s Current Report on Forn-K dated March 30, 200
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 1, 2!
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 4, 2
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 3, 2!
Incorporated by reference to Current Report on R8-K dated April 3, 200!

Incorporated by reference to Registration Staterorriform -8 (Reg. No. 33-50353)

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 1, 2
Incorporated by reference to Registration Staterorrform -8 (Reg. No. 33-65449)

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Proxy Statement ferli®86 Annual Meeting of Sharehold

Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Fb€-K for the fiscal year ended August 28, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended February 27, 1
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 3, 1
Incorporated by reference to Registration Staternerorm -8 (Registration No. 3:-148357)
Incorporated by reference to Current Report on R8-K dated April 9, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 29, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Current Report on F8-K dated October 26, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 5, 2!
Incorporated by reference to Current Report on R8-K dated September 25, 20

* Portions of this exhibit have been omitted purdua a request for confidential treatment filedhathe Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized, in the City of Boise, State ofidaon the 28th day of October 2009.

Micron Technology, Inc

By: /sl Ronald C. Foster

Ronald C. Foster
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Gffic
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been sidiedow by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacitreban the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Steven R. Applet Chairman of the Board, October 28, 2009
(Steven R. Appleton) Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ Ronald C. Foste Vice President of Finance, October 28, 2009
(Ronald C. Foster) Chief Financial Officel

(Principal Financial an
Accounting Officer)

/sl Teruaki Aok Director October 28, 2009
(Teruaki Aoki)

/sl James W. Bagle Director October 28, 2009
(James W. Bagley’

/s/ Robert L. Baile' Director October 28, 2009
(Robert L. Bailey)

/s/ Mercedes Johnsc Director October 28, 2009
(Mercedes Johnson

/s/ Lawrence N. Mondr Director October 28, 2009
(Lawrence N. Mondry)

/s/ Robert E. Swit Director October 28, 2009
(Robert E. Switz)
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Allowance for Doubtful Account

MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Year ended September 3, 2(
Year ended August 28, 20!
Year ended August 30, 20

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowan

Year ended September 3, 2(
Year ended August 28, 20!
Year ended August 30, 20!

SCHEDULE Il
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in millions)
Charged
Balance at (Credited) to Balanceat
Beginning of Business Costs and Deductions/ End
Year Acquisitions Expenses Write-Offs of Year
$ 2 $ - $ 5 % 2 $ 5
4 - (1) (1) 2
4 -- 1 (1) 4
$ 156¢ $ - $ 554 % 5) $ 2,11¢
1,14z -- 44¢ (19) 1,56¢
91t (12 21¢ 20 1,14z
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Name

MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

EXHIBIT 21.1

State (or Jurisdiction)in
which Organized

Lexar Media, Inc
Micron Europe Limitec

Also does business as Lexar Me
Micron Japan, Ltd
Micron Semiconductor Asia Pte. Lt

Also does business as Lexar Me
Micron Semiconductor (Deutschland) Gm
Micron Semiconductor Products, Ir

Also does business as Crucial Technol
Micron Semiconductor (Shanghai) Co., L
Micron Semiconductor (Xiamen) Co., Li
Micron Semiconductor ('an) Co., Ltd.
Micron Technology Italia S.r.
Micron Technology Puerto Rico, In
Micron Technology Texas, LL!

Delaware
United Kingdom

Japar
Singapore

Germany
Idaho

China
China
China

Italy

Puerto Ricc
Idaho




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Forms S-3 (Fids.N833-71620, 333-143026, 333-
158473) and Forms S-8 (File Nos. 33-148357, 33-2783-57887, 33-65050, 333-07283, 333-17073, 3&530333-65449, 333-71249,
333-82549, 333-99271, 333-102545, 333-103341, 333-10, 333-120620, 333-133667, 333-135459, 333940833-159711) of Micron
Technology, Inc. of our report dated October, 2D09 relating to the financial statements, finasiatement schedule and the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, whiabpears in this Form 10-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
October 28, 2009




EXHIBIT 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Steven R. Appleton, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Micron Technology, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortéanstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigatisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dalnare responsible for establishing and maintgjmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over finah@gaorting, or caused such internal control oweairficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;
and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in #ggtrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internarobaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlwes management or other employees who have #disan role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: October 28, 2009 /sl Steven R. Appletc

Steven R. Appleton
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Ronald C. Foster, certify the
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Micron Technology, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortdénstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danare responsible for establishing and maintgimiisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over finah@porting, or caused such internal control owariicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsattisclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;
and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in #ggtrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internarobaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlwes management or other employees who have #disan role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: October 28, 2009 /s/ Ronald C. Foste
Ronald C. Foster
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial @if




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350

I, Steven R. Appleton, certify, pursuant to 18 @.S1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 dbénbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Micron Technology, Inc. on FormK@or the period ended September 3, 2009, fulljnpbes with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 and that information contained in thendal Report on Form 10-K fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of Micron Tedogg, Inc.

Date: October 28 , 2009 By: /s/ Steven R. Appleton

Steven R. Appleton
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350

I, Ronald C. Foster, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SL850, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaSasOxley Act of 2002, that the Annt
Report of Micron Technology, Inc. on Form 10-K fbe period ended September 3, 2009, fully compligis the requirements of Section 13
(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884 that information contained in the Annual RéparForm 10-K fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and ltexaf operations of Micron Technology, Inc.

Date: October 28 , 2009 By: /s/ Ronald C. Foste
Ronald C. Foster
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial @if




